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Corporate Information
AR ER

CORPORATE PROFILE

Merry Garden Holdings Limited (“the Company”) is a leisure wooden
product enterprise in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) with
over 20 years of experience in production and sales of leisure
household products and timber houses and their related parts and
structures. The Company has established its sales network through
distributors as well as its self-operated retail stores network, and has
launched a series of leisure wooden products to promote a leisure
and natural lifestyle. The Company was listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) in 2012.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Jinjun (Chairman)*
Mr. Wu Zheyan (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Xie Qingmei

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wu Dongping

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Lam Hin Chi
Prof. Jin Zhongwei
Prof. Su Wengiang

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Lam Hin Chi (Chairman)
Prof. Su Wengiang
Prof. Jin Zhongwei

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Prof. Jin Zhongwei (Chairman)
Prof. Su Wengiang
Mr. Lam Hin Chi

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Prof. Jin Zhongwei (Chairman)
Prof. Su Wengiang
Mr. Lam Hin Chi

* Mr. Wang was appointed as an executive Director on 5 August 2015 and as the
Chairman on 12 August 2015.
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Corporate Information (continved)

NEVE R

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Mr. Lam Hin Chi (Chairman)
Prof. Su Wengiang
Prof. Jin Zhongwei

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Yu Hok Sum, CPA ACIS ACS

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Wu Zheyan
Mr. Yu Hok Sum

AUDITORS

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

LEGAL ADVISOR

Eversheds

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Agricultural Bank of China, Zhangping Branch
China Construction Bank, Zhangping Branch
Bank of China, Zhangping Branch

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN HONG KONG

Room 2702

China Resources Building
26 Harbour Road

Wan Chai

Hong Kong
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Corporate Information (contined)
NGIk=E

HEAD OFFICE IN THE PRC

Fushan Industrial District
Zhangping, Fuijian, the PRC

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE IN CAYMAN ISLANDS

Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wan Chai

Hong Kong

WEBSITE

www.merrygardenholdings.com

STOCK CODE
1237
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Financial Summary
B2

(In RMB’000 unless otherwise stated) (A HETIN - UAREFTIT)

Year ended 31 December

Profitability data and ratios BFHERILE BE+_A=+—HLEE
2015 2014
—=E—h%F —E—pO4E
Revenue WA 639,999 701,231
Timber houses and their related parts KRE N E R SE M
and structures 440,005 327,466
Leisure household products REREER
Outdoor and indoor furniture ZERIMRBER 50,960 116,302
Recreational products TEELREE T 22,726 52,117
Landscape garden products EEHED 31,267 39,809
Pet-home designs EEVEE M 7,176 11,139
Trading of timber MBS 65,092 137,897
Renewable energy products BAERESR 22,773 16,501
Gross profit EF 122,457 178,413
Gross profit margin FEFI= 19.1% 25.4%
Net profit Fm A 43,802 90,810
Net profit margin A R 6.8% 13.0%
Earnings per share (RMB) FRAEF(AEK) 0.0283 0.0796
At At
31 December 31 December
Financial position data and ratios MHRABER L E 2015 2014
—Z-hfF —E-mEF
+-A=+—H +=ZA=+—H
Non-current assets IEREEE 663,519 401,076
Current assets MENE E 961,148 880,656
Current liabilities mEAE 377,544 395,416
Non-current liabilities ERHAR 111,613 88,974
Equity attributable to equity shareholders — #E25i% B E (5 & K 1,135,510 797,342
Current ratio (Note 1) TRENEL R (BfaE 1) 2.5:1 2.2:1
Quick ratio (Note 2) BB E (W 2) 1.7:1 1.5:1
Inventory turnover days (Note 3) (days) FERBREXE(MZ3)(XK) 224 171
Trade receivables turnover days ) U ERENEEEPN
(Note 4) (days) (HteE4)(X) 96 68
Turnover days on prepayment for R REMRBERE (HE5)(R)
raw materials (Note 5) (days) 55 29
Total borrowings to total assets (Note 6) EEAFESREEEL X (ff:£6) 25.5% 32.2%
Net borrowings to total equity (Note 7) BEFREAERLE (M7 7) 7.2% 17.5%

EBREERERAA | 5
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Financial Summary continved
B S o

(In RMB’000 unless otherwise stated) (RZ BTN - UAREFTIT)

Year ended 31 December

Operational data EEEE BF+-_A=1+—HILLEE
2015 2014
—E-51fF —T-NF

Staff costs 8 T 41,967 33,823

Capital expenditures ¥ 174,515 105,550

Research and development costs T B R AN 22,332 28,894

Effect tax rate (Note 8) ERTE (M5 8) 18.1% 16.8%

Notes: Hifat

1. Current ratio is the ratio of current assets to current liabilities. 1. RELEARDEELTHAB/OLE -

2. Quick ratio is calculated by dividing current assets (excluding inventories) by 2. R RERDHEE(TREFE)BRUARBEENE -
current liabilities.

3. Inventory turnover days is calculated by dividing average inventories by cost of 3. GERABRBIZTHFEERATFERANE TR 365 KT
inventories and multiplying the resulting value by 365 days. -

4, Trade receivables turnover days is calculated by dividing average trade receivables 4. B9 REUHIERBRBIZTHE 5 BUGIE (T e
(excluding VAT) by turnover and multiplying the resulting value by 365 days. BT Br DA SR SR IA 865 KT HE ©

5. Turnover days on prepayment for raw materials is calculated by dividing average 5. R RHEAS R B 8 R R T35 R MR TR SRR A TE & A
prepayment for raw materials by cost of inventories (excluding staff costs, AN(TEIEE TR « 918 RAFEA) B Ik A365 K5
depreciation and research and development costs) and multiplying the resulting -
value by 365 days.

6. Total borrowings to total assets is calculated by dividing the total of bank loans 6. BB B RS EE L RIRBTER NG BEELERIA
and interest-bearing borrowings by total assets. BEETH -

7. Net borrowings to total equity is calculated by dividing the total of bank loans and 7. EEFEEAESL RIRBTERRFBEERE  #0
interest-bearing borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents and pledged deposits BRReRREEBYRDERETR  BRABERAE -
by total equity.

8. Effective tax rate is calculated as income tax divided by profit before taxation. 8. EEBERUMMGHBR AR AT E -

6 | Merry Garden Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015



Financial Summary continved

B T 2 o

(In RMB’000 unless otherwise stated) (A HETIN - UAREFTIT)

A summary of the results and the assets, liabilities and equity of the

Group for the last five financial years is depicted below:

REEMEIIRIAT

AEESTIAEMBRFEZREREE  BER

RESULTS E
For the year ended 31 December
8F+-A=+—HILEE
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—Z-EF —ET-@OF ZE-=F —E--F ZE——F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FE ARETT AREBTLT ARETLT ARETR
Revenue WA 639,999 701,231 475,051 421,171 307,151
Cost of sales SHEE R AR (5617,542) (522,818) (323,317) (272,461) (195,247)
Gross profit EF| 122,457 178,413 151,734 148,710 111,904
Other revenue Hipr A 32,908 17,888 23,070 11,761 3,504
Other net (loss)/gain Hib (E18) Maas
S (7,030) 2,172 48,683 (780) (1,686)
Selling and distribution HHE R IHRAX
expenses (22,671) (21,714) (13,818) (10,146) (9,233)
Administrative expenses {7 EI% (55,554) (56,279) (46,979) (47,169) (19,653)
Profit from operations gyl 70,110 120,480 162,690 102,376 84,836
Finance costs BUE KA (16,627) (11,326) (5,463) (5,620) (3,759)
Share of profits of DEEE N FEF
associates 20 - - - -
Profit before taxation MR A& A 53,503 109,154 167,227 96,756 81,077
Income tax FiEH (9,701) (18,344) (32,8006) (16,665) (10,370)
Profit for the year F N5 F 43,802 90,810 124,421 80,091 70,707
Earnings per share FREF
— Basic and diluted — EAREE
(RMB) (ARE) 0.03 0.08 0.12 0.09 0.09
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY BE - BERER
As at 31 December
®R+=BA=+-—H
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—Z-EF —ET-@mF —E-=F —E--F =5
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AER®TRE ARETT ARETT ARETT AREBT
Total Assets BEBE 1,624,667 1,281,732 807,058 585,773 282,412
Total Liabilities BEE%E 489,157 484,390 329,886 178,532 135,818
Total Equity TS EER 1,135,510 797,342 477172 362,241 146,594
EEXEEZERERAT

e

7



8

Chairman’s Statement
FEWmE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (“the Board”) of directors (“the Directors”) of
the Company, | am pleased to present you the results of the
Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2015 (“the Year”).

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

During the Year, revenue of the Group amounted to RMB640.0
million, represented a 9% decrease as compared with the year ended
31 December 2014. Profit attributable to shareholders during the
Year amounted to RMB43.8 million, represented a 52% decrease,
which was a result of the macro-economic downturn and an increase
in operating expenses of the Group especially the soaring labor cost.
The Board recommended not to declare any dividend for the Year.

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

The world shows a diverse but challenging economic picture during
the Year. The United States of America (“the US”) has maintained
continuous growth in the property market and the economy. As for
China, even confronting the downward pressure on its economy
during the Year, the strong growth in tourism investment has become
the significant driving force for economic recovery and expansion of
consumption supply. During the Year, the Group’s revenue from the
North America market has maintained a steady growth of 18% to
RMB289.8 million attributed to the solid sales of the timber houses
structures products in the North America, while the revenue from the
Chinese market has plunged 24% to RMB298.2 million attributed to
the decrease in the sales of the Group’s leisure household products
in China as a result of the macro-economic downturn environment,
as well as the increasing operating expenses.

Merry Garden Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

The Group has been identifying and exploring suitable projects with
good profit potential for acquisition so as to diversify the Group’s
business and bring return to the Shareholders. On 4 May 2015, the
Group acquired Unicreed Holdings Limited, which is engaged in the
research, production and sale of intelligent home electronic
equipment, and is the holder of 14 registered patents in the area of
intelligent home electronic equipment. The Company looks forward to
creating the perfect integration of intelligent home technologies and
furniture through the acquisition, so that the Group’s product will
pioneer in the development of technology in the World and ride on
the national policy of “Internet Plus”.

In order to capture the opportunities arisen from the growing tourism
market in the PRC, on 8 July 2015, the Group has entered into an
agreement with two independent third parties in relation to the
formation of a joint venture company in the PRC which will engage in
the development and operation of a timber villas hotel project located
at Guanzhai Mountain, Liangcheng County, Fujian Province, the PRC.
The Group is confident that through direct involvement in the
development of tourism project, the Group will be able to capture the
large market driven by the flourishing development of the Chinese
tourism.

On 20 January 2016, the Company proposed to change the
English name of the Company from “Merry Garden Holdings Limited”
to “China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings
Limited” and the Chinese name of the Company from “ 3= B8 5% B 122 ik
BRAF] to “HREMEYIZERABRAE]”. In consideration of the best
interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole, the
Company believes that the change of company name will better
reflect the Group’s business development, its leading technology in
the industry and its dedication to the expansion of the environmentally
friendly and renewable bioenergy field.

AEE—EMERBERABERENEENAEKR
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WROE e XN F-HFRAMB - AEEBA
BLNRRIEEARLR  TEREHE EER
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PEEREEENRSEES LERLEE—AREE
BRBEERIEIER - REEBEEBEELHERE
HE R AEEBEEZERMNEPEREEN
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RZZ—ARF—AZ1+H FRFAEREBEHEX
% %8 i [Merry Garden Holdings Limited | ¥ 24 &
[ China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

PROSPECTS

During the Year, the US Federal Reserve has raised interest rates for
the first time in almost a decade. It is expected that economy and the
property market in the US will show steady growth in 2016. In light of
growth in Chinese business and greater demand for the Group’s
products in the Asia-Pacific region, the Group will endeavor to take
advantage of all opportunities presented by the emerging markets.

Meanwhile, standing on the well establishment of the Group’s self-
owned “Merry Garden” brand and the impeccable strategy for the
Group in development renewable energy products, the Group looks
forward to making further breakthroughs and expanding our market
shares internationally.

The development during the Year has provided a solid foundation for
the Group’s further growth in the coming years. | am very confident
for the prospects of the Group and looking forward for the fruitful
results for the years to come.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my sincere thanks for
the support and trust from our shareholders and business partners. |
would also like to thank our employees for your efforts and
contributions to the Group over the Year.

Wang Jingjun
Chairman

10 | Merry Garden Holdings Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEE R wmE DT

BUSINESS REVIEW ¥ O E
Our business e AR ES S

Outdoor and indoor furniture Landscape garden products

Timber houses and related Recreational products

parts and structures
NE RABRA SR K 1

g LY ERIMRIEER EEHER

Trading of timber Renewable energy products

Pet-home designs

BAERER

EYEEmR AMES

Mode of sales 1. OEM/ODM ) -
e st 2. Self-owned brand “Merry Garden” &4 @i EERE
o 3. Trading &5

Customers BFEf

End-users (through Retailers / Distributors Trading companies
self-owned retail Home Improvement and other
outlets and online sales) Centres manufacturers
KinfE A e/ DI B S RAIR
(BBBEEERR FHE) RIEEHEE HibEER
EZBREERERATE
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Management Discussion and Analysis (contied

ERE RIS T

BUSINESS REVIEW
Segment review

During the Year, the performance of our business segments are as
follows:

Segment revenue
derived from external

ES e
53 &b 1= A
REFE - BIEQEN B2 RBNT -

% to total segment

revenue derived from  Reportable segment

customers Change  external customers profit/(loss) (Note 1)
{HEEMBERZ DES V0
FEMBERZABRA ] #oBkAESL B NER) (1)
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Zg-iF —TF Ze2-iF “T-NF ZB-1F —T 0%
RMB’000  RMB'000 % % % RMB’000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETL ERils B Bt AE®FR ARETET
Manufacturing and sales EERBERER
of wooden products 605,982 659,016 -8.0% 94.7% 94.0% 25,720 84,721
Retail business SEER 11,044 24,245 -54.4% 1.7% 3.5% (2,069) 1,290
Projects of outdoor wooden FIMREIRIEE
products 200 1,469 -86.4% 0.0% 0.2% (173) 59
Manufacturing and sales of EEREE
renewable energy products BARRER 22,773 16,501 38.0% 3.6% 2.3% 8,183 3,496
639,999 701,231 100.0% 100.0% 31,661 89,566

During the Year, the Group continued to consolidate its core business
into the following segments: manufacturing and sales of wooden
products, retail business and projects relating to outdoor wooden
products. The Group’s relatively new business in the manufacturing
and sales of renewable energy products has successfully continued
operation for the second year since its commencement in 2014. The
revenue derived from each of the four businesses segments during
the Year were RMB605,982,000, RMB11,044,000, RMB200,000 and
RMB22,773,000 (2014: RMB659,016,000, RMB24,245,000,
RMB1,469,000 and RMB16,501,000), representing 94.7%, 1.7%,
0.0% and 3.6% of the total revenue derived (2014: 94%, 3.5%, 0.2%
and 2.3%) respectively.

Note 1: Reported segment profit/(loss) has excluded the after tax effect of government

subsidies.

Merry Garden Holdings Limited
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Vanagement Discussion and Analysis contined

BRI RES T

Manufacturing and sales of wooden products remains the Group’s
largest business. The revenue derived from such business decreased
by 8% which was attributable to the decrease in the gross profit
margin as a result of the slowdown of growth in the emerging
economies and increased competition in the domestic and overseas
timber house and structure markets. However, in light of the recent
recovery of the US economy, the Group will monitor the performance
of each market to stabilize the overall revenue of the Company.

The Group’s self-owned brand is engaged in the retail of leisure
household products. Since its establishment in 2010, its sales
network has grown to include major cities in more than 10 provinces
in the PRC with over 60 self-operated stores and distribution outlets.
The Group aims to make a greater profit in the coming year by
improving its cost controls.

As mentioned above, the Group has continued its renewable energy
business for a second successful year. This aspect of the business
involves the recycling of residue, such as leftover sawdust from the
production of our wooden products, into biomass pellet fuel. The
biomass pellet fuel and its production process, are fully compliant
with the national development directions on new energies in the PRC.

The Group’s renewable energy business recorded an increase in
revenue of 38% to RMB22.8 million and an increase in profit of 134%
to RMB8.2 million (2014: revenue of RMB16.5 million and profit of
RMB3.5 million) during the Year. It is expected that this business will
continue to grow and to generate more revenue for the Group in the
future.

FERBERRRNDARARENZAES - %
QRIS R RN EBRAINREB TS5
FE - ZEBEMETE - ERBARD8%
A ARNTHXEREER  AEEHIER
BETHNERE  EARBERBBARBRE °

AEEEAERMESRTERBERERR - B=F
—TERIZAK - HHEREREEEBE AT
BEI2EMMNEIERT  ARBE0ZEAE LD
SHAEL o AN BB IR AR B AR FT R —
BIEE LR -

W ERrat - AEREBARRERC BN EELE
2F c REB S REPAEBEEBETELN
BEIE - AREGHEBLREMERNIRE - AL
MERBRAE R EEETET2HERENER
MBI R#ERITE

RFEEAEEBEEREGESIMAERIBR E
ARM228EE L HFIEM134% EARES.2
BELT(ZE—NF : RAARKI65BE TR
EMARBISEET) - BHRRZERSHE
BRI ARNEFEBIEE ZHURA -
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Management Discussion and Analysis centined

IR E ST B DT

Market review

During the Year, the distribution of revenue from our global markets

are as follows:

America
Bl
45%

[EE1E] =
RAERE - BIARE2RTEZRADHAT -

Asia Pacific \

(Exclusive of the PRC)

BAE
(T EFEFRE)
3%
Revenue % to total revenue
A LR AESL
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-RF —ZE—mF k-2 - 3 —ZE—mF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®WTR ARETT AR®TRT ARETT
The PRC F 298,207 390,886 47% 56%
North America JbsEM 289,756 244,737 45% 35%
Europe BOM 30,367 43,314 5% 6%
Asia Pacific EEp N
(Exclusive of the PRC) (TBERE) 21,669 22,294 3% 3%
639,999 701,231 100% 100%

14 | Merry Garden Holdings Limited
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Vanagement Discussion and Analysis contined

BRI RES T

The Group has strategically positioned itself “to align with the trend of
Chinese tourism and leisure market and to capitalize on the recovery
of the US and Europe’s property markets”. The Group’s aim is to take
advantage of opportunities within the market and to develop the
Group’s business at a faster pace whilst complying with all relevant
laws, rules and regulations.

The PRC is the largest market of the Group. During the Year, revenue
from the PRC market decreased by 24% to RMB298.2 million (2014:
RMB390.9 million), representing 47% (2014: 56%) of the total
revenue. This was mainly attributable to the economic slowdown in
the PRC. In 2015, the growth of the PRC’s investments in fixed
assets further decelerated. Although interest rates were lowered in
the PRC, finance costs remained relatively high. Although the Group
expects that the PRC economy will continue to fluctuate in 2016, it
will continue to strengthen its business portfolio in order to maintain
its competitiveness in the PRC market.

According to the US Department of Commerce, new housing starts
increased by approximately 11% to 1.11 million units in 2015. This is
the highest since 2007 and is the fifth consecutive year which housing
starts have shown such growth. Nevertheless, the growth of the US
economy in 2015 reached 2.4%, same as that in 2014. Due to the
growing housing market as well as the stable economy in the US, the
demand for the Group’s timber houses and structure products
significantly improved. This boosted the growth in the Group’s
revenue from the North America market by 18% to RMB289.8 million
(2014: RMB244.7 million), representing 45% (2014: 35%) of the
Group’s total revenue. The Group expects that, with the further
recovery of the US economy, the Group will be able to generate
further opportunities and business as a result which will help cover
any decrease in revenue in the PRC market.

During the Year, the Group’s revenue from the Europe market
decreased by 30% to RMB30.4 million (2014: RMB43.3 million).
Germany was the largest market of the Group in Europe. Several
European countries faced economic uncertainty during the Year, the
European economy was also affected by this. As a result, the Group
noticed a decline in demand for its products in the Europe market
which led to a decrease in revenue.
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Management Discussion and Analysis contined
B8 SR BT

FINANCIAL REVIEW B 7 [ 8
Revenue and gross profit margin by product WARENEX(REMDEEH)
category
Revenue % to total revenue Gross margin
KA ERBRAESL Bk
2015 2014 Change 2015 2014 2015 2014
“B-nf —T-MUF & 21 —T-NF ZB-1f _—TNOF
RMB‘000  RMB'000 % % % % %
ARRTR ARETRL BAL Rl Bok B Bolt
Timber houses and their RERAR@HT
related parts and structures Ll 440,005 327,466 34.4% 68.7% 46.7% 17.4% 25.5%
Leisure household products REEEER
Outdoor and indoor fumitures ~ ERSMEFBER 50,960 116,302 -56.2% 8.0% 16.6% 29.8% 36.8%
Recreational products BEBER 22,726 52,117 -56.4% 3.6% 7.4% 26.7% 34.4%
Landscape garden products ~ EIEEEMR 31,267 39,809 -21.5% 4.9% 5.7% 13.3% 33.0%
Pet-home designs ENEES 7,176 11,139 -35.6% 1.1% 1.6% 32.5% 34.8%
Trading of timber AHES 65,092 137,897 -52.8% 10.1% 19.7% 9.8% 5.3%
Renewable energy products BARERER 22,773 16,501 38.0% 3.6% 2.3% 52.2% 60.3%
Total @it 639,999 701,231 -8.7%  100.0% 100.0% 19.1% 25.4%

Sales of timber houses, related parts and structures remained the  A%EE - KE « HEERIEHEENENER
largest product category income stream of the Group during the SAZERERINWARR BEERKAER
Year. Revenue from such products increased by 34.4% to RMB440.0  34.4%E AR 44008 &7 (hAEEHE &

million, representing 68.7% (2014: 46.7%) of total sales for the Year.

FER68.7% (ZZF — 04 : 46.7%) » AT - B

B 3

Fluctuations in exchange rates, however, required the Group to adjust ~ [EXRE ) - NEBAFAZEREBUNRET SR
its product pricing in order to maintain market competitiveness and ~ F R ERET o FIEANEIINK AN E R HBE
stability. Additional costs incurred caused the overall gross profit  RIHEREEENERT[E81% o

margin on the sale of such products to drop by 8.1%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (contied

BRI RES T

During the Year, there was an overall decrease in trade within the
timber market which explains the Group’s recorded minor decrease
in revenue. Despite the uncertain and slowly recovering global
economy, the Group’s intention is to balance growth with stability in
the foreseeable future.

Other revenue

During the Year, our other revenue increased to RMB32.9 (2014:
RMB17.9) million mainly due to an increase in government subsidies
amounting to 12.3 million as a result of the increasing support from
local government for high technology industries.

Other net (loss)/gain

The Group recorded other net losses of RMB7.0 million for the Year
(2014: gain of RMB2.2 million). The losses were primarily due to the
difference in currency exchange after repayment of US$ loans.

Selling and distribution expenses

Our selling and distribution expenses during the Year were RMB22.7
million (2014: RMB21.7 million). This slight increase from the
immediately preceding year which arose due to increased
transportation charges and port charges arising from our export
sales.

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses during the Year were RMB55.6 million
(2014: RMB56.3 million). This is a slight decrease from the
immediately preceding year as the Group implemented tighter cost
controls during the Year.

Finance costs

Our finance costs increased to RMB16.6 million during the Year
(2014: RMB11.3 million), and this was attributable to increased bank
borrowings.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (contied

ERE B EDH

Income tax

Our income tax decreased significantly to RMB9.7 million (2014
RMB18.3 million), primarily due to a decrease in profit before taxation
during the Year. Effective tax rate increased to 18.1% for the Year
(2014: 16.8%).

Profit for the Year

As a result of the foregoing factors, profit for the Year decreased by
51.8% to RMB43.8 million (2014: RMB90.8 million). Profit for the Year
excluding the after tax effect of government subsidies decreased by
73.3% to RMB21.4 million (2014: RMB80.2 million).

Dividend

The Board does not recommended a final dividend for the Year (2014:
HK$0.005 (equivalent to approximately RMB0.004)).

Liquidity and capital resources

The Group principally meets its working capital and other liquidity
requirements through operating cash flows and proceeds from bank
borrowings. The Group anticipates that it can sufficiently meet funding
needs for working capital and capital expenditure. As at 31 December
2015, the Group had current assets of RMB961.1 million (31
December 2014: RMB880.7 million), of which bank deposits and
cash (including pledged deposits) were RMB332.2 million (31
December 2014: RMB273.4 million). To better manage our funds, the
Group’s cash is generally deposited with banks and denominated
mostly in RMB and USD. As at 31 December 2015, total available
banking facilities of the Group amounted to RMB652.9 million (31
December 2014: RMB555.0 million), banking facilities utilized as at 31
December 2015 were RMBG396.9 million (31 December 2014:
RMB397.3 million) and these were denominated in RMB, EURO, HKD
and USD. All of the Group’s banking facilities were subject to the
fulfilment of certain covenants, as are commonly found in lending
arrangements with financial institutions. Details of the covenants are
set out in note 24(c) to the financial statement.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (contied

BB BEDH

As at 31 December 2015, the ratio of total borrowings to total assets
and net borrowings to total equity of the Group were 25.5% and 7.2%
respectively (31 December 2014: 32.2% and 17.5% respectively),
current ratio and quick ratio were 2.5:1 and 1.7:1 respectively (31
December 2014: 2.2:1 and 1.5:1 respectively).

Pledge of assets

At 31 December 2015, the Group pledged its plant and machinery,
lease prepayments and buildings held for own use and accounts
receivable with net book value of RMB 213.1 million (31 December
2014: RMB193.6 million) and deposits with banks of RMB135.3
million (31 December 2014: RMB99.3 million) mainly for the purpose
of securing bank loans and financial derivative contracts issued by
banks to the Group.

Capital expenditure

During the Year, the Group’s total expenditure in respect of property,
plant and equipment and non-current prepayments for acquisitions of
property, plant and equipment amounted to RMB174.5 million (2014:
RMB105.6 million).

Capital commitment and contingent liabilities

Save as disclosed in note 29(a) of the consolidated financial
statements, there were no significant capital commitments for the
Group. There were no significant contingent liabilities for the Group as
at 31 December 2015.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, FUTURE PLANS FOR
MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR ACQUISITION OF
CAPITAL ASSETS

During the Year, save as disclosed under the Directors’ Report
section of this annual report, there were no significant investments,
material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries by the Company.
The Group currently has no plan to make any substantial investments
in or acquisitions of capital assets, but will continue to seek out
potential investment or acquisition opportunities according to the
Group’s development needs.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (contied
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FOREIGN CURRENCY RISKS

The Group’s sales are mainly denominated in USD and RMB while
our cost of sales and operating expenses are mainly denominated in
RMB. The gross profit margin would be affected if RMB appreciates
against USD as the Group may not be able to reflect the appreciation
in selling prices to overseas customers that were determined in USD.
In response to this, the Group manages fluctuations in the exchange
rate of RMB against USD by entering into foreign currency forward
contracts denominated in USD with banks when sales contracts were
entered with overseas customers. As at 31 December 2015, the
Group has net outstanding USD denominated forward foreign
currency contracts of USD51.9 million (31 December 2014: USD20.6
million). All the contracts are to be settled within one year.

With the increasing level of our overseas purchases, the Group also
manages foreign exchange risk by matching the cash inflow from our
export sales denominated in USD with the cash outflow from our
import of timber denominated in USD.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL
OFFERING, PLACING AND SUBSCRIPTION

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 6 July 2012. Net proceeds from the global
offering were approximately HK$144.3 million (after deducting the
underwriting commission and relevant expenses).

On 26 June 2014, the Company issued 200,000,000 new ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each at HK$0.80 per share by way of placing (the
“June 2014 Placement”). On 7 October 2014, the Company issued
165,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at HK$0.93 per
share by way of placing (the “October 2014 Placement”). On 5
August 2015, the Company issued 272,600,000 new ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each at HK$0.55 per share by way of placing (the
“August 2015 Subscription”). On 21 December 2015, the Company
issued 857,945,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at
HK$0.20 per share by way of Open Offer (the “December 2015 Open
Offer”). The net proceeds from the issue of new shares under the
June 2014 Placement, October 2014 Placement, August 2015
Subscription, December 2015 Open Offer after deducting related
transaction costs, were HK$155.0 million, HK$148.0 million,
HK$149.7 million, HK$170.0 million respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (contied
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As at 31 December 2015, all the unutilised proceeds were deposited
in licensed banks in Hong Kong and the PRC. A breakdown of the

use of net proceeds is set forth in the table below:

E/\_'=

BF+ZA=+—R FERPAME
RECFEREERPEZMRT - EHREA
FRZERBREIHN TR

Merger and
acquisition
The financing of small to
of the medium sized Increasing
acquisition of companies, and
automated other timber ~ Own-brand enhancing
production  Establishing  Establishing  processing promotion  our research
machinery new  own-brand plants, and other and General
and  production self-operated  and/or other marketing ~ development working
equipment facilities ~store network resources events activities capital Total
AHEKE
BEAE(L RPHLE E
EERS i A BERN  EARME
Rifa HI¥  BERMG  DIRR/  REfmE FLEM -R
e CERE  REEMR  GAMEE ERED HRED EEge 1]
HKS'milon  HK§'milon  HK§'millon  HK§'milion  HKS'milon  HK§'milon  HKS'milon  HKS milion
AERT BEAT AEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT
From global offering RERHRE
Amount of net proceeds METERE N/A 438 308 279 111 98 139 1443
TR
Percentage to total net proceeds EFETELTEEAY NA 29.0% 21.6% 19.3% 7.7% 6.8% 9.6% 100.0%
R
Utlised amount as at RZZ-1%+-f=1-A A 438 398 11 1.1 98 139 175
31 December 2015 E@Uﬁ R
Unutiised amount as at R-% ﬁ¢+ A=t-8 N/A - - %8 - - - %8
31 December 2015 AR TR
From June 2014 Placement *E_S—I$/\EEE
Amount of net proceeds FERETR NA 1250 NA NA A NA 300 155.0
3 il il ol il TiER
Percentage to total net proceeds (EEEESFREA L N/A 80.6% NA NA NA NA 19.4% 100.0%
R R TiER TR TER
Utiised amount as at RZE-RE+ZA=1-A N/A 1250 /A N/A N/A NA 300 165.0
31 December 2015 EBREE R R TiER TR ER
Unutiised amount as at R-EZ-RE+-A=+-H NA - NA NIA NA N/A - -
31 December 2015 ik TER TER TiER il il
From October 2014 Placement ¥H-S-METREE
Amount of net proceeds FEERE N/A 730 N/A 500 N/A NA 250 1480
R R TR R
Percentage to total net proceeds EEEIREFER Y NA 493% NA 33.8% NA A 16.9% 100.0%
il TR Gl oyl
Utiised amount as at z ﬁﬁ' A=+-8 N/A 780 N/A 154 N/A N/A % 1134
31 December 2015 % TR TR TR il
Unutiised amount s at £¢+ A=t-A NA - NA 346 NA NA - 346
31 December 2015 *% Ex] NER NER NER NER
From August 2015 Subscription ¥HZS-L5/\RUR
Amount of net proceeds HEHEFE NA 749 NA NA NA NA 748 1497
- il il ol TR oyl
Percentage to total net proceeds (RHERERFER AL NA 50.0% NA NA NA NA 50.0% 100%
il Bl ol TR TER
Utilsed amount s at RZ% ﬁﬁJr A=t-8 A 66.5 A NA A NA 749 1414
31 December 2015 E@ Bl il ol TR el
Unutiised amotnt as at WoE ﬁﬁ R=t-H NA 84 NA NA NA NA - 84
31 December 2015 AR il TER TER TER TER
From December 2015 Open Offer *E_S—i$+-ﬂkuii
Amountofnet proceeds HEHEEE 119 NA NA NiA NA 17 340 170
~ TER il ol ki
Percentage to total net proceeds bFEREATEAD L 70.0% N/A N/A N/A N/A 10.0% 20.0% 100%
il Gl TiER R
Utiised amount as at RZE-RE+ZA=1-A 385 N/A N/A N/A N/A 10 - 485
31 December 2015 EBRLE TR NaR TiER R
Unutiised amount as at R-EZ-RE+-A=+-H 805 N/A NA N/A NA 7 340 1215
31 December 2015 AOALE Gyl TER ol TR
EEREEZERERLR | 21
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Management Discussion and Analysis (contied
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HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2015, we employed a total of 690 full time
employees, mainly in the PRC and Hong Kong which included
management staff, product designers, technicians, salespersons and
workers. The Group’s total expenses on the remuneration of
employees for the Year were RMB42.0 million (2014: RMB33.8
million), representing 6.6% (2014: 4.8%) of the revenue of the Group.
The Group has been consistently increasing production process
automation, strengthening the training of staff with an emphasis on
high-technique processing with a mission on the continuous
development and enhancing of competitiveness. The Group offered
highly competitive salary packages, as well as discretionary bonuses
and contribution to social insurance to its employees.

The Group’s emolument policies are formulated based on the
performance of individual employee which will be reviewed
periodically. Apart from the provident fund scheme (operation in
accordance with the provisions of the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for Hong Kong employees) or social insurance
(including retirement pension insurance, medical insurance,
unemployment insurance, injury insurance and maternity insurance
for the PRC employees), discretionary bonuses are also awarded to
employees according to the assessment of individual performance.
Since the adoption of the share option scheme on 15 June 2012 and
up to 31 December 2015, no options have been granted.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Up to the date of this annual report, the Group has no material events
after the reporting period.
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Corporate Governance Report
PRERME

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance. The Board believes that a high standard of corporate
governance will provide a framework for the Company to formulate its
business strategies and policies, and manage and lower the
associated risks through effective internal control procedures. It will
also enhance the transparency of the Company and strengthen the
accountability to its shareholders and creditors.

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (“the Code”) contained in Appendix 14
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Listing Rules”) and certain
recommended best practices. The Company has complied with all
the applicable code provisions in the Code throughout the Year
except for the deviations disclosed under the sections headed “The
Board”, “The Chairman and the Chief Executive” and “Accountability
and Audit” in this report.

THE BOARD

The Board oversees the management of the business and affairs of
the Company. The Directors are accountable for making decisions
objectively in the best interest of the shareholders as a whole.

The Board is responsible for making decisions on all major aspects of
the Company’s affairs, including the approval and monitoring of key
policy matters, overall strategies, business plans and annual budgets,
internal control and risk management systems, material transactions,
major capital expenditure, appointment of Directors and other
significant financial and operational matters.

The Board may delegate aspects of its management and
administration functions to the management. In particular, the day-to-
day management of the Company is delegated to the chief executive
officer of the Group, Mr. Wu Zheyan, and his management team.

The Company has throughout the Year met the requirements of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive Directors with at least one independent non-executive
Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications,
accounting or related financial management expertise. At all times
during the Year, the independent non-executive Directors represent
at least one-third of the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report conined
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The Board is expected to meet regularly and at least four times a
year. The Directors have full access to information on the Group and
independent professional advice at all times whenever deemed
necessary by the Directors.

With respect to regular meetings of the Board, the Directors will be
given written notice of the meeting at least 14 days in advance and
an agenda with supporting Board papers no less than three days

prior to the meeting. For other meetings, the Directors are given as
much notice as is reasonable and practicable in the circumstances.

Details of directors’ attendance at Board meetings, Committee
meetings and 2014 Annual General Meeting held during the year are
set out in the following table:
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Meeting attendance/number of meetings

BHLRRY ERY
2014 Risk
Annual Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination ~Management
General Board  Committee =~ Committee =~ Committee ~ Committee
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
—E-mE E¥e #itzRE FlzRE ReZZAE RREEZAE
Name of Directors EREh 3 Sk | {1 ] L1 ] L1 ] L1 ] 1 ]
Executive Directors YHES
Mr. Wang Jingjun (Chairman) IEERE(ZE) 000 6/6 NA NA N/A N/A
(appointed on 5 August 2013) (R=Z-1E/\ARAEZM) el el il il
Mr. Wu Zheyan REERE 1 1M N/A N/A N/A N/A
TiER Wil Wil Wil
Mr. Wu Qingshan REWRE 1 101 N/A N/A N/A N/A
(resigned on 2 April 2016) (R=E-~ERAZRET) TER TR TR ER
Ms. Xie Qingme HEERL 01 101 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Wyl Wil Wil Wil
Non-executive Directors FYFES
Mr. Wu Dongping RETRE 01 4l N/A N/A N/A N/A
il TR Bl Bl
Mr. Lee Kong Wai, Conway TRERE 1 57 NA NA NA NA
(resigned on 30 September 201) (R-F-RENAZTREMD) TER TER @R TER
Independent non-executive BUniTEE
Directors
Mr. Lam Hin Chi ERBLE N 101 2/2 2/2 22 il
Prof. Jin Zhongwei SERYR 1 1011 2 22 22 1
Prof. Su Wengjang EYE:E it N 101 2/2 2/2 22 il
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Pursuant to code provision A.1.1 of the Code, the Board meetings
should be held at least four times a year at approximately quarterly
intervals. The Board only held two regular meetings during the Year to
approve the interim and annual results in 2015 whilst other matters of
the Board were dealt with by written resolutions or ad hoc Board
meeting.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board has carried out its duties and responsibilities as set out in
code provision D.3 in the Code, including the development of policies
and practices on corporate governance, monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, reviewing the compliance with the Code, disclosure in
this report and legal and regulatory requirements of the Group.

THE CHAIRMAN AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Pursuant to code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Prior to the appointment of Mr. Wang Jingjun
as chairman of the Company on 12 August 2015, Mr. Wu Zheyan
acted as both the chairman and chief executive officer of the
Company. The Board firmly believed the dual role arrangement was in
the best interests of the Company and its business. This arrangement
allowed for efficient decision making and implementation of such
decisions. In light of more recent developments of the Company and
its business and due to increased workload, the Board subsequently
came to the view that a separation of the two roles would be
appropriate. Mr. Wang Jingjin was appointed as chairman of the
Board on 12 August 2015 and the Company therefore became
compliant with code provision A.2.1 on that day.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ INDEPENDENCE

As at the date of this report, the Board consists of three executive
Directors and four non-executive Directors. Three of the non-
executive Directors are independent. Further details of the
composition of the Board are disclosed in the section headed “The
Board” of this report.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The non-executive Directors are expected to participate in the
activities of the Board, particularly in the establishment of a selection
process to ensure a mix of competent directors and officers; adoption
of a system of internal checks and balances; scrutiny of the
Company’s performance in achieving agreed corporate goals and
objectives; and ensuring that the exercise of Board authority is within
the powers conferred to the Board under its articles of association
(the “Articles”) and applicable laws, rules and regulations.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive Directors are highly skilled
professionals with a broad range of expertise and experience in the
fields of accounting, finance and business. Their skills, expertise and
number in the Board ensure that strong independent views and
judgement are brought in the Board’s deliberations and that such
views and judgement carry weight in the Board’s decision-making
process. Their presence and participation also enable the Board to
maintain high standards of compliance in financial and other
mandatory reporting requirements, and provide adequate checks and
balances to safeguard the interests of shareholders of the Company
and the Company.

Each independent non-executive Director gives the Company an
annual confirmation of his independence. The Company considers
such Directors to be independent under the guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Each Director, upon reasonable request, is given access to
independent professional advice in circumstances he may deem
appropriate and necessary for the discharge of his duties to the
Company, at the expense of the Company.

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND
ROTATION OF DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from 15
June 2015, which may be terminated by not less than three months’
notice in writing served by either party on the other. Each of the non-
executive Directors and the independent non-executive Directors
have been appointed for a term of three years commencing from 15
June 2015. None of the Directors has entered into a service contract
with any member of the Group (excluding contracts expiring or
determinable by the employer within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation)).

Merry Garden Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015
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Pursuant to the Articles, at each annual general meeting one-third of
the Directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an
annual general meeting at least once every three years. A retiring
Director shall be eligible for re-election.

According to the Articles and in the opinion of the Board, Mr. Wu
Dongping, Prof. Su Wengiang and Mr. Wang Jingjun shall retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. All of the above retiring
Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
same meeting.

Where vacancies arise at the Board, candidates will be proposed and
put forward to the Board by the Nomination Committee (as defined
below) as set out below under the section headed “Nomination
Committee” of this report.

REMUNERATION POLICY FOR DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Remuneration for executive Directors and senior management is
determined in accordance with performance, professional
experiences and the prevailing market practices. The remuneration of
non-executive Directors is subject to regular assessment by the
Remuneration Committee (as defined below).

TRAINING, INDUCTION AND CONTINUING
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed Director receives comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment so as
to ensure that he/she has appropriate understanding of the business
and operations of the Company and that he/she is fully aware of his/
her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and
relevant regulatory requirements.

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. The Company should be
responsible for arranging and funding suitable training, placing an
appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of the
Directors.
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The Directors confirm that they have complied with the relevant code
provision. The Company had received from each of the Directors the
record of training the Directors received.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. After making
specific enquiry to all the Directors, the Company confirms that all the
Directors have complied with the standards as stipulated in the Model
Code throughout the Year.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has set up four Board committees, namely, the audit
committee, the remuneration committee, the nomination committee
and the risk management committee (collectively the “Board
Committees”), for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs.

The Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expense.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Lam Hin Chi, Prof. Jin Zhongwei and Prof. Su
Wengiang. Mr. Lam Hin Chi is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

Under its terms of reference, the Audit Committee shall assist the
Board in fulfilling its corporate governance and overseeing
responsibilities in relation to financial reporting, risk management and
internal control systems and internal and external audit functions. The
Audit Committee is further authorised by the Board to investigate any
activity within its terms of reference, and is tasked with recommending
to the Board appropriate actions emanating from such investigations.
The Audit Committee has unrestricted access to personnel, records,
internal and external auditors, risk assessment and assurance and
senior management, as may be appropriate in the discharge of its
functions.

Merry Garden Holdings Limited
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During the Year, the Audit Committee discharged its responsibilities
by:

(1)  making recommendations to the Board on the reappointment
of the external auditor and approval of the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditor;

(2)  monitoring the external auditor’s independence and objectivity
and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with
applicable standard, and discussing with the external auditor
the nature and scope of the audit and reporting obligations;

(8) implementing the Company’s policy on the engagement of an
external auditor to supply non-audit services;

(4) reviewing, and monitoring the integrity of, the financial
statements of the Company and the Company’s interim report
to ensure that the information presents a true and balanced
assessment of the Company’s financial position;

(5) reviewing the Company’s financial controls, internal control and
risk management systems to ensure that management has
discharged its duty to have effective systems;

(6) reviewing the Company’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

(7)  reviewing the external auditor’'s management letter, material
queries raised by the external auditor to the management, if
any, in respect of the accounting records, financial accounts or
systems of control and the management’s response to such
queries; and

(8) reporting to the Board on the matters set out in the Code on
the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee is authorised by the Board to obtain external
legal or other independent professional advice and to secure the
attendance of outsiders with relevant experience and expertise if it
considers necessary in the performance of its functions. The Audit
Committee is provided with sufficient resources by the Company to
discharge its duties. The Audit Committee’s specific terms of
reference are available on request to any shareholder of the Company
and are posted on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s
website, www.merrygardenholdings.com.
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During the Year, the Audit Committee together with management has
reviewed the Code, the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group and discussed the Group’s internal control and financial
reporting matters, including a review of the annual results for the year
ended 31 December 2014 and the interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2015, with recommendation to the Board for
approval. The Audit Committee has also recommended to the Board
that, subject to shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual
general meeting, KPMG be re-appointed as the external auditors of
the Company.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises all independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lam Hin Chi, Prof. Jin Zhongwei and
Prof. Su Wengiang. Prof. Jin Zhongwei is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The major duties of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:

(@  to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

(b) to determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management, including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

(c) to make recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of
non-executive Directors;

(d) to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

(e) to review and approve management’s remuneration proposals
by reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives;

® to review and approve compensation payable to the executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination of
office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

Merry Garden Holdings Limited
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(9 to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that
they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate; and

(h)  to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee’s specific terms of reference are
available on request to any shareholder of the Company and are
posted on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website,
www.merrygardenholdings.com.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee has reviewed the
remuneration policy and structure of the executive Directors and
senior management of the Company, and offered advice on the same
to the Board. The Remuneration Committee also resolved to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive directors and senior management.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises all independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Lam Hin Chi, Prof. Jin Zhongwei and Prof. Su
Wengiang. Prof. Jin Zhongwei is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

The major duties of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

(@ to review the structure, size and composition of the Board
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) at least annually
and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

(b)  to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

(c) to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and

(d) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive
officer of the Group.
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Where vacancy on the Board exists, the Nomination Committee will
carry out a selection process by making reference to the skills,
experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity and time
commitments of the proposed candidates, the Company’s needs and
other relevant statutory requirements and regulations, and select or
make recommendations to the Board on the selection of candidates
for directorship.

The Nomination Committee’s specific terms of reference are available
on request to any shareholder of the Company and are posted on the
Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website,
www.merrygardenholdings.com.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board, conducted performance evaluations to
assess whether the non-executive Directors have spent enough time
in fulfilling their duties, assessed the independence of independent
non-executive Directors, and had been keeping under review the
leadership needs of the organisation, both executive and non-
executive, with a view to ensuring the continued ability of the
organisation to compete effectively in the marketplace. The
Nomination Committee has also adopted the following diversity policy
on the Board:

We embrace and encourage our employees’ differences in age, color,
disability, ethnicity, family or marital status, gender identity or
expression, language, national origin, physical and mental ability,
political affiliation, race, religion, sexual orientation, socio-economic
status, veteran status, and other characteristics that make our
directors unique.

Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee comprises all independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Lam Hin Chi, Prof. Jin Zhongwei and
Prof. Su Wengiang. Mr. Lam Hin Chi is the chairman of the Risk
Management Committee.
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The major duties of the Risk Management Committee are as follows: EREREEENEERENT ¢

(a) to review the Group risk, capital and liquidity management (a) i AEEER B2 AHELERR
framework, the Group’s risk appetite, its risk policies and B AEBERERAZED - BBEBER R
standards, and supporting risk limits, including the parameters ZEFEEMRERRRS - BREANZE
used and the methodology adopted, and the processes used R 0ELA R AR i8R fe s A L P a0 A2 =

for identifying and assessing risks;

to review material risk exposures of the Group, including

REAEBERBFFENEREEETHR

market, credit, insurance, operational, liquidity, and economic ETI$§%E’J§7U—L AR BEMS &
and regulatory capital risks against the Group’s risk B RE B RPEeREERET
measurement methodologies and management actions to ARER - ﬁ*“&? HlZERR
monitor and control such exposures;

() to review the standard for accurate and timely monitoring of ~ (c) s R R E R E AR KR M F R

large exposures and certain risk types of critical importance,
and the Group’s capability to identify and manage new risk

types;

PR AR Y A0 AR 2 R AN SR B 38 ) % B R AT R R
IVHIRE D)

(d)  to receive reports and recommendations from management on  (d) EUREIRE R A S BEE R (B IR M IE
the Group’s attitude to and tolerance of risk, including financial BT ERR ) RS MR BE N IR RE &
and non-financial risks; E

(e) to oversee the Group’s processes and policies for determining  (e) BB ANEEEF R AT IR RK
risk tolerance and review management’s measurement and R BRI ASERERN R AT REKE
effectiveness of, and compliance with, approved Group risk B N AZ ) B IR B FEAE N Ak SR B ST
tolerance levels and policies and standards, and the resultant S AR HE R BUR SIBRE AR TE)
action in respect of policy breaches;

() to review the risks inherent in strategic transactions and () B EEELSRESFEIEENER -
business plans and provide the Board with input on the risk/ WREESREZSTENESHRER
reward trade offs implicit within those plans; and WEGHER &

(@ to review the Group’s capability to identify and manage new  (g)  #ad AN E 3 Bl & & 12 #7 &L 56 K8 5 19 A
risk types, and the Group’s stress tests to ensure they are RASEBOEBE A - AERAIRE&KZE
rigorous and the Group responds adequately to the results. B N DRI A4S RAE H 78 55 [l g

The Risk Management Committee’s specific terms of reference are R SRR 8 € /045 E B0 E A] fE AR BIALER

available on request to any shareholder of the Company and are

posted on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s

website, www.merrygardenholdings.com.

Z SR E B R T B 2 BT A8 I AR A ) 48
(www.merrygardenholdings.com) °

During the Year, the Risk Management Committee has evaluated and RER - AR EEEZEeD AR EEEZES
assessed the effectiveness and adequacy of the Terms of Reference  BiESE AR R TR
of the Risk Management Committee.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of
the financial statements of the Company to ensure that these financial
statements give a true and fair presentation in accordance with the
International Financial Reporting Standards.

The statement by the auditor about their reporting responsibilities is
set out in the independent auditor’s report on pages 61 to 62.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

According to Code provision C.1.2, the Management should provide
all members of the board with monthly updates giving a balanced and
understandable assessment of the issuer’s performance, position and
prospects in sufficient detail to enable the board as a whole and each
director to discharge their duties under Rule 3.08 and Chapter 13 of
the Listing Rules.

The Company has deviated from C.1.2 in that while the management
has updated most of the Directors on a monthly basis about the
business operation and performance of the Company, not all the
Directors received such updates as the monthly updates were
conducted on-site at the Group’s factory in China. Members of the
Board who did not attend such on-site meetings did not receive the
updates. However, the management would provide detailed updates
to all the Directors on a half-yearly and yearly basis. In the event there
are any significant updates to be provided, the management will
update all the Directors as early as practicable for discussion and
resolution. The Company also has in place a system for every Director
to make enquiries with the senior management about the business
operation of the Group and to give suggestions or feedback in the
event such Director is not able attend the monthly on-site updates
session.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The Audit Committee reviews and monitors the independent auditor’s
independence, objectivity and effectiveness of the audit process. It
receives each year letter from the independent auditor confirming
their independence and objectivity and holds meetings with
representatives of the independent auditor to consider the scope of
its audit, approve its fees, and the scope and appropriateness of non-
audit services, if any, to be provided by it. The Audit Committee also
makes recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
retention of the independent auditor.

The remuneration paid or payable to the independent auditor of the
Company for audit services for the year ended 31 December 2015
were approximately HK$1,700,000.

The remuneration paid or payable to the independent auditor of the
Company for non-audit services for the year ended 31 December
2015 were HK$363,000.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company, Mr. Yu Hok Sum, is a full-
time employee of the Group. According to rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules, Mr. Yu Hok Sum has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training for the year ended 31 December 2015. Please
refer to his biographical details as set out on page 60 of this annual
report.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

There are no significant changes in the Articles and the memorandum
of association of the Company during the Year.

Pursuant to article 58 of the Articles, members holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the Company, to
require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

During the Year, the Board complied with the Code provisions on risk
management and internal control as set out in the Code. The Board
has overall responsibility for evaluating and determining the nature
and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group’s
strategic objectives, and maintaining appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems for the Group. The systems
are designed to manage the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The management of the Company has established a set of
comprehensive policies, standards and procedures in areas of
operational, financial and risk controls for safeguarding assets against
unauthorized use or disposition; for maintaining proper accounting
records; and for ensuring the reliability of financial information to
achieve a satisfactory level of assurance against the likelihood of the
occurrence of fraud and errors.

The Board has overseen the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems on an ongoing basis. A year end review of
the effectiveness of the Company’s and its subsidiaries’ risk
management and internal control systems has been conducted
annually and the systems are considered to be effective and
adequate. The Company also has an internal audit function to carry
out the analysis and independent appraisal of the adequacy and
effectiveness of the systems, and has procedures in place to keep
information confidential and manage actual or potential conflicts of
interest. Stringent internal structures have been designed to prevent
the misuse of inside information and avoid conflicts of interest.

SENDING ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD AND
PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETINGS

Shareholders or investors can contact the Company in the following
ways to make enquiry or to provide suggestions:

Contact Person: Mr. Yu Hok Sum, Company Secretary
Tel: (852) 3904 1867
Postal Address: Room 2702, China Resources Building,
26 Harbour Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong

To put forward proposals at a general meeting, the shareholders
should submit a written notice of those proposals with detailed
contact information to the company secretary of the Company at the
Company’s principal place of business stated above.

Merry Garden Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015
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The Directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report together
with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of Company is investment holding and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 17 to the
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group’s business and its outlook are set out in the
sections of Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and
Analysis. Certain financial key performance indicators are provided in
the section of Financial Summary. Since the end of the financial year
under review, the Board proposed to change the English name of the
Company from “Merry Garden Holdings Limited” to “China
Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited” and the
Chinese name of the Company from “ZEB R B AR A7) to “&
RHEY)ZERZ AR A F)” on 20 January 2016.

The Group complies with the requirements under the Companies
Ordinance, the Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQO”) for the disclosure of information and corporate
governance. The Group also complies with the requirements of
Employment Ordinance and ordinances relating to occupational
safety for the interest of employees of the Group.
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The Group respects the environment and is committed to minimizing
its carbon footprint as a socially responsible enterprise. Carbon
footprint is defined as the total amount of direct and indirect
emissions of Green House Gases (GHGs) expressed in terms of the
equivalent amount of Carbon Dioxide of (CO,) emission. Non-
hazardous wastes produced from the Group mainly consist of used
paper such as office papers and marketing materials. To minimize the
impact on carbon footprint and the environment, the Group
implements the following practices to use paper efficiently:

° Duplex printing is set as the default mode for most network
printers;

° Employees are reminded to practice photocopying wisely;
° Employees are encouraged to use both sides of paper;
° Paper is separated from other waste for easier recycling; and

° Boxes and trays are placed beside photocopiers as containers
to collect single-sided paper for reuse purpose.

Electricity consumption is identified as having an adverse impact on
the environment and natural resources. A typical commercial building
uses more energy for lighting than for other electric equipment. The
Group is determined to reduce energy consumption and implement
conservation practices to reduce the effect of carbon footprint. Air
conditioning and light zone arrangements reduce unnecessary
electricity usage; employees enforce good practices in maintenance
of lighting and electric equipment to ensure they are kept in good and
proper condition to maximize efficiency.

Key Risk Factors

The following lists out the key risks and uncertainties facing the
Group.

Impact of Local and International Regulations

The business operation of the Group is also subject to government
policy, relevant regulations and guidelines established by the
regulatory authorities. Failure to comply with the rules and
requirements may lead to penalties, amendments or suspension of
the business operation by the authorities. The Group closely monitors
changes in government policies, regulations and markets as well as
conducting studies to assess the impact of such changes.

Merry Garden Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015
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Third-Party Risks

The Group has been relying on third-party service providers in parts
of business to improve performance and efficiency of the Group.
While gaining the benefits from external service providers, the
management realizes that such operational dependency may pose a
threat of vulnerability to unexpected poor or lapses in service
including reputation damage, business disruption and monetary
losses. To address such uncertainties, the Group engages only
reputed third-party providers and closely monitors their performance.

Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers

The Group recognizes the accomplishment of the employees by
providing comprehensive benefit packages career development
opportunities and internal training appropriate to individual needs. The
Group provides a healthy and safe workplace for all employees. No
strikes and cases of fatality due to workplace accidents occurred
during the Year.

The Group encompasses working relationships with suppliers to meet
our customers’ needs in an effective and efficient manner. The
departments work closely to make sure the tendering and
procurement process is conducted in an open, fair and just manner.
The Group’s requirements and standards are also well-
communicated to suppliers before the commencement of a project.

The Group values the views and opinions of all customers through
various means and channels, including usage of market research to
understand customer trends and needs and regular analyze on
customer feedback. The Group also conducts comprehensive tests
and checks to ensure that only quality products and services are
offered to the customers.

RESULTS & DIVIDENDS

Results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 63. Other
movements in reserves are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 67.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: HK$0.005 (equivalent to
approximately RMB0.004)).
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 7 of this annual
report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2015 are set out in note 27(c) to the
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2015, the Company’s aggregate amounts of
reserves available for distribution were approximately
RMB631,622,000 (2014: RMB327,425,000), of which nil (2014:
RMB5,409,000) has been proposed as a final dividend for the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or
applicable laws of the Cayman Islands where the Company was
incorporated.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment are set out in note 11 to
the financial statements.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of the Group’s bank loans and other borrowings are set out in
notes 24 and 26 to the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for approximately 33.5% (2014: 24.5%) of the
Group’s total revenue and the Group’s largest customer for the year
accounted for approximately 9.9% (2014: 5.6%) of the Group’s total
revenue. The Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 39.0% (2014: 46.0%) of the Group’s total purchases,
while the largest supplier for the year accounted for approximately
14.6% (2014: 16.6%) of the Group’s total purchases.

Merry Garden Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015
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To the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors or their
respective close associates or any of the shareholders of the
Company who owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital has any interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers or
suppliers.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had 690 (2014: 601) employees
in total. The table below shows a breakdown of the Group’s
employees by their responsibilities:

REEFHN BEETEFIRSEENED
B9 A SR AE A 5% I b AR A A1 S BT IR A
AR ABREN AR B EAR P SR A
s -

—E—RAF+_A=+—H AEEHXE60
BE(ZZT—VU4F :6018) - TRAKRKSEZ
PRAREEEERRMA -

2015

—E—1%F

Management, Finance & Administration BIE - BT RAITER 48
Sales & Marketing HE R 54
Design Ha 39
Research & Development e 29
Production E 494
Quality Control ' B 26
Total 5T 690

Total staff costs for the year ended 31 December 2015 amounted to
approximately RMB41,967,000 (2014: RMB33,823,000) and the
details are set out in note 6(b) to the financial statements.
Remuneration for employees is based upon their qualification,
experience, job nature, performance and market condition.

The Group has established various welfare plans including the
provision of pension funds, medical insurance, unemployment
insurance and other relevant insurance for employees who are
employed by the Group pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
PRC and the existing policy requirements of the local government.
The Group also maintains the employee short-term health insurance
and unforeseen injury insurance. In addition, the Group provides staff
quarters to its employees.

Directors and qualified employees of the Company may be granted
share options to subscribe for shares in the Company in accordance
with the terms and conditions of the Share Option Scheme (as
defined below).
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DIRECTORS

Throughout the Year, the composition of the Board was as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Wang Jingjun (appointed on 5 August 2015)
Mr. Wu Zheyan

Mr. Wu Qingshan (resigned on 2 April 2016)*
Ms. Xie Qingmei

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Wu Dongping
Mr. Lee Kong Wai, Conway (resigned on 30 September 2015)*

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Lam Hin Chi
Prof. Jin Zhongwei
Prof. Su Wengiang

A description of the Directors is set out in the section headed “Board
of Directors and senior management” in this annual report.

*On 2 April 2016, Mr. Wu Qingshan resigned as an executive Director
to devote more time to his family and to attend to his personal affairs.

*On 30 September 2015, Mr. Lee Kong Wei, Conway resigned as a
non-executive Director and deputy chairman of the Company in order
to devote more time to his other business commitments.

Indemnity of Directors

The Company has maintained appropriate directors and officers
liability insurance and such permitted indemnity provision for the
benefit of the Directors is currently in force and was in force
throughout the year.

Merry Garden Holdings Limited
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions of the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of part XV of the SFO) which would
have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to divisions 7 and 8 of part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which he is taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or which will be required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein or
which will be required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules, will be as follows:

Interest in shares

ESERERTHRAERKR®D - HE
RORESHEZRAR

RZZ—AF+=-—A=+—H EFFHAELQa"
BAITBRABEARAG REBEZE(ERRESH
REAEEBIE XV ER) AR5 - ABRARR (D K EH
BERBESFRBAEGRIEXVHETRESHH
ARG ARNT R R R AR (BIERE
FH R EE GG 6A B O 2 1E SR A
BREmRAR) - SURIRE F R EIE G5 352
1RZBR0 ARG FT i B 7o i sk AR I% T iR BB 8% 10
FT#l E BT AEFTRITESF T FIRLETRIE
MERAR RS EABIAT

Approximate
percentage of

Number of shareholding
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest shares interest (%)
SR EH
EERR S BEKHE K& H B (%)
Mr. Wang Jingjun Beneficial owner/Long position 136,300,000 5.30%
ITRFEELE EnBEBEAN TR
Mr. Wu Zheyan Interest in controlled corporation/ 405,637,412 15.76%
REEHKE Long position (Note)
TRt EENERS TR (HiT)
Beneficial owner/Long position 11,002,940 0.43%
EnHEAAN R
Mr. Wu Qingshan Beneficial owner/Long position 26,767,828 1.04%
(resigned on 2 April 2016)  B#EEH A IFE
REIEE
(RZZ—REFMAZHEHE)
Ms. Xie Qingmei Beneficial owner/Long position 9,633,380 0.37%
AEER LT EREBAN TR

Note: Mr. Wu Zheyan is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Green Seas

Capital Limited, his wholly-owned company.

Kzt REEFLREHR AR E S E WA K QA Green Seas
Capital Limited #5745 89 17 * # 5 #E2s ©
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executive of
the Company had interests or in short positions in the shares,
underlying shares of equity derivatives or debentures of the Company
or any associated corporation defined under the SFO which would
have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to divisions 7 and 8 of part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which he is taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or which will be required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein or
which will be required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules as at 31 December 2015.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

Other than the agreement for sale and purchase of parts and
structures of timber villas entered into with Zhangping Jiupengxi
Ecological Tourism Development Company Limited as disclosed in
the section headed “Continuing connected transactions”, no
contracts of significance to which the Company, its holding company,
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or the
Controlling Shareholders (as defined below) of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at
the end of the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

None of the Directors or their respective close associates has any
competing interests which need to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10
of the Listing Rules.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2015, the following persons (other than a director
or chief executive of the Company), who had interests or short
positions in the shares or the underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Division 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which would be required, pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, were as follows:

Interest in shares

FERRRAQTARG RBEKD
MERRAE

RoB—RF+=A=+—R THALTCGEH
BEARRABMRITHAR) RAR TR 547
RIS S A IR IR A R DI XV B E 2 R
F0HBHEXATRBOMBIAR « HRKE
% B E (DI E 336 B R AZIEFTA B M
R SAE

|

Wetn ek

Approximate
percentage of

Number of shareholding
Name Capacity/Nature of interest shares interest (%)
SRR B
&/ e Bin EaKE Bir8H B (%)
Green Seas Capital Limited Beneficial owner/ 405,637,412 15.76%
Long position (Note 1)
EnBEAN 1B (K1)
Hong Kong Investments Group Limited Beneficial owner/ 134,700,000 5.23%
BERREEEBRAA Long position (Note 2)
EnBEaA e (Hid2)
Mr. Cheung Chi Mang Interest in controlled corporation/ 134,700,000 5.23%

SRE A Long position (Note 2)

Rt EE SRR TR (HiE2)
Notes: Kiet :
1. The entire issued share capital of Green Seas Capital Limited is legally and

beneficially owned by Mr. Wu Zheyan, who is deemed to be interested in the
shares held by Green Seas Capital Limited.

2. The entire issued share capital of Hong Kong Investments Group Limited is legally
and beneficially owned by Mr. Cheung Chi Mang, who is deemed to be interested
in the shares held by Hong Kong Investments Group Limited.

1. Green Seas Capital Limited 8% &f 2 21T A th R ¥ =
SERERBERHRA + REEFEWR AR Green Seas
Capital Limited 154 8 A& {5 7 #E A 1 2 o

2. ERRESEARDANEZHEHTRARREELE
BERERER  REEEERERANEBRESES
RABSAN D T EEEL -

AEFELRERAT
e
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Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any person,
other than the Directors whose interests are set out in the section
“Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short positions in
shares, underlying shares and debentures” above, who had an
interest or short positions in the shares or underlying shares that were
required to be disclosed under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or recorded pursuant to Section 336 of Part XV
of the SFO as of 31 December 2015.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to a resolution passed by all the shareholders on 15 June
2012, the Company has conditionally adopted the share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of recognising
and acknowledging the contributions the eligible participants had or
may have made to the Group. The Board may, at its discretion, grant
options pursuant to the Share Option Scheme to the Directors
(including executive Directors, non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors), the directors of the Company’s
subsidiaries and employees of the Group and any other persons
(including consultants or advisers) whom the Board considers, in its
absolute discretion, have contributed or will contribute to the Group.
The Directors were authorised to grant options to subscribe for
shares of the Company and to allot, issue and deal with the shares
pursuant to the exercise of options granted under the Share Option
Scheme and to take all such steps as may be necessary and/or
desirable to implement and give effect to the Share Option Scheme.
The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and under any other share
option schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the total number of shares in issue immediately following
completion of the Global Offering (as defined in the Company’s
prospectus dated 25 June 2012), being 100,000,000 shares,
excluding any shares that may be issued under the options which
have lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme (or any other share option schemes of the Company), unless
otherwise approved by the shareholders of the Company in general
meeting and/or such other requirements prescribed under the Listing
Rules from time to time.
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Unless otherwise approved by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting, the number of shares that may be granted to an
eligible participant under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company (including both exercised and
outstanding options) shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue of the
Company within any 12-month period. Any grant of options to a
Director, chief executive or substantial shareholder (as defined in the
Listing Rules) of the Company or any of their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) is required to be approved by our
independent non-executive Directors. Unless otherwise approved by
the shareholders of the Company in general meeting and/or such
other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules, the number of
shares that may be granted to a substantial shareholder or any
independent non-executive Director or their respective associates
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company (including both exercised and outstanding options)
shall not exceed 0.1% of the shares in issue, having an aggregate
value in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period.

There is no minimum period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised, and the period during which an option may be
exercised will be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion,
however, no options shall be exercised 10 years after they have been
granted. The subscription price of a share in respect of a particular
option shall be not less than the highest of (a) the official closing price
of the shares on the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange; (b)
the average official closing price of the shares on the daily quotation
sheet of the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (c) the nominal value of a share. The
Share Option Scheme shall take effect from the date it is adopted
and shall remain effective within a period of 10 years from that date.

From the date that the Share Option Scheme became effective and
unconditional and up to the date of this annual report, no share
options were granted under the Share Option Scheme.

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of ordinary
shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme is
100,000,000, representing 3.89% of the issued shares of the
Company.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the Year, the Company repurchased a total of 2,000,000
Shares at an aggregate purchase price of HK$1,518,660 on the
Stock Exchange as the Board believed the then share price of the
Company was significantly below its intrinsic valuation and presented
a good opportunity for the Company to repurchase its shares and
show confidence in the future prospect of the Company. The
repurchased Shares were cancelled on 2 February 2015.

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 4 May 2015, Green Oceans Investment Holdings Limited (“Green
Oceans”, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) entered
into the acquisition agreement with World Sheen Group Limited (the
“Vendor”) and the Company pursuant to which the Vendor agreed to
sell, and Green Oceans agreed to purchase the entire shareholding of
Unicreed Holdings Limited together with its wholly-owned subsidiary
(collectively known as the “Target Group”) at a consideration of
HK$63,333,000 (approximately RMB49,303,000), which shall be
satisfied by payment of HK$13,833,000 (approximately
RMB11,080,000) in cash and allotment and issue of 66,000,000
ordinary shares by the Company (the “Consideration Shares”) at an
issue price of HK$0.75 per share (the “Acquisition”).

Completion of the Acquisition (“Completion”) shall be conditional
upon the fulfilment or waiver of the following conditions: (a) the Listing
Committee of the Stock Exchange having granted the listing of, and
permission to deal in, the Consideration Shares; (b) all other requisite
consents, authorisations and approvals (or, as the case may be, the
relevant waiver) in connection with the entering into and performance
of the terms of the acquisition agreement having been obtained by
the Vendor and the Target Group; (c) all other requisite consents,
authorisations and approvals (or, as the case may be, the relevant
waiver) in connection with the entering into and performance of the
terms of acquisition agreement having been obtained by Green
Oceans and the Company; (d) the warranties in the acquisition
agreement remaining true, accurate and complete in all respects and
not misleading in any respect as at Completion; (e) Green Oceans
being satisfied that there has been no material adverse change as at
Completion; (f) no breach of obligations and undertakings given by
the Vendor under the acquisition agreement to be performed before
Completion having occurred; (g) Green Oceans being satisfied with its
due diligence on the Target Group; and (h) the Vendor and its ultimate
beneficial owners having waived all their respective rights (if any)
under the interest-free shareholder’s loan in the sum of approximately
RMB34,970,000 granted by the Vendor and/or its ultimate beneficial
owners to the Target Group.
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The Group has been identifying and exploring suitable projects and/or
investment with good profit potential for acquisition so as to diversify
the Group’s business and bring return to its shareholders. The
Directors believed that the Target Group has good growth potential,
in addition, with the advanced technologies of the Target Group,
effective facilitation would be available for the intellectualisation of the
Group’s timber house products, constituting a more value adding
business to the Group. The Directors further believed that the
Acquisition was beneficial to the Company and its shareholders. The
Directors considered the terms of the Acquisition to be fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Company and its shareholders
as a whole.

The Acquisition was completed on 13 May 2015 and 66,000,000
ordinary shares were issued and allotted at the price of HK$0.75 per
share.

FORMATION OF A JOINT VENTURE COMPANY

On 8 July 2015, King Wood (Hong Kong) Holding Limited (“King
Wood”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into an agreement (the “Joint Venture Agreement”) with HK Ebin Co.,
Limited (‘HK Ebin”)and E W % ST REIREKRELE BR A 7
(Liancheng County Zhailong Tourism Investment and Operations Co.,
Ltd.) (“Zhailong”) in relation to the formation of a joint venture
company in the PRC to be engaged in the development and
operation of a timber villas hotel project located at Guanzhai Mountain
(a National 4As tourist attraction), Liangcheng County, Fujian
Province, the PRC. The total investment on such project is expected
to be approximately RMB200,000,000 and the Group will be mainly
responsible for the construction works.

The parties to the Joint Venture Agreement agreed that the joint
venture company will be owned as to 40% by King Wood, 30% by
HK Ebin and 30% by Zhailong.

Pursuant to the Joint Venture Agreement, the registered capital of the
joint venture company is RMB100,000,000 which will be contributed
as to RMB40,000,000 by King Wood, RMB30,000,000 by HK Ebin
and RMB30,000,000 by Zhailong. Further capital contributions shall
be made by the parties to the Joint Venture Agreement as considered
necessary in meeting capital requirement for the development of the
timber villas hotel project. Further capital contributions shall be made
in accordance to the parties’ respective shareholding in the joint
venture company.
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The Group intends to finance its share of the capital contribution to
the joint venture company of RMB40,000,000 by internal resources.

The Directors believe that significant opportunities will be brought to
the Group by the formation of the joint venture company. Through
direct involvement in the development of this project, it allows the
Group to more closely capture the trend driven by the flourishing
development of Chinese tourism, and solidify the Group’s leading
positions in both of the leisure tourist facility developer and wood
processing industry in China.

The Directors consider that the transactions contemplated under the
Joint Venture Agreement are in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group and the terms of the Joint Venture Agreement
are based on normal commercial terms and are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

SUBSCRIPTION

For the purpose of raising capital and broadening the shareholder
base and capital base of the Company, on 24 July 2015, the
Company entered into an agreement with the subscribers for the
subscription of the shares of the Company (“Subscription
Agreement”).

Pursuant to the subscription agreement entered into with the
subscribers on 24 July 2015 (“Subscription”), the subscribers have
conditionally agreed to subscribe for and the company has
conditionally agreed to allot and issue a total of 272,600,000 shares
(“Subscription Shares”) at the subscription price of HK$0.55 per
Subscription Share (“Subscription Price”). The closing price per
ordinary share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on 23 July 2015,
being the date of the Subscription Agreement was HK$0.65. The net
subscription price was HK$0.55 per Subscription Share.

The aggregate gross and net proceeds from the Subscription were
approximately HK$149,930,000 and approximately HK$149,730,000
respectively. The Company retained the net proceeds of the
Subscription for capital expenditure to increase production capacity
of the Group’s products and as general working capital of the Group.

The Directors consider that the Subscription represented
opportunities to raise additional funding for the Group’s business
operation and strengthen the financial position for the Group’s
business developments and broaden the Shareholders base of the
Company. The Directors also considered the Subscription as a
preferred method of fund raising as compared with other equity fund
raising exercises based on the time and costs involved.
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The Subscription was completed on 5 August 2015 and 272,600,000
ordinary shares were issued and allotted.

Save as the disclosed above neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year ended 31 December 2015.

The Directors consider that it is in the interests of the Company to
raise capital from the equity market in order to enhance the capital
base of the Company. The usage of the net proceeds raised under
the subscription above are disclosed in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis — Financial Review — Use of
Net Proceeds from the Global Offering, Placing and Subscription” in
this report.

OPEN OFFER

On 30 October 2015, the Company announced its proposal to raise
funds by way of an open offer (“Open Offer”) of 857,945,000 ordinary
shares (“Offer Share(s)”) at the subscription price of HK$0.2 per Offer
Share on the basis of one (1) Offer Share for every two (2) existing
shares held in the Company.

The Open Offer was conditional upon the fulfilment certain conditions
details of which were previously disclosed in the Company’s
announcements dated 18 October 2015, 10 October 2015, 10
November 2015, 17 November 2015, 18 December 2015, 22
December 2015 respectively and the prospectus dated 26 November
2015 available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s
website, www.merrygardenholdings.com.

The Company sought to conduct the open offer to strengthen its
capital base and provide sufficient surplus capital to support future
development of the existing and future businesses of the Group as
well as to strengthen its working capital.

The Open Offer closed on 10 December 2015 and a total of 13 valid
acceptances of Offer Shares was received for a total number of
348,220,800 Offer Shares, representing approximately 40.59% of the
total number of 857,945,000 Offer Shares available for subscription
under the Open Offer.

REFHER-_FT-AF/\ARHAZEK  RE#
17 K Fid 3 272,600,000 AR 3@ ©

BREXREEIN BE-Z-AF+_A=1+—
BILFE  ARBAREEFAMBARGERE -
HEXBOERARRE ETES

BEERR BRATSEENIRARBRBRA
ERTEARARNMNE - B RBEEREENN
BREFEZERBEAFRARE [FRE®
o — WSO — 2REE  RELRRBES
BEFTSRIBF BRG] —80 -

NERBE

R-ZZE—AF+A=Z+H ARAsHhEfEE
BURBESREERDOBITIENARFF
ENEMRBEEROHEZE —NREERNH 2
EENFRBEE ([ AFRES ) 857,945,000 1% & i@
AR (TBEERMD ) #EITEE o

NABERGTERE THRGERTSEE - ARG
HEAMBEHRBERAARBHEIRA-S—AF+
A+N\B - ZZf—haF+A+B  ZF—4LF
+—A+A - ZE—HF+—-A++tH =%
—REF+ZATN\B - ZE-—RFTAZ+=
BZRAHUAR-_Z—AF+—A=-+<A2Z
Bk ERCHE RN &AR DA
www.merrygardenholdings.com) ©

AR FHETT AR B E LAG o FUE AR KR 1247
TR BBEAHARBIRE FRKEBHE
B ARMBREEERS

AHABER-_T—RFT+ATHER  &HK
s B ERMD 2 BUEN BHEA
348,220,800 IR E X fn - (h A EIE T Al
Rz B E R M A H857,945,0000% 2 £
40.59% °

51



52

Directors’ Report continved)
EFEL

The Directors are of the view that the fundraising through the Open
Offer is in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a
whole.

The usage of the net proceeds raised under the Open Offer above
are disclosed in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis — Financial Review — Use of Net Proceeds from the Global
Offering, Placing and Subscription” in this report.

BONUS ISSUE

On 26 March 2015, the Board announced that the Directors
recommended a bonus issue (“Bonus Issue”) on the basis of one
bonus share (“Bonus Share(s)”) for every 100 shares held in the
Company. The Bonus Shares were credited as fully paid by way of
capitalization of an amount of about HK$136,300 in the share
premium account of the Company. The Bonus Shares would rank
pari passu in all respects with the shares including the entitlement to
receiving dividends and other distributions on the record date for
which is on or after the date of allotment and issue of the Bonus
Shares.

The Bonus Issue was conditional upon the fulfillment
certain conditions details of which were previously disclosed in
the Company’s announcements dated 26 March 2015, 2 April
2015 and circular dated 10 April 2015 available on the
Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website,
www.merrygardenholdings.com.

The Board believes that the Bonus Issue is a return to the support of
the Shareholders. The Bonus Issue will also allow the Shareholders
to participate in the business growth of the Company by way of
capitalisation of a portion of the share premium account.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Listing Rules requires that at least 25% of an
issuer’s total issued share capital must at all times be held by the
public. Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company
has maintained sufficiency of public float at all times during the Year.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following transactions of the Group constituted non-exempt
continuing connected transactions (“Continuing Connected
Transactions”) for the Company during the Year under the Listing
Rules:

Sales to Zhangping Jiupengxi Ecological Tourism Development
Company Limited (“Connected Party”)

The Connected Party is 85% owned by Mr. Wu Zheyan and 10%
owned by his mother.

Since December 2010, the Group has entered into a series of
transactions with Connected Party by selling parts and structures of
timber villas to Connected Party. In order to regulate the said
transactions, we have entered into the Agreement for Sale and
Purchase of Parts and Structures of Timber Villas (KRB &4 M AKE R
JE R $HE MERIBIE 2R 1ok
2012 (the “Connected Party Agreement”), pursuant to which we shall

) with the Connected Party on 15 June

sell parts and structures of timber villas to Connected Party for the
three years ending 31 December 2014 at the price to be agreed
following arm’s length negotiations between the parties with reference
to the production costs and the price offered to independent third
parties. The Connected Party Agreement have been renewed and
further extended to 31 December 2015.

Our aggregate sales to Connected Party were RMB3,554,000 (2014
RMB7,474,000) for the year ended 31 December 2015. For details,
please refer to note 30 to the financial statements.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed these
continuing connected transactions and confirmed that such
transactions were:

— entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

— conducted either on normal commercial terms or, if there are
not sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether they
are on normal commercial terms, on terms no less favourable
to the Group than terms available to or from independent third
parties; and
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— in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditors of the Company, KPMG, have confirmed in a letter to
the Board that nothing has come to their attention that caused them
to believe that the Continuing Connected Transactions in the year
ended 31 December 2015 (i) had not been approved by the Board of
the Company, (i) were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Group, (iii) were not
entered into, in material respects, in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing such transactions, and (iv) had exceeded the
cap disclosed in the Company’s prospectus dated 25 June 2012.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken in the
normal course of business are provided under note 30 to the financial
statements, and none of which constitutes a discloseable connected
transaction as defined under the Listing Rules.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

The Company entered into a deed of non-competition (the “Deed of
Non-Competition”) with Mr. Wu Zheyan and Green Seas Capital
Limited (collectively referred to as the “Controlling Shareholders”) on
15 June 2012 so as to better safeguard the Group from any potential
competition and to formalise the principles for the management of
potential conflicts between them and to enhance our corporate
governance in connection with the listing of the Company’s shares on
the Stock Exchange.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed compliance
by the Controlling Shareholders and confirm that based on
confirmations and information provided by each of the Controlling
Shareholders, they were in compliance with the Deed of Non-
Competition during the Year.

The independent non-executive Directors were not required to review
any matter in relation to compliance and enforcement of the Deed of
Non-Competition during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No management contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of any business of
the Group were entered into or existed during the Year.

Merry Garden Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015
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Directors’ Report continuea)
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DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group supported a wide variety of charitable
activities in Hong Kong and the PRC. Donations of approximately
HK$515,150 (RMB430,000) were made by the Group to various
charitable organisations.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware that any holders of securities of the
Company are entitled to any tax relief or exemption by reason of their
holding of such securities.

AUDITOR

KPMG will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the reappointment of KPMG as auditor
of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Wang Jingjun
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2016

=L

NEE  NEBAPEMMNZHEES TERM
BB mSESHAEREEL 5151508 T (ARE
430,000 7C) ©

B R R
AARRETREAAR B S 2 EAHEABLR
EEMESMEEEARBAL -

B BED

LERGHAEHHSGRE  LHAAHAR
BRISE(T - BERSAGHAESHARAT
REEAR RN EERTEFAS LIRS -

REE=S

BE —TE—RFE=ZA=-1+NH

ZESEZRARAT | 55

e



Board of Directors and Senior Management
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Biographies of each member of the board of directors and senior
management team of the Company during the Year and/or as at the
date of this report are set out below:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Jingjun (Mr. Wang), aged 45, was appointed as an
executive Director on 5 August 2015 and as the Chairman on 12
August 2015. Mr. Wang has over 20 years of experience in corporate
management. He founded a number of integrated enterprises in Hong
Kong and Shenzhen, the PRC which focused on international trade,
with trading partners covering the PRC, Taiwan, Australia and the
Philippines. Mr. Wang has accumulated rich industry experience in
international trade and financial investments.

Wu Zheyan (Mr. Wu), aged 36, is an executive Director and chief
executive officer of the Company. Mr. Wu was appointed as a
Director on 17 October 2011. He joined Fujian Zhangping Kimura
Forestry Products Co. Ltd (“Zhangping Kimura”) as a workshop
director since 1997 and obtained knowledge and experiences in the
timber products industry including the production process, research
and development works and the invention process of new timber
products. Mr. Wu became the general manager in May 2000 and the
director and legal representative of Zhangping Kimura in January
2006.

Mr. Wu graduated from Sichuan University in June 2009 with a
Diploma in business administration (Distance education). Mr. Wu is
the visiting professor of Central South University of Forestry and
Technology and Fujian Agriculture and Forestry University. Mr. Wu is
a son of Mr. Wu Dongping.
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Board of Directors and Senior Management coninved)
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Xie Qingmei (Ms. Xie), aged 48, was appointed as a Director on
15 June 2012. Ms. Xie is primarily responsible for procurement
matters in respect of the Group. She has over 12 years of experience
in corporate management and procurement. Ms. Xie joined the Group
in 1999, and she has been a deputy general manager of Zhangping
Kimura since 2001 and a director of Zhangping Kimura since 2006.
Ms. Xie was in charge of the sales department of Zhangping Kimura
as well as supervising procurement from June 1999 to December
2000, and has been running the procurement department of
Zhangping Kimura since 2003.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Wu Dongping, aged 61, is a non-executive Director of the Company
since 15 June 2012 and is also the founder of our Group. Mr. Wu
Dongping was the chief engineer of Zhangping Kimura from February
2006 to November 2010. Before the founding of the Group, Mr. Wu
Dongping was the chairman and the general manager of Zhangping
Kimura from December 1995 to January 2006 and the director of
Zhangping Textile Machinery Factory in Fujian (@324 & F #4522 71
) from December 1992 to November 1995, respectively. Mr. Wu
Dongping has been a member of the Technical Committee of
Structural Use of Wood under the National Committee of
Standardisation Technology of Timber (2BAMZELFME B & 45
BRAMDRMZ 8 €). He was elected as a member of The 4th
Preservation Committee of Wood Industry Institute, Chinese Society
of Wood Industry (FEIMEBEARM TESEAMPRMRETESE
M JE £ 8 &) in April 2007 and was elected to the position of vice
president of the China Wood Preservation Industry Association (#
AW IRZELEWE) in October 2011. Mr. Wu Dongping has over 20
years of experience in the fields of wood processing, preservation and
timber structures. Mr. Wu Dongping has participated in, on behalf of
our Group, the drafting of two PRC national and forestry industry
standards, and has been involved in the reviewing of PRC national
and forestry industry standards.

Mr. Wu Dongping is the father of Mr. Wu.
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Board of Directors and Senior Management (continved)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Lam Hin Chi (Mr. Lam), aged 51, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company since 15 June
2012. Mr. Lam is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, and associates member of The Chartered
Institute of Management Accountants, The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, respectively. Mr. Lam graduated from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a Professional Diploma in
Management Accountancy and a Bachelor of Arts degree (Honours)
in Accountancy. Mr. Lam has over 26 years of experience in finance,
audit and accounting. Mr. Lam was a senior personnel of a number of
companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Lam is currently an independent non-executive director of VST
Holdings Limited (stock code: 856), which is listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange.

Professor Jin Zhongwei (Professor Jin), aged 78, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the Company
since 15 June 2012. He is an expert in wood preservation with over
37 years of experience in wood preservation. Professor Jin graduated
from Nanjing Forestry College in 1961 and majored in forestry
products chemical processing. He studied wood preservation and
modification technologies in the United States as a government-
appointed scholar from 1981 to 1983, and was a visiting scholar at
Oregon State University and Mississippi State University from 1994 to
1995 respectively.

Merry Garden Holdings Limited
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Board of Directors and Senior Management coninved)

Professor Su Wengiang (Professor Su), aged 60, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the Company
since 15 June 2012. Professor Su has more than 30 years of
experience in the research of forestry and timber products. Professor
Su was awarded as Model Member of the Communist Party (855t
EE 8) from 2006 to 2007, and was appointed as various positions
in timber industry, e.g., council member of Standing Committee of the
Heilongjiang Province Chemistry Society (28T &t TEEEEE) (in
December 2004), committee member of Wood Science Institute of
the Chinese Society of Forestry (ff Bl /2 & AR B2 5 &) (in April
2010), member of Board of Experts of Standardisation Committee of
China Timber and Wood Products Distribution Association Wood
Preservation Committee (FEBIARM EARE RRBHEAMPBHEEE
E&®HEXRIEEZEE) (n December 2009), member of Board of
Experts Committee of Standardisation Committee of China Wood
Preservation Industry Association (FFEIAMRETLEMEEREZTES)
(in October 2011), committee member of the Wood Preservation
Research Committee of the Wood Science Institute of the Chinese
Society of Forestry (FEBIMBGAMEZSEAMRERRXEEZESR) (n
April 2007) and editor of editorial committee of Biomass Chemical
Engineering published by Institute of Chemical Industry of Forest
Products (F BEIMERI SR ME LR T ERRACEME(RTIZ))
(in December 2010). Professor Su graduated from Northeast Forestry
University in July 1982, major in professional chemical processing of
forestry products (ME{LE T TIEFH ), and obtained a Doctorate
Degree in December 2008.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Chen Tianfu (Mr. Chen), aged 50, is the chief financial officer of
our Group. Since joining our Group in 2009, Mr. Chen has been
responsible for our Group’s financial management affairs. Prior to
joining our Group, Mr. Chen was in charge of the financial
departments of Jiangxi Sanhua Real Estate Co. Ltd. (TFI=%3E %4
A 7)) and Fujian Dufeng Sugar Factory (18 & & & & # &)
respectively. Mr. Chen has over 20 years of experience in corporate
financial management and possesses the qualifications of an
accountant in the PRC. Mr. Chen graduated from Fujian Quanzhou
Supply and Sales School (f&E& F N EE47) in 1986 majoring in
financial accounting with a secondary vocational school diploma.
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Board of Directors and Senior Management (continved)
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Yu Hok Sum (Mr. Yu), aged 32, joined our Group in October 2015,
is the group financial controller and company secretary of the Group.
Mr. Yu is responsible for our Group’s accounting and financial
management. Mr Yu has over 9 years of experience in finance,
accounting and auditing. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Yu had
worked for one of the big four international accounting firms and an
international valuation consultancy company. Mr. Yu holds a Master
of Corporate Governance degree from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He is a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Company Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators.
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Independent Auditor's Report
VR A Gl IEEn
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Merry Garden Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Merry
Garden Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”) set out on pages 63 to 168, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2015, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor's Report «contined)
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2015 and of the Group’s financial performance and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

29 March 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

A ETmK

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZE—
(Expressed in Renminbi) — (WAA ERH#517R)

—RFETA=T—ALFE

2015 2014
—E—-5f§ T
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HiaE AER®TT ARBT T
Revenue KA 4 639,999 701,231
Cost of sales SHER A (517,542) (522,818)
Gross profit EF 122,457 178,413
Other revenue EH bl A 5(a) 32,908 17,888
Other net (loss)/gain Hih (F518) W F 58 5(b) (7,030) 2,172
Selling and distribution expenses $HE R R (22,671) (21,714)
Administrative expenses THAX (55,554) (56,279)
Profit from operations EERR 70,110 120,480
Finance costs Bh& B A 6(a) (16,627) (11,326)
Share of profits of associates PaN ek /Nl 20 -
Profit before taxation BIRBIEF 6 53,503 109,154
Income tax FTiS®t 7(a) (9,701) (18,344)
Profit for the year FRRT 43,802 90,810
Earnings per share BERERF
Basic and diluted (RMB) AEAREEE (ARET) 10 0.0283 0.0796
The notes on pages 70 to 168 form part of these consolidated  $F70EHZ5 168 HMHI st BAGA B FEHREN —
financial statements. Details of dividends payable to equity &% o AR REZEFEAREEEFE NG

shareholders of the company attributable to the profit for the year are
set out in note 27(b).
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

srefEm M EM R E N E R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE T —RAF+_-_A=1+—HIFE
(Expressed in Renminbi)  (AA ER#517R)

2015 2014
—E—A%F —F—PF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBETT

Profit for the year FERNRF 43,802 90,810

Other comprehensive income for the year FREM2EKS

(after tax adjustment) (IERMEARE)
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to HiEnptBH Bk
profit or loss: HIEH :

Exchange differences on translation of financial ~— # & A R A0

statements of subsidiaries outside ([ EL ) AN 8~ 7

the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), B RREARE N =58 -

net of nil tax HBRZRIE 3,806 6
Total comprehensive income for the year FRZEWISHEEHE 47,608 90,816

HHMERARE M BRERM —

oy
W

The notes on pages 70 to 168 form part of these consolidated 270
financial statements. il
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

AR IR

At 31 December 20156 R=—Z—RF+-_A=+—8H
(Expressed in Renminbi) — (WAA ERH#517R)

2015 2014
—E—-5f§ —E=-mE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
KiaF AR®TRT ARBT T
Non-current assets JERENEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB MERE 11 466,501 293,935
Lease prepayments FETETK 12 100,032 50,290
Non-current prepayments for acquisitions — UsFE % - MR & 252 8
of property, plant and equipment FERNERTERT R 13 70,952 48,311
Interest in associates A =NEI L e 14 13,970 631
Goodwill RS 15 4,300 -
Other financial assets HhemEE 16 2,495 2,495
Deferred tax assets RLEFRIEEE 18(b) 5,269 5,414
663,519 401,076
Current assets mEEE
Inventories =g 19 336,409 297,528
Current portion of lease prepayments HEBNREENERH D 12 1,966 1,056
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E e U Fh8 20 290,525 278,660
Entrusted loans ZAEX - 30,000
Pledged deposits [z iERE 21 135,347 99,268
Cash and cash equivalents RERBREEED 22(a) 196,901 174,144
... .. 961,148 880,656
Current liabilities mE A fE
Trade and other payables 5 REMEFE 23 28,178 19,356
Bank loans RITER 24 322,459 345,699
Current portion of deferred income FEIEUR A B BN ERER > 25 1,163 1,163
Current taxation BNERH: I8 18(a) 25,744 29,198
. 377,544 395416
Net current assets REEESRE 583,604 485,240
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (contined)

AR SRR @

At 31 December 2016 W —ZF—AF+-H=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi)  (AA ER#517R)

2015 2014
—E-hHf§ T—mE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
KiaF AR®TRT AR#EFT
Total assets less current liabilities RREAABAK 1,247,123 886316
Non-current liabilities FERBER
Interest-bearing borrowings FAEEE 26 91,216 67,397
Non-current portion of deferred income IEFEY A B FERNEAEE 25 18,364 19,527
Deferred tax liabilities FEERIBEE 18(b) 2,033 2,050
R s . 88,974
NET ASSETS BEERE 1,135,510 797,342
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXRGEE
Capital B 27(c) 20,987 11,053
Reserves & 1,114,523 786,289
TOTAL EQUITY ERUEH 1,135,510 797,342

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29
March 2016.

Wu Zheyan
REE
Chief Executive Officer
TTECAE

The notes on pages 70 to 168 form part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
BABREBHR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ - —hAF+-_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi)  (WAA ER#51R)

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
FNFHRERHE AR

Share Share Exchange Statutory Retained
capital premium reserve reserve profits Total
(23 BiRRE ER R LT e 1]

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT ARETT ARBT ARETT ARETT
(note 27(c)  (note 27(d)fi)  (note 27(cl)(ii) (note 27(d)iii)

(Wiztere)  (Weteray)  (WEenam)  (HE2zo)i)

At 1 January 2014 R-S—-ME—-A—H 8,135 115,722 4,081 38,774 310,460 477,172
Changes in equity “E-MERSEE

for 2014:
Profit for the year FRET - - - - 90,810 90,810
Other comprehensive income  E ft 2 24 - - 6 - - 6
Total comprehensive income 2 E iz %8 - - 6 - 90,810 90,816
Issue of shares upon placing  BREE 1Tk A 2,918 236,753 - - - 239,671
Dividends approved and BEEERHER

paid in respect of BERERE

the previous year - (10,317) - - - (10,317)
Appropriations to statutory  E{EEEHE

reserve - - - 8,517 (8,517) -

2,918 226,436 - 8,517 (8,517) 229,354

At 31 December 2014 RIE-ME
and 1 January 2015 +ZA=+-HR

ZZ-1%-H-H 11,053 342,158 4,087 47,291 392,753 797,342
Changes in equity —E-LE{REE:
for 2015:
Profit for the year FRHA - - - - 43,802 43,802
Other comprehensive income £ 2 Bz - - 3,806 - - 3,306
Totalcomprehensive income.  2EMm&® I T 5806 T 4802 47,608
Issue of shares upon placing L& 1Tk 9,934 286,612 - - - 296,546
Dividends approved and BEFECHER
paid in respect of BERERS
the previous year - (5,986) - - - (5,986)
Appropriations to statutory A AT
reserve - - - 5,110 (6,110) -
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 994 ®06%6 - .50 B1O 290560
At 31 December 2015 RIE-E1F
+-A=1+—H 20,987 622,784 7,893 52,401 431,445 1,135,510

The notes on pages 70 to 168 form part of these consolidated 70 B ZE % 168 B M T ARG S B SR E —
financial statements. i



Gonsolidated Cash Flow Statement

an\ E/Eui JILE ?E

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HE T —RAF+-_A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Renminbi)  (WAA ER#51IR)

2015 2014
otk 8- 2 —E-mEF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HiaE AR®TR AERBTT
Operating activities EEEE
Cash (used in)/generated from KEER(FRA),/
operations g4 22(b) 45,965 (94,305)
Income tax paid EAFEH 18(a) (13,027) (9,397)
Net cash generated from/(used in) EE;EZEFRE (FRA)
operating activities B&B8d 32,938 (103,702)
Investing activities BEEE
Payment for the purchase of property, EEYE BEX
plant and equipment BY{EN (174,515) (105,550)
Payment for the purchase of TN EEHEEREN
lease prepayment (44,356) -
Receipt of government grants to B 3t & AR S Y
subsidise capital expenditure B & - 2,350
Interest received B U F 8 6,036 3,446
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash WBEKT B A A
acquired MEBFTERS 28(c)(i) 5,195
Payment for investment in associates FEERN kNG OE e (13,319) (900)
Entrusted loans repaid by/(granted to) B=HEERE/(BRTE=ZR)
third party TETER 30,000 (30,000)
Proceeds for disposal of property, HEDE  BEMEE
plant and equipment FREE e - 49
Net cash used in investing activities REEZEFFAR&FH (190,959) (130,6095)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continueq
;\\/\ Eﬁi/ﬂbi% %)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ - —hAF+-_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi)  (WAA ER#51R)

2015 2014
—E—LfF —T-mF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HiaE AE¥®TRT AR#EFT

Financing activities MEEE
Proceeds from new bank loans ISR ITE RS RIE 929,873 741,570
Repayments of bank loans %“ziﬂiﬁfém (946,415) (609,000)
Proceeds from issue of unsecured TEERERFTSHIE

debentures - 15,778
Increase in pledged deposits 2 EIE 0 (36,079) (30,667)
Interest paid 2AFLE (23,780) (13,617)
Dividend paid to equity shareholders SRR RIS R AL B

of the company (5,576) (10,317)
Net proceeds from issue of shares Al SRR TRR DM ATS

upon placing, net of issuing costs FOEFRE - HREITRY 258,323 239,671
Net cash generated from MEFHFRERESBHE

financing activites 176,346 333,418
Net increase in cash and cash HeRASEREY

equivalents BNRE 18,325 99,111
Cash and cash equivalents R—A—BHMBRE&RRE

at 1 January EED 174,144 75,052
Effect of foreign exchange EFEmneeE

rate changes 4,432 (19)
Cash and cash equivalents B+—RA=+—H1®

at 31 December ReRA&EEN 22(a) 196,901 174,144
The notes on pages 70 to 168 form part of these consolidated 70 B ZE % 168 B M T ARG S B SR E —
financial statements. o o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (58 #5751

BB HRERN T

GENERAL INFORMATION

Merry Garden Holdings Limited (“the Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 17 October 2011 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of
the Cayman Islands. The Company was listed on the Stock
Exchange on 6 July 2012.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as “the Group”). The consolidated financial
statements were authorised for issue by the Directors on 29
March 2016.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(@) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual IFRSs, International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”)
and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). A
summary of the significant accounting policies adopted
by the Group is set out below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group and the Company.
Note 2(c) provides information on any changes in
accounting policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant to
the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements.
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ARE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

B RS R M 5 )

(B =BT

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
RMB,
measurement basis used in the preparation of the

rounded to the nearest thousand. The

financial statements is the historical cost basis except that
derivative financial instruments are stated at their fair value
(see note 2(h)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
IFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
IFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 3.
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements (continved
‘RE SRR MY e )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(©

Changes in accounting policies

The IASB has issued the following amendments to IFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting period of
the Group and the Company:

— Amendments to IAS19, Defined benefit plans:
Employee Contributions

— Annual Improvement to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle-
various standards

— Annual Improvement to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle-
various standards

None of these developments have had a material effect
on how the Group’s results and financial position for the
current or prior periods have been prepared or presented.
The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and
other parties) are considered.

Merry Garden Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)

VN

NN

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

/JTjégiaiiﬁiﬁrngz(ég)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2())).

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over its management, including participation in the
financial and operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity
method. Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the
Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of the
investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted
for the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of
the investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating
to the investment (see note 2(l)(i)). Any acquisition-date
excess over cost, the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and any
impairment losses for the year are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of
the investees’ other comprehensive income is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)

AR E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

B SRR M 5 )

CEF-F -

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

©)

Associates (Continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee.
For this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity method
together with the Group’s long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associate are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the investee, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

In the Group’s statement of financial position, investments
in associates are stated at cost less impairment losses
(see note 2(1)).

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of:

()  The aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the
group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree; over

(i)  The net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the acquisition
date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)

ARE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

B RS R M 5 )

(B =BT

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(0

Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (see note 2())).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in
the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Other investments in equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments
in equity securities, other than investments in subsidiaries
and associates are as follows:

Investments in equity securities are initially stated at fair
value, which is their transaction price unless it is
determined that the fair value at initial recognition differs
from the transaction price and that fair value is evidenced
by a quoted price in an active market for an identical
asset or liability or based on a valuation technique that
uses only data from observable markets. Cost includes
attributable transaction costs, except where indicated
otherwise below. These investments are subsequently
accounted for as follows, depending on their
classification:

Investments in equity securities held for trading are
classified as current assets. Any attributable transaction
costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the
end of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured,
with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in profit
or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
does not include any dividends earned on these
investments as these are recognised in accordance with
the policies set out in note 2(v).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)

AR E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

B SRR M 5 )

CEF-F -

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(@)

Other investments in equity securities
(Continued)

Investments in equity securities which do not fall into any
of the above categories are classified as available-for-sale
securities. At the end of each reporting period the fair
value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the fair value reserve.
As an exception to this, investments in equity securities
that do not have a quoted price in an active market for an
identical instrument and whose fair value cannot otherwise
be reliably measured are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less impairment
losses (see note 2(l)). Dividend income from equity
securities are recognised in profit or loss in accordance
with the policies set out in note 2(v)(v).

When the investments are derecognised or impaired (see
note 2(l), the cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity
is reclassified to profit or loss. Investments are
recognised/derecognised on the date the Group commits

to purchase/sell the investments or they expire.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at
fair value. At the end of each reporting period the fair
value is remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement
to fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)

rAa

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

B RS R M 5 )

(B =BT

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

0)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 2()(ii)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which
they are located, and an appropriate proportion of
production overheads and borrowing costs (see note 2(x)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method over
the estimated useful lives as follows:

— Buildings The shorter of the unexpired term
of lease and their estimated useful
lives, being no more than 20 years
after the date of completion

— Leasehold Over the unexpired term of lease

improvement  but no more than 5 years

— Plant and 10 years

machinery

— Furniture, fittings 5 years
and equipment

— Motor vehicles 5 years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

B SRR M 5 )

CEF-F -

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

0)

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment under construction and equipment pending
installation, and is stated at cost less impairment losses
(see note 2(l)(ii)).
construction and installation during the construction

Cost comprises direct costs of

period. Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the
construction in progress is transferred to property, plant
and equipment when the asset is substantially ready for
its intended use.

No depreciation is provided in respect of the construction
in progress until it is substantially completed and ready for
its intended use.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use a
specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time in
return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation of the
substance of the arrangement and is regardless of

whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as being
held under finance leases. Leases which do not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the Group are classified as operating
leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B HERI » AN REZR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EAREEE®
(Continued)
(k) Leased assets (Continued) k) MHEEE@
(i) Operating lease charges (i) REHEEEH

Where the Group has the use of assets held under EAEEFREEHAESRE
operating leases, payments made under the leases BRIEE HME ERERMHELE
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments NEERZEKEHEEERE
over the accounting periods covered by the lease FH@mMER - FREERNRK
term, except where an alternative basis is more BZHERFTREN S FH
representative of the pattern of benefits to be NEEDHBEBERING - W3
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives M EERHTBEETRRER
received are recognised in profit or loss as an REEFNREENEXID
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments Dok BHSEEEANEE
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or HABBEmME -
loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.
The cost of acquiring land held under an operating NEEHEREN THHIE
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the AR B AR A E H A o

period of the lease term.

() Impairment of assets () EERE

(i) Impairment of trade and other receivables, () EBEIRHEMEKRRE  £XE
entrusted loans and investment in equity MR B AE 5 RENRE
securities
Trade and other receivables, entrusted loans and B85 REMEKTE  ZEE
investment in equity securities that are stated at KB DA RS 35 B B P A 51 R =K
cost or amortised cost or are classified as available- o B A i R SR RN R
for-sale securities are reviewed at the end of each FE ehsEREHREG
reporting period to determine whether there is REFRE UETAEGREM
objective evidence of impairment. Objective BEER - RENFREREE
evidence of impairment includes observable data UWN—ERZHES| EAEET
that comes to the attention of the Group about one ERERSHENABRRER -

or more of the following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor; - BEBALRERMK
E

- ERALD PlmERE

delinquency in interest or principal payments; BEEERNENARE

— a breach of contract, such as a default or

EEREEZERERLR
—E-hFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)

ARE B SRR MY R )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B S B R » AN REZTR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

()  Impairment of assets (Continued)

@

Impairment of trade and other receivables,
entrusted loans and investment in equity
securities (Continued)

it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment in an equity instrument
below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

For investment in associates accounted for
under the equity method in the consolidated
financial statements (see note 2(e)), the
impairment loss is measured by comparing
the recoverable amount of the investment with
its carrying amount in accordance with note
2(I)(ii). The impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount in
accordance with note 2(1)(ii).

For unquoted equity securities carried at cost,
the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial asset and the estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset where the
effect of discounting is material. Impairment
losses for equity securities carried at cost are
not reversed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)
T A BTSRRI EE @)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(A= EHETIN  UAREIT)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

(Continued)

()  Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of trade and other receivables,

entrusted loans and investment in equity

securities (Continued)

For trade and other receivables and entrusted
loans carried at amortised cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting is
material. This assessment is made collectively
where these financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for
financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset’s carrying amount
exceeding that which would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.

For other receivables carried at cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
asset and the estimated recoverable amount.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)

rE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

B SRR M 5 )

CEF-F -

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

()  Impairment of assets (Continued)

@

(1)

Impairment of trade and other receivables,
entrusted loans and investment in equity
securities (Continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of trade
receivables included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful
but not remote. In this case, the impairment losses
for doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery
is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is
written off against trade receivables directly and any
amounts held in the allowance account relating to
that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously charged to the allowance
account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance account
and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications except in the case of goodwill,
that the following assets may be impaired or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;

—  lease prepayments;

—  goodwill

— non-current prepayments for acquisitions of
property, plant and equipment; and

— investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B HERI » AN REZR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()  Impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether
or not there is any indication of impairment.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit).

—  Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the cash-generating unit (or group of units)
and then, to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or group of units)
on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), or value in use (if determinable).
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rE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

B SRR M 5 )
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

()  Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)
—  Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed. A reversal of an impairment loss is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount that
would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which
the reversals are recognised.

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance
with 1AS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of
the first six months of the financial year. At the end
of the interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal criteria
as it would at the end of the financial year (see
notes 2()(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill, available-for-sale equity
securities and unquoted equity securities carried at
cost are not reversed in a subsequent period. This
is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would
have been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year to
which the interim period relates. Consequently, if
the fair value of an available-for-sale equity security
increases in the remainder of the annual period, or
in any other period subsequently, the increase is
recognised in other comprehensive income and not
profit or loss.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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(A= EHETIN  UAREIT)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of
any reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised
as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as
an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Construction contracts

Construction contracts are contracts specifically
negotiated with a customer for the construction of an
asset or a group of assets, where the customer is able to
specify the major structural elements of the design. The
accounting policy for contract revenue is set out in note
2(v)(ii). When the outcome of a construction contract can
be estimated reliably, contract costs are recognised as an
expense by reference to the stage of completion of the
contract at the end of the reporting period. When it is
probable that total contract costs will exceed total
contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an
expense immediately. When the outcome of a
construction contract cannot be estimated reliably,
contract costs are recognised as an expense in the period
in which they are incurred.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Construction contracts (Continued)

Construction contracts in progress at the end of each
reporting period are recorded at the net amount of costs
incurred plus recognised profit less recognised losses and
progress billings, and are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position as the “Gross amount due
from customers for contract work” (as an asset) under
“Trade and other receivables” or the “Gross amount due
to customers for contract work” (as a liability) under
as applicable. Progress
billings not yet paid by the customer are included under

“Trade and other payables”,

“Trade and other receivables”. Amounts received before
the related work is performed are presented as “Receipts
in advance” under “Trade and other payables”.

Trade and other receivables and entrusted
loans

Trade and other receivables and entrusted loans are
initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see note 2())
(i)), except where the receivables are interest-free loans
made to related parties without any fixed repayment
terms or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In
such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less
allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see note 2())

(0)-

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised
in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using an effective
interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)

sre MR R Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

(Continued)

() Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition.

Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees.
Where payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at their
present values.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of
tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantially enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)

AR E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

B SRR M 5 )

CEF-F -

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

®

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into which a
tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried
back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which
the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)

ARE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

B RS R M 5 )

(B =BT

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

®

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided that they are not
part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in
the case of deductible differences, unless it is probable
that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement
of the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available.
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements (continved
‘RE SRR MY e )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

®

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise
the current tax assets and settle the current
tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Company or the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)

ARE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

B RS R M 5 )

(B =BT

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(W)

Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably,
revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the customer has
accepted the goods and the related risks and
rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value
added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

(i) Contract revenue

When the outcome of a construction contract can
be estimated reliably, revenue from a fixed price
contract is recognised using the percentage of
completion method, measured by reference to the
percentage of contract costs incurred to date to
estimated total contract costs for the contract.

When the outcome of a construction contract
cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised
only to the extent of contract costs incurred that it is
probable will be recoverable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)

AR E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

B SRR M 5 )

CEF-F -

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

V)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
(iii) Interest income

Interest income from bank deposits is recognised
as it accrues using the effective interest method.

(iv) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for
expenses incurred are recognised as income in
profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same
periods in which the expenses are incurred. Grants
that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset
are recognised as deferred income that is
recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis
over the useful life of the asset. An unconditional
government grant is recognised in profit or loss as
other revenue when the grant becomes receivable.

(v) Dividends
Dividend income from unlisted investments is

recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the period are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)

ARE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

B RS R M 5 )

(B =BT

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(w) Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

The results of operations with functional currency other
than Renminbi are translated into Renminbi at the
exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates of transactions. Statement of financial
position items, including goodwill arising on consolidation
of foreign operations acquired on or after 1 January 2005,
are translated into Renminbi at the closing foreign
exchange rates at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of an operation with functional currency other
than Renminbi, the cumulative amount of the exchange
differences relating to that operation with functional
currency other than Renminbi is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is
recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases
when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)

ARE B SRR MY R )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B S B R » AN REZTR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(y) Related parties

a.

A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

Vi.

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third party
and the other entity is an associates of the
same third party or vice versa.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly-controlled by
a person identified in (a).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)

ARE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

B RS R M 5 )

(B =BT

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

Related parties (Continued)

b. An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (Continued)

vii. A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

vii. ~ The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the group or to the
group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)

ARE B SRR MY R )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B S B R » AN REZTR)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 3
ESTIMATES

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The Group believes the following critical accounting policies
involve the most significant judgements and estimates used in
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

(i) Netrealisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and distribution expenses. These
estimates are based on the current market condition and
historical experience of selling products of similar nature.
It could change significantly as a result of competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycles or changes
in market conditions. Management reassesses these
estimations at the end of the reporting period to ensure
inventory is shown at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

(i) Impairment of trade receivables and entrusted loans

Management determines the impairment of trade
receivables and entrusted loans on a regular basis. This
estimate is based on the credit history of its debtors and
current market conditions. If the financial conditions of the
customers were to deteriorate, actual write-off would be
higher than estimated. Management reassesses the
impairment of trade receivables and entrusted loans at
the end of the reporting period.

(iii) Depreciation

[tems of property, plant and equipment are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
the assets, after taking into account the estimated
residual value. The management reviews the estimated
useful lives of the assets regularly in order to determine
the amount of depreciation expense to be recorded
during any reporting period. The useful lives are based on
the Group’s historical experience with similar assets and
taking into account anticipated technological changes.
The depreciation expense for future periods is adjusted if
there are significant changes from previous estimates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)

ARE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (58 #575)

B RS R M 5 )

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(iv)

Income tax

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on
the future tax treatment of certain transactions.
Management carefully evaluates tax implications of
transactions and tax provisions are set up accordingly.
The tax treatments of these transactions are reconsidered
periodically to take into account all changes in tax
legislations. Deferred tax assets are recognised for
deductible temporary differences. As those deferred tax
assets can only be recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available,
management’s judgement is required to assess the
probability of future taxable profits. Management’s
assessment is constantly reviewed and additional deferred
tax assets, if any, are recognised if it becomes probable
that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset
to be recovered.

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

@)

Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing
and sales of outdoor wooden products, engaging in
projects of outdoor wooden products including the
provision of design and installation services, retail sales of
outdoor wooden products through self-operated retail
shops and manufacturing and sales of renewable energy
products.

Revenue represents

(i) the sales value of goods sold to customers less
returns, discounts, and value added taxes and other
sales tax; and

(i) contract revenue derived from projects of outdoor
wooden products including the provision of design
and installation services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)

ARE B SRR MY R )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B S B R » AN REZTR)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WARDSHEHR @
(Continued)
(@) Revenue (Continued) @ WA
The amount of each significant category of revenue RRANHERE FEBAERB AN
recognised in revenue is analysed as follows: BOFWT :
2015 2014
—E—-1F —ZT—mF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

Sales of outdoor wooden products HEFIMRRLR, 605,982 659,016
Retail sales of wooden products TERR G 11,044 24,245
Contract revenue derived from REFPINRRRIER

projects of outdoor wooden ( BRI R N T ERE)

products including the provision of FTi8 8 & £IU A

design and installation services 200 1,469
Sales of renewable energy products  $4% B A 82RE T 22,773 16,501

639,999 701,231

No individual external customers accounted for 10% or BE-ZT—AFKE-_FT—NOF+=A
more of the Group’s revenue for the years ended 31 =+—BIEFE - BEERIINBER
December 2015 and 2014. IEARSE B AR 10% A L o
Details of concentrations of credit risk arising from these FAZSEPENEFREERRT
customers are set out in note 31(a). Further details FEE NS BREAAREEE
regarding the Group’s principal activities are disclosed EEBHE—LHFBERBNOT -
below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)

ARE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (58 #575)

B RS R M 5 )

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(b)

Segment reporting

In a manner consistent with how the Group manages its
business and the way in which information is reported
internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has identified four
reportable segments, namely Manufacturing and sales of
wooden products, Retail business, Projects of outdoor
wooden products and Manufacturing and sales of
renewable energy products. No operating segments have
been aggregated to form the above reportable segments.

— Manufacturing and sales of wooden products:
manufacturing and sales of outdoor wooden
products to both domestic and overseas
customers, and trading of timber.

— Retail business: retail sales of outdoor wooden
products through self-operated retail shops.

—  Projects of outdoor wooden products: engaged in
projects of outdoor wooden products including the
provision of design and installation services to
domestic customers.

— Manufacturing and sales of renewable energy
products: manufacturing and sales of biomass
pellet fuel to both domestic and overseas
customers.

C UABRBEZR)

4 WARDHER %)

#B 2 R
’=’ INEEERERT BT
Kt EIR D e MR B AR A
%@Eﬁmféfimﬁﬂiiﬁﬁﬂ*ﬁﬁ’ﬂ
AR AEECHEELER 2R
B RAEEREEARER TEX
% POMRBIRIER AR EERIHE
BARREM - AEBIWEREAKE
D EPLARERK LA R 2D &P o

Aﬁtﬁ

- HEERHEARES: MEASN
EPEERBEPIIRER
AHES e

— ZTEXEK:  FREETEET
EFINRER -

At

—  POIAKREFZER  {FPINK
HmAE  BEAKNMEFR
Rt R R -
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EEREERERLAE | 99

—

ZE-hEFR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)

ARE B SRR MY R )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (58 #5751

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

@

Segment results

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the Group’s senior executive
management monitors the results attributable to
each reportable segment on the following bases:

Reportable segment revenue represents the
revenue derived from the Group’s external
customers by Manufacturing and sales of wooden
products, Retail business, Projects of outdoor
wooden products and Manufacturing and sales of
renewable energy products, respectively.

The measure used for reportable segment profit/
(loss) is “profit/(loss) after taxation (excluding the
after tax effect of government subsidies)” of
Manufacturing and sales of wooden products, Retail
business, Projects of outdoor wooden products and
Manufacturing and sales of renewable energy
products, respectively.

A measurement of segment assets and liabilities is
not provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management and accordingly, no
segment assets or liabilities information is
presented.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (58 #575)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(Continued)

@i

C UABRBEZR)

4 WARDHEHRE)

(o) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) DEBE TR
Segment results (Continued) i) PEHEEE)
Information regarding the Group’s reportable REE-_ZT—HER_T—
segments as provided to the Group’s most senior F+ZA=+—HLFE #
executive management for the purposes of resource BRHSEEDHFBTERA
allocation and assessment of segment performance SESEREEERENEBAL
for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 is EET 2R D EHE R0
set out below: N
2015
—2-1%
Manufacturing
Manufacturing Projects of  and sales of
and sales outdoor renewable
of wooden Retail wooden energy
products business products products Total
EER B EERME
HERER SERE FUREE BERFESR #i
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR AR®TR ARRTR AR%TR AR%TR
Revenue derived from the Group's  JRE ANE B5M P
external customers RRHWA 605,982 11,044 200 22,773 639,999
Inter-segment revenue AEERA 23,426 - - - 23,426
Reportable segment revenue BEEGELON 629,408 11,044 200 22,773 663,425
Reportable segment profit/loss) T 2RAEET|/ (FiE)
(profit/{loss) after taxation (BF%EN/ (BB)
(excluding the after tax effectof ~ (FBEHFREZ
government subsidles) HEyL)) 25,720 (2,069) (173) 8,183 31,661
2014
—T-mE
Manufacturing Projectsof ~ Manufacturing
and sales outdoor and sales of
of wooden Retail wooden renewable
products business products  energy products Total
kER P! ?\\ EERHE
HEAEM TEER RERE BERRER @
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’ OOO RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTL ARETT AREF AREFTL AREFTL
Revenue derived from the Group’s R B A EEE5MB
external customers RPHHA 659,016 24,245 1,469 16,501 701,231
Inter-segment revenue AEREA 22,726 - - 463 23,189
Reportable segment revenue DEEGETON 681,742 24,245 1,469 16,964 724,420
Reportable segment profit ERHTEH (BHE
(profit after taxation (excluding wH (T BERFHE
the after tax effect of Heye))
government subsidies)) 84,721 1,290 59 3,49 89,566

EEREEZERERLR
:% RFFR
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B S B R » AN REZTR)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WARDH2HR =)
(Continued)
(o) Segment reporting (Continued) (b)) PE=ZFH
(i) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue (i) T2/ BUWAET2HRD I
and reportable segment profit a8 R 49 1 BR
2015 2014
ot -k 8- 2 —ZE-mF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTT ARBETT

Revenue A

Reportable segment revenue A 2D IR A 663,425 724,420
Elimination of inter-segment revenue #5265 4 A (23,426) (23,189)
Consolidated revenue AEUA 639,999 701,231

Profit gl

Reportable segment profit derived & B A& @ 4% F &Y

from the Group’s external A 235 50 A

customers 31,661 89,566
Government subsidies (net of tax) BT a8 (FNERFRIE) 22,421 10,628
Unallocated head office and ROBLBMERE R

corporate expenses NGRS (10,280) (9,384)
Consolidated profit after taxation SAEBRTBER 43,802 90,810
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B HERI » AN REZR)
4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4

(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued)
(iii) Geographic information
The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of the Group’s revenue from
external customers. The geographical location of

customers is based on the location at which the
goods were delivered or the services were provided.

WARDEE2H =)

(o) DEBEFR®)

(i) HbiHER

TREABEAKEIRE SN
BEPRAR ML ERE R -
BEFEOMIBAE AT MR
BASKARTG PR B AR E o

2015 2014
—E—-hfF —T—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETT

The PRC (place of domicile) ~ #E(FEd) 208,207 . 390,886
North America SIE) 289,756 244,737
Europe B 30,367 43,314
Asia Pacific (exclusive of the PRC) g5 kK& (T EIEFE) 21,669 22,294

... O4,792 @ 310,345
639,999 701,231

5 OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET 5 HaWARHM(EER) Wi

(LOSS)/GAIN et
(@) Other revenue (@ EmUA
2015 2014
—E—RE —E—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETT
Interest income on bank deposits ERITIF A BULA 6,036 3,446
Government subsidies U L 26,515 14,170
Others Hi 357 272
32,908 17,888
EBREERERAT | 103
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

B SRR M 5 )

CEF-F -

5 OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET
(LOSS)/GAIN (Continued)

(@)

Other revenue (Continued)

The Group received unconditional government subsidies
of RMB25,352,000 (2014: RMB13,017,000) for the year
ended 31 December 2015. These government subsidies
were granted to Fujian Zhangping Kimura Forestry
Products Co, Ltd. (“Zhangping Kimura”) for subsidising
various expenses already incurred and were recognised
as other revenue when they became receivable.

The Group recognised government subsidies as deferred
income which compensates the Group for the cost of its
land use right and the cost of infrastructure development.
RMB1,163,000 government subsidies (deferred income)
(2014: RMB1,153,000) were recognised as other revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2015, which is on a
systematic basis over the useful life of the relevant assets
(note 25).

Other net (loss)/gain

C UABRBESTR)

5 HhARHM(ER) Wi
HE ()

(@ HAb LI&U\ (4)

HEZT—RAF+-_A=1+—HIF
= ZK%IHQE’XMMWWWME
#25352,000( ZZE—M4F : AR
#13,017,0007T) < BEFEANMER
FRAEN(DEFARN ) BRI S BT
AR E B EAM S IBRY RAT
WCER RS e s A EL A A o

B MR AN R E R R I F B A 2
ZE-RAF+ZA=+—HIFE "
BFMECEZERA) AR
1,163,000 C(ZF—WF : ARM
1,153,000 7C) E R R/EMUA - 1t
DIEAREENTERFEE ZFH
R (KizE25) ©

(b) Hh(E1E) W55

2015 2014

—E-5F —ZE—mE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT AREFIT

Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain &5 (E518),Wak /F 58 (5,778) 4,356

Net gain on disposal of HEWE BB REE

property, plant and equipment WS F 58 - 45
Changes in fair value of derivative PTEESMIAENFEZS)

financial instruments (1,667) (2,229)

Others Hth 415 -

(7,030) 2,172
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B HERI » AN REZR)

6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 6 KRBANER
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging: BRELATRFIALH0RR TR EBSH ¢
(@) Finance costs @ ®EKA
2015 2014
—Z—-hF —E-mEF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBT T

Interest expense on bank loans and ARAFRNBEEERT

interest-bearing borrowings BN R EEENFE
wholly repayable within five years 5 23,780 138,617
Less: Interest expense capitalised o BAERTIRERN
into construction in progress* BEENMEF BT (7,153) (2,291)
16,627 11,326
* The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of 4.71% " BE_Z-RAF+-_A=T—HLFE
(2014: 3.48%) per annum for the year ended 31 December 2015. HEERARDE471%( T — P04 -
3.48%) HIF R ERIL -
(b) Staff costs (b) BIRA
2015 2014
—E—-5LF —ET-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBTT
Salaries, wages and other benefits %ﬁ\lﬁ&ﬁm%ﬂ 37,723 30,456
Contributions to defined TR TR IRET B
contribution retirement schemes 4,244 3,367

41,967 33,823

AEFELRERAT
e
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

B SRR M 5 )

CEF-F -

C UABRBESTR)

6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 6 BRBIANER (2
(b) Staff costs (Continued) (b) BIKA#)
Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in RIEFBMNABEBERRER - A
the PRC, the Group’s entities in the PRC participate in SEURTFENERB2M T E RS
defined contribution retirement benefit schemes (the P TR R FGRIRE T Jriﬂ((ﬁfaﬁﬁr
“Schemes”) organised by the local authorities whereby 2D &k BEERBENEZRE
the entities are required to make contributions to the —hEN—ZT—NF+—-A —‘f——EI
Schemes based on a percentage of the eligible IHFERAEREEFIN —TED
employees’ salaries during the years ended 31 December b A R EIE L K - HERIETE
2015 and 2014. Contributions to the Schemes vest EHMEZENEEE - BiEE @t
immediately. Under the Schemes, retirement benefits of 2l BE RIKME B AR IKE T B4
existing and retired employees are payable by the relevant BT EIEEMESN  BRFEEHRK
scheme administrators and the Group has no further N REBEE—FSEE -
obligations beyond the annual contributions.
(c) Other items () HE#IEH
2015 2014
—Z2—-0F —ETPUEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBEFIT
Cost of inventories* (note 19(b)) TFERA* (K7 19(b)) 517,542 522,818
Depreciation of property, plant and W - BB MEEITE

equipment (note 117) (Kiat11) 20,126 15,196
Amortisation of lease prepayments TAETEN TR (T 12)

(note 12) 1,604 1,057
Operating lease charges for properties )2 4& B4 H 1,872 2,256
Research and development costs T EE A AR 22,332 28,894
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEN B 1,290 1,270
# Cost of inventories includes RMB45,396,000 (2014: # HE-_Z-—AF+-RA=+—HLF

RMB40,742,000) for the year ended 31 December 2015 relating to
staff costs, depreciation and research and development costs,

& - FEKABIEA R 45,396,0007C
(ZF—m%F : ARW40,742,0007T) 2
BRETIHRAR  FERMERE - B
SN AR £ XM 600) 3 B
ZERXEBRBENRSEN -

which amount is also included in the respective total amounts
disclosed separately above or in note 6(b) for each of these types
of expenses.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B HERI » AN REZR)

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 HREBEXRANAEH
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(@) Taxation in the consolidated statement of (@ FeBmKRARBIETE

profit or loss represents:

2015 2014
—g-EF  —TmF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBT T

Current tax — PRC corporate ENHAIRIE — chEBI R EFRER

income tax
Provision for the year FREE 9,573 18,078
Deferred tax BIERIE
Origination and reversal of temporary — E4 RELOE =R

differences (note 18(b)) (Hi:E 18(b)) 128

9,701 18,344

AEFELRERAT
e
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B S B R » AN REZTR)
7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7

=T )

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (Continueq)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

GEBEZIRANFEHR @)

(o) 1%=iEF m

SC el

B EE FF R

2015 2014

—Z-hfF —E-mEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT AREFT

Profit before taxation B 5 BT v 53,503 109,154
Notional tax on profit before taxation,  FRFATEF A ZERE

calculated at the rates applicable BEBEBRE R AER

in the tax jurisdictions concerned WA ERE (WE0))

(note (i) 16,196 28,011
Effect of PRC tax concession (note (i) = BB @EH 2 (KL (i) (5,390) (9,887)
PRC dividend withholding tax (note (iv)) & BIf% 88305 (Kt (iv)) - 516
Effect of utilising tax losses A BTFERER

not recognised in prior years TRIEE B & - (56)
Effect of non-deductible expenses O 2 1,011 2,135
Effect of research and development FEEF S INEt IR EEM 2

expense bonus deduction (note (i) (B3 (i) (2,116) (2,375)
Actual tax expense BEHBERAS 9,701 18,344

Notes:

0] The Group’s PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC corporate

income tax at the statutory rate of 25% unless otherwise specified.

Taxation for subsidiaries in other jurisdictions is charged at the

appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in relevant jurisdictions

respectively.

No provision was made for Hong Kong Profits Tax as the Group

did not earn any assessable profits subject to Hong Kong Profits
Tax during the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B HERI » AN REZR)
7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

(i)

)

Zhangping Kimura applied and was approved for the High and
New Technology Entities (“HNTE”) qualification under the PRC
Corporate Income Tax Law and its relevant regulations during
2013, and therefore is entitled to the preferential income tax rate of
15% for a period of three years from 2013 to 2015.

According to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law and its relevant
regulations, qualified research and development expenses are
subject to income tax deductions at 150% on the amount actually
incurred.

According to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law and its relevant
regulations, dividends receivable by non-PRC resident corporate
investors from PRC resident enterprises are subject to withholding
income tax at 10%, unless reduced by tax treaties or
arrangements, for profits earned since 1 January 2008. Under the
tax arrangement between the Mainland of China and Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region and the relevant regulations, a
qualified Hong Kong tax resident which is the “beneficial owner”
and holds a 25% equity interest or more of a PRC enterprise is
entitled to a reduced tax rate of 5%. The Group’s subsidiary in
Hong Kong is a qualified Hong Kong tax resident and therefore
entitled a reduced withholding tax rate of 5%.

Since the Group can control the quantum and timing of distribution
of profits of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC, deferred tax
liabilities are only recognized to the extent that such profits are
expected to be distributed through dividend payment by the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries in the foreseeable future. As at 31
December 2015, temporary differences relating to the
undistributed profits of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries to overseas
holding company amounted to RMB328,616,000 (2014:
RMB278,022,000) and deferred tax liabilities of RMB16,431,000
(2014: RMB13,901,000) have not been recognised.

GEBEZIRANFEHR 2

(b)

i A R

aJrEE}]ﬁIEEﬂ

SRS E A H R

et - (&)

(i)

(i)

)

FEANER =B - =FRETALHK
1t R AR 2 5T
&mmﬁaﬁ%&mmxn R
# MR-F-=FE-F-AF=F
T —

_7JF<

RFPECERETEREERER
BERMBERXATRERELSEN
150% HIBRFTISH

R B EAGBUARERRER -
FPEERREERTBEEREERA
ZRRN\F—F— B RE A F 6 FE
Yo s BB IR 10% M R AR TR - 1
T GRA 2 BEfE R R B S 1R ©
HRIE B A B E B RITTRE 2 M8
BB RAMZER  §RFREMCEN
[EaEA A LH5H 25% A LRI
BERBEAVRBRERAIZERRME
5% ° AEEREBNMBARAEER
BRRBER - AU ZERBIENH
5%

FR R AN SR B AT R 3 TR A S B S R B £
B J 2 ) 035 1 ) 0 BB e B ) - BUR ST
BEaEEATESHRN A R REBAE
EFERBARXHRETDIKNE R
R ARER - R —RF+ZA
=+—8  AEENFEHBAREE
SMERARMRA R FITRZRERA
R#328,616,0007C(=ZF—M4F : AR
# 278,022,000 7T ) JA BRIE R IR & & A
R#16,431,000t(ZF —HF : AR
# 13,901,000 7T) I #EFERR
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B S B R » AN REZTR)

8 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8 ESEHM
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of RIEE B R aHED % 383(1) &1 kA | (R
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the EEFZER)ROIFHEERTE  EF
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of DR -

Directors) Regulation is as follows:

2015
—2-1f
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
i RER
Exnd EWg BT BRARER - H

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT  AR®MTT  AEWTT = ARRTR = ARRTR

Executive directors BiiES

Wang Jingjun (Chairman) IEE(ER) 97 - - - 97

Wu Zheyan (Chief Executive Officer) REE(THER) 965 - 1,032 8 2,005

Wu Qingshan (note (i) REWHE ) 216 - 8 224

Xie Qingmei #Ex 144 - 8 161
1,422 - 1,041 24 2,487

Non-executive directors FHTES

Wu Dongping RAY 144 - 11 8 163

Lee Kong Wai, Conway (note (j) TR ) 600 - - - 600

sub-total et 744 - 11 8 763

Independent non-executive directors JIEH{TES

Lam Hin Chi g 97 o - - 97

Jin Znongwei 2EA 98 - - - 98

Su Wengiang EYC 98 - - - 98

777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777 293 - - - 293
2,459 - 1,052 32 3,543

Note. izt

i) On 30 September 2015, Mr. Lee Kong Wai,Conway resigned from his (i) REZZ—AFNA=1TH  ZBELEFTHEIE

position of non-executive director and vice-chairman. PITEEREBIEEE -
(i) On 2 April 2016, Mr. Wu Qingshan resigned from his position of executive (i REZFB—ANFOAZR REWEEBTEAT
director. R -
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B HERI » AN REZR)

8 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

8 EEFHFMw=)

2014
“E-EE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors”  and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
e ZHR
EE Yok ENfla BETA  RAGEIRR @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETT
Executive directors BITES
Wu Zheyan REE 1,073 - 30 7 1,110
Wu Qingshan REW 216 - 20 7 243
Xie Qingmei #Ex 144 - 14 7 165
1,433 - 64 21 1,518
Non-executive directors FUTES
Wu Dongping REF 144 - 12 7 163
Lee Kong Wai, Conway THEE 368 - - - 368
512 - 12 7 531
Independent non-executive directors BiFH{TEE
Lam Hin Chi EEH % - - - %
Jin Zhongwei t85 9% - - - %
Su Wengjang E3C: 98 - - - 98
4 : : B
2,236 - 76 28 2,340

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, there
were no amounts paid or payable by the Group to the directors
or any of the highest paid individuals set out in note 9 below as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. There was no arrangement
under which a director waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the years ended 31 December 2015 and
2014,

REBE-_Z-AFE-_Z-NOF+-A
St HLEFE AEEHSERESXT
XM EOMBMER RS HMA LTk
FEREMSRIR - ERRSIREMBEAEE
KN MBARERNES - RIERBERE
B -RBE-T-—RAFR-_F-—WF+=
A=1T—HLFE ESHERBENR
PPN EE SR B A AT H B -

AEFELRERAT
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9 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 9 BEHFMAL
EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three (2014: HE-_FT—AF+-_A=+—HIFE"
three) are directors for the year ended 31 December 2015, hEsEaRFMALTH = 2RES(ZZ
whose emoluments are disclosed in note 8. The aggregate of —MOF: =F) BENFHFNAN FsH
the emoluments in respect of the other two (2014: two) B B TMBRALT(ZZE—MOF : WE)H
individuals are as follows: FriMazEnT
2015 2014
t- ok 8- 2 —ZE-mEF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETT

Salaries and other emoluments i I E At 2 B 1,362 1,424
Discretionary bonuses E’\] BIEAT 282 -
Retirement scheme contributions RIRETEIERR 14 13
1,658 1,437

The emoluments of the two individuals (2014: two individuals) ﬁ%%%‘%ﬁ@ﬂ)\i(_? UeF - B AL)

with the highest emoluments are within the following bands: BV ET B T T 51 =]

2015 2014
—E—hF —E—F
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AB AB
Nil to RMB1,000,000 =z AR 1,000,0007T 2 2
2 2
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10 EARNINGS PER SHARE 10 ERER
The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended HE-_Z—AF+-A=+—HILFEN
31 December 2015 is based on the profit attributable to equity BRERBNNZEE - —AF+=A
shareholders of the Company of RMB43,802,000 (2014: =+ BIEFENERRARRFE ARE
RMB90,810,000) and weighted average of 1,545,594,000 a F AR ¥ 43,802,000 7L (ZZ —H4F + A
shares (2014: 1,141,438,000 shares) in issue during the year K #90,810,0007T ) - M 2 1,545,594,000
ended 31 December 2015, calculated as follows: M B BT (ZZ— M4 : 1,141,438,000

BB n) e Mg P9 BETE - &AL

Weighted average number of ordinary shares AT A DR 19 2
Number of shares
Ein& A
2015 2014
—E—nLfF —ET-NF
’000 ‘000
TFB& TFh%
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January R—A—BMEETERR 1,365,000 1,000,000
Effect of issue of shares upon placingon R-Z—P4,58 —+/5H
26 June 2014 Bl ERBITR D B2 = 103,013
Effect of issue of shares upon placingon R-Z—MF+ 5+ HE ER
7 October 2014 BITRDMTE = 38,425
Effect of purchasing of own shares on R—ZE—aF—A+-AEE
12 January 2015 (note 27(c)(iv)) BaRmmEE (Mt 27(c)v) (1,934) -
Effect of issue of shares upon placingon W_Z—hFEHA+=HERER
13 May 2015 (note 27(c)(i)) BT I E (HTaL 27(c)() 41,951 -
Effect of bonus issue on 17 July 2015 R-E—RAF+A++tH
AT HE 6,538 -
Effect of issue of shares upon subscription R = Z—R4E N\ A 71 AR
on 5 August 2015 (note 27(c)(ii) BT & (M aE 27(c)(i) 110,534 -
Effect of issue of shares upon open offer W—ZE—RE+=-A=-+—H
on 21 December 2015 (note 27(c)(ii)) NABERBETROOTE
(K153 27(c)iii) 23,505 -
Weighted average number of ordinary N+ B=+—B W@ niE
shares at 31 December EHE 1,545,594 1,141,438
There were no potential dilutive ordinary shares during the years HREE_FT-AFLK-_FT-HNF+_-A
ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 and, therefore, diluted =t—H igf;ﬂﬁﬁ/ﬁ HEEEERR - W
earnings per share are the same as the basic earnings per FREER N EGREARBFAER -

share.
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suz ] >
11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 11 1% BERRZRE
The Group K&
Furniture,
Leasehold Plantand fittings and Motor  Construction
Buildings  improvement machinery equipment vehicles in progress Total
HE & RE
#F PREE BERBR Rigfi RE ERIR it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARRTT ARWFT AR®TT AR®TT AR®TT AR%TT ARRTT
Cost: ﬁt
At1 January 2014 -mE—-f—A 146,185 3,585 51,817 3,466 5,845 11,086 221,984
Additions %E 2473 2,058 10,869 792 221 94,413 110,832
Transfers K 19,213 - - - - (19,213) -
Disposals He - - - - (97) - (97
At 31 December 2014 WZZ-mE
+=A=+-H 167,871 5,643 62,686 4,258 5,975 86,286 332,719
At 1 January 2015 RZZ-h§—F-AH 167,871 5,643 62,686 4,258 5,975 86,286 332,719
Acquisition through business BREBAGETNE
combination 27,299 - 6,220 146 - - 33,665
Additions NE - 303 31,364 1,536 1,200 124,624 159,027
Transfers 2] 6,251 - 4,593 74 - (10,918) -
At 31 December 2015 WZZ-R%E
+=ZA=+-H 201,421 5,946 104,863 6,014 7175 199,992 525,411
Accumulated depreciation:  RiHFE :
At1 January 2014 RZZ-mE-A-H 10,415 1,693 7,309 1,585 2,679 - 23,681
Charge for the year FRZH 7467 862 5,366 665 836 - 15,196
Written back on disposals H £ o] 8 - - - - (93) - (93
At 31 December 2014 R-ZT-mEF
+ZA=1+-H 17,882 2,555 12,675 2,250 3422 - 38,784
At 1 January 2015 5-A-A 17,882 2,555 12,675 2,250 3422 - 38,784
Charge for the year ERRE 9,192 1,516 7,775 692 951 - 20,126
At 31 December 2015 WZZ-RE
+=A=+-A 27,074 4,071 20,450 2,942 4,373 - 58,910
Net book value: BESE -
At 31 December 2015 R-E-R%+-A=1+-8 174,347 1,875 84,413 3,072 2,802 199,992 466,501
At 31 December 2014 RZE-MF+-A=1+—H 149,989 3,088 50,011 2,008 2,553 86,286 293,935
Buildings which are held for own use are situated in the PRC. URRENEFRHEEER - RE—0F+=

C UABRBESTR)

At 31 December 2015, buildings with net book value of
RMB87,593,000 (2014: RMB92,200,000), plant and machinery

AB=Z+—H E@FEAARS7,593,0007T
(ZZ—m4 : AR#92,200,0007C) IETF -

with net book value of RMB37,117,000 (2014:
RMB50,102,000) and construction in progress with net book
value of RMB13,603,000 (2014: nil) were pledged to banks for
certain banking facilities granted to the Group (see note 24(c)).
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12 LEASE PREPAYMENTS 12 HEFENARK
The Group
*EE
2015 2014
btk 8- 2 —= e
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBT T

Cost: 5% 3H

At 1 January n—A—H 54,605 54,605
Acquisition through business combination % i % 764§ i i 7,900 -
Additions NE 44,356 -
At 31 December Rt+—_A=+—H 106,861 54,605
Accumulated amortisation: FEHiss -

At 1 January n—H—H 3,259 2,202
Charge for the year FARATH 1,604 1,057
At31December O W¥=A=4—H 48 3,259
Net book value: RERE :

At 31 December Ww+-—A=+—H 101,998 51,346
Represented by: B :

Current portion BNERER 5 1,966 1,056
Non-current portion FERNERER 5 100,032 50,290

101,998 51,346
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12 LEASE PREPAYMENTS (Continued) 12

13

The lease prepayments represent costs of obtaining the land
use rights in respect of land located in the PRC and the
capitalised costs relating to dredging and leveling of land. These
leases expire between 2047 and 2083.

At 31 December 2015, land use rights with an aggregate
carrying amount of RMB71,982,000 (2014: RMB51,346,000)
were pledged as securities for certain banking facilities granted
to the Group (see note 24(c)).

NON-CURRENT PREPAYMENTS FOR
ACQUISITIONS OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT

The amount mainly represented prepayments for construction
in progress and buildings. An analysis of non-current
prepayments for acquisitions of property, plant and equipment
is as follows:

13

HEBRNFR @)
SN ABUS AR P B T+
{50 P RE T 25 AE OB A - LA R B+ #0128
BREBMENERA - WERER -
M+EZE T N\ZEERF o

R-E—AF+-A=+—8 EELE
BARET71,082,000L (ZZ—HF : AR
& 51,346,000 7T ) B9 T {E FAAE Bt AR R B
#E TIRITRVE /BRI (RMEE24(0) ©

WEEMEE - BB KRB IR
TN

ZeWMEEHEARTIREBTHEMK - K
WK  BE R R FEEBTE RS T
mF

The Group
*T5KE
2015 2014
otk 8- 2 —ET—mEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AEBTT
Prepayment for acquisition of Ik BB MIERR (M et @)
a property (note (a)) - 23,250
Prepayment for acquisition of W HE — 3% T B FB T 3R
a piece of land = 4,661
Prepayment for construction of EEA BERMTEN R
manufacturing complex (note (b)) (KiE (b)) 28,558 7,965
Prepayment for other constructions and ~ EZELELARYE - BE K&
property, plant and equipment (note (c))  BHEEITERR (F15 () 42,394 12,435
70,952 48,311
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13 NON-CURRENT PREPAYMENTS FOR
ACQUISITIONS OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Notes:

(@) On 22 July 2013, Zhangping Kimura entered into an agreement (“the
Acquisition Agreement”) with an independent third party (“the Vendor”) for
the purchase of a property located at No. 996, Dong Huan Road, Jing
Cheng Street, Zhangping City, Fujian province (“the Property”) for a
consideration of RMB46,500,000. As at 31 December 2014, Zhangping
Kimura paid RMB23,250,000 to the Vendor on the same date as a deposit
pursuant to the terms of the Acquisition Agreement.

On 28 September 2015, Zhangping Kimura entered into a supplemental
termination agreement (“the Termination Agreement”) with the Vendor to
terminate the acquisition of the Property due to the significant delay in the
construction of the Property by the Vendor and the Vendor is unable to
confirm the completion and delivery date of the Property. Pursuant to the
Termination Agreement, the Acquisition Agreement shall terminate with
immediate effect and the Vendor shall refund the prepayment. As at 31
December 2015, the refund of prepayment has been received by
Zhangping Kimura.

(b) On 29 December 2014, Zhangping Kimura entered into a construction
contract (“the Construction Contract”) with an independent construction
company (“the Construction Company”) for the construction of production
plants in Zone C of the Group’s manufacturing complex of approximately
105,000 square meters for an aggregate consideration of
RMB152,020,000. Zhangping Kimura has paid RMB150,174,000 to the
Construction Company pursuant to the terms of the Construction
Contract, comprising RMB28,558,000 and RMB121,616,000 as non-
current prepayment for property, plant and equipment and construction in
progress, respectively.

(c) In 2015, Zhangping Kimura entered into Equipment Contracts (“the
Equipment Contracts”) with independent third parties (“the Equipment
Companies”) for the purchase of automatic machinery for the production
plants in Zone C (see note 13(b)). As at 31 December 2015, Zhangping
Kimura prepaid RMB42,394,000 to the Equipment Companies pursuant
to the terms of the Equipment Contracts.

13 WYX BERKREWIELD
EEEEENEE )

Wit -

(@ MZE—=FtA-+=-8 EFANE—ZE
VE=FTEFDRBEURNEREETTS
PR ATIE RIRER 996 SRRV 3 ([ 2% ) RTSL s
(TWeiE R ) - 1B R AR 46,500,000 7T © 15
BUERZOGET  RZE—MF+=—A=+—
H 2 FANRE A 2T AR 23,250,000
RS °

RZZ—AFNAAZFTNR AREFEEZY
EHBEATER  BEFEEREZWENET

RSB EFANEE ST ERTK LT
(MR LW D) AR IE B Z M3 » RIBRIEH
o RKEBHSIRRIERE S BREEN
R-RZZ—RAF+-A=+—8 EFFANE
WE|TE TR K

(b) RZFB-—OF+ZAZ+AR  EFARNE—K
BUREAR(ZERADDRREAEEDN
105,000 F 5 KRR & BLE M C 12 b B A
BRI AaR(BIAR]  B#REAARE
152,020,000 7T ° & F AR B iR 53 T A& [ 5K
RREA RS AR 150,174,0007C + BIEA
R % 28,658,000 7 & AR # 121,616,000 7T 5 5l
FAME  BEREEARER RN
e

© RIZB—HF  BEANEBIE=7 ((RED
ADFTURBEENTREAHNDIAERCED
HEFBEAHEM(RMEI0) - R=FT
—HFETZA=T—H EFFANREREELD
TR R N R TE R AR % 42,394,000 7T ©
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Br = BTN + AARESITR)

14 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES 14 REE NTRER
The Group
*KHE
2015 2014
—®-EF = -—T-N%F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETT

Share of net assets E(hEEFE 13,970 631
Details of the Group’s interest in the associates are as follows: REBREE QT NERTFBOT

Proportion of
ownership interest

RERERLA
Place of Group’s
establishment Particulars of effective Held by  Principal
Name of associate and operation  paid up capital interest a subsidiary  activity
FEE
L UNSEE RIREEHR KBS ERiEe aMBLARE IEID
Jiangxi Lvyuan Trading Co., Ltd. The PRC RMB5,600,000 45% 45%  Trading of imported
(“Lvyuan’) (note (i) H ARE timber
TRKREFBR AR (4R 5,600,0007C BEEOAM
(Bt ()
Longyan Deliyuan Biomass Energy ~ The PRC RMB9,450,000 45% 45%  Research &
Co., Ltd. (‘Deliyuan’) H ARK development and
BEMEIRENERERAT 9,450,000 7 sales of biomass
([BFIRD) energy
EMERRAE R
HE
Note: et -
[0} On 26 November 2015, the Group contributed capital of RMB3,600,000 0] RZZT—RAF+—A=+<8 AEEAGFRE
to Lvyuan. & AR ¥ 3,600,000 °
Lvyuan and Deliyuan are accounted for using the equity method FREBMERGEMBERRARAES
in the consolidated financial statements. JENER ©
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14

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B HERI » AN REZR)
INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 14 REE QTR @)
Summary of financial information of the associates: ZEENRNMIBEERBE
Lvyuan Deliyuan
#iF #HE
2015 2014 2015
ZE-If —Z-mE ZE-1f
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AER®TT AR®TT AR®TT
Gross amounts of the associates’ BE AR TEENEYEE
Assets BE 14,479 8,713 9,449
Liabilities aff (8,835) (6,713) -
Equity B 5,644 2,000 9,449
Revenue A 23,646 1,801 -
Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive income FEREF/(B8) R
for the year rENEEE 44 = (1
Reconciled to the Group’s interests in the HAEERBLAFNERHE
associates
Gross amounts of net assets of the associates B2 /A 8] & & /#EAE 5,644 2,000 9,449
Group’s effective interest AEEMERER 45% 45% 45%
Group’s share of net assets of the associates ~ AEEEEHL AR EESE 2,540 900 4,252
Elimination of share of unrealised profits arising K $#5/EFB S AR A EFSEL
from unsold inventories of the associates Z*@%ﬁﬁﬂ - (269) =
Capital contributed by the Group in excess of its R=ZE—RE+=A=+—AXK
proportional share as at 31 December 2015 EBMTERBAELAINE 1,980 - 5,198
Carrying amount in the consolidated RRE BB RRNERE
financial statements 4,520 631 9,450
EEXEEZERERAT
—T-HEFH
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15 GOODWILL 15 BEHE
RMB’000
ARBFT
Cost: 5% 3H
At 31 December 2014 RZE—MF+=-A=+—H -
Addition from acquisition of a subsidiary W B AR EEZARE 4,300
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE—RAF+=-_A=+—H 4,300
Accumulated impairment losses: RetEEESR -
At 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2015 R-E—NFE+_-_A=+—HK
—E-RF+ZA=+—H -
Carrying amount: REE :
At 31 December 2015 R-_E—AF+-_A=+—H 4,300

At 31 December 2014

R-TE—F+—-A=+—H
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15 GOODWILL (continued) 15

Impairment tests for cash-generating units
containing goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the group’s cash-generating units (CGU)
identified according to operating segment as follows:

BE @)
BEHENREEEELRE
e

BERFCEH B REEEE HBIHR
SEABMOT

2015
—Z—-hF
RMB’000
AR®TT

Manufacturing and sales of wooden products FEREEAER

4,300

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using an estimated
weighted average growth rate of 10%. The growth rates used
do not exceed the long-term average growth rates for the
business in which the CGU operates. The cash flows are
discounted using a discount rate of 10%. The discount rates
used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant
segment.

ReEFEEMHAKRESEDREERE
B E#ETETE - HEFERAREERE
BHEZRERLFHBNMBREENR S
TRTEA o FR M L HAR A IR 0 T 8 R4S
FEETF B REI0RETE - FTAERE
THRBReELBUKREMEEBNRE
P RE - BEREBITRE10%ITE -
FTARIT IR =R MR - WIRRE R D&
BV LR -

AEFELRERAT
e
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16 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

17

(=BT UAREIT)

16 HttSREE

Available-for-sale equity securities: TJ{#iHERFES :

Unlisted equity securities, at cost

REMEAES - LKA

The Group
*TEE
2015 2014
—E—-5LF —E—NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBTT
2,495 2,495

The above financial assets represent investment in equity
securities of a PRC local bank in Zhangping City, Fujian
Province. The investment does not have a quoted price in an
active market for an identical instrument and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

17

biieREEERTEEREEFMLT
RITHBRABHKRE - ZREHNBART
AMERERmSTEREREATFEE

R E -

M B 2 B Ry R

The Company

b 3/
2015 2014
—E—-5LfF —ET-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AER®TT ARBTT
Unlisted shares, at cost JE MR - AR - -
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U BT B8 R B FOB 670,169 356,181

The investment cost represented the investment in Green
Oceans Investment Holdings Limited of 10 United States Dollars
(“USD”).

Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and
have no fixed terms of repayment. The directors regard
amounts due from subsidiaries as non-current assets and as
“interests in subsidiaries” as they do not intend to request
repayment of these amounts from the subsidiaries within 12
months of the end of the reporting period.

Details of the subsidiaries are set out below. The class of shares
held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.
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17 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (58 #575)

C UABRBEZR)

17 RE ARV RER (@)

Attributable
equity interest
held by the Company
Place and date of Particulars of XAFME
incorporation/ issued and paid up/ i34
Name of company establishment registered capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
ERITRME
ML Bl #s/EMEF
LFER HwERAH oF3 - B MHE IEXH
Green Oceans Investment Holdings  The British Virgin 10 shares of 100% - Investment holding
Limited Islands (“BVI") USD1 each
7 November 2011
Green Oceans Investment Holdings ~ £BEXEHE 10 B ETHIRA Rark
Limited (EBRES])
—2——%1+—-AtH
King Wood (Hong Kong) Holding ~ Hong Kong 10,000 shares of - 100%  Sales of outdoor
Limited 5 August 2010 HKD1 each wooden products
A (EB) ERERAR 0 10,000 HEPIIRER
—2-ZF)\A1A B BTRG
Zhangping Kimura The PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Manufacturing and
(notes (i) and (iif) 17 December 1995 RMB380,000,000 sales of outdoor
wooden products
BN (WEE () % (i) i HMER EERBERIAER
—AMEF+ZA+ERE  AR%380,000,0007C
Zhangping Kimura Merry Garden ~ The PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Engaged in projects of
Wooden Structure Design and 12 June 2010 RMB1,000,000 outdoor wooden
Installation Co., Ltd. products including
(notes (i) and i) the provision of
design and
installation services
ﬁ MT%%E%I?N BlERS i HMEX HEPIMRERIER
BRAR (K )R (i) “Z-TFXATZH AR 1,000,0007T BERMARE R
RRRG

AEFELRERAT
e
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17 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 17 RMIBARNRER @)
Attributable
equity interest
held by the Company
Place and date of Particulars of EAFME
incorporation/ issued and paid up/ 313
Name of company establishment registered capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
BERITR#ME
ML B #s/EMEF
LAFER BhERAH ok 3 B MHE IEXH
Merry Garden (Shanghai) The PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Retail sales of outdoor
Household Co., Ltd. 24 February 2012 RMB1,000,000 wooden products
(notes (i) and i) through self-operated
retail shops
FEFR (LB REERAF HE FER BREETEESE
(W7t () % i) “T-ZHZAZTMA  ARK1,0000007T POMRER
Merry Garden (Xiamen) The PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Retail sales of outdoor
Household Co., Ltd. 14 November 2012 RMB5,000,000 wooden products
(notes (i) and (ii)) through self-operated
retail shops
FERE(EP)RERRAA HE AR BRAESEETE
(Hrz ) % i) “T-CE+-ATmA ARHS5000,0007T POMRER
Merry Garden (US) Inc. The United States 100 share of - 100%  Sales of outdoor
of America USD1 each wooden products
10 January 2013
Merry Garden (US) Inc. E3E 100 HEPIMER
“2-=5-AtH FR1ETRS
Zhangping Merry Garden Import The PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Trading of timber and
and Export Co. Ltd. 27 February 2013 RMB30,000,000 sales of
("MG Import and Export’) outdoor wooden
(note (i) and (iii) products
BIMEBRRELNERAR HE AER KBS RBEERI
((EBREELO)) ZT-=FZAZf+tH  AEH30,000,0007T REm

(e ) & i)
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17 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 17 RMBARNER 2)
Attributable
equity interest
held by the Company
Place and date of Particulars of FAFME
incorporation/ issued and paid up/ FE{h A iE
Name of company establishment registered capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
ERITRME
ML Bl #/EMEF
LFER HERAH ok 3 EE HE IEXH
Merry Garden (Australia) Australia 1 share of - 100%  Investment holding
Pty. Ltd. 10 April 2014 Australian Dollar 1 each
Merry Garden (Australia) N 1RER1ET REER
Pty. Ltd. “E-MEMATH Ll
Merry Garden Biomass Hong Kong 1 share of - 100%  Investment holding
Energy Holdings Limited 10 October 2014 HKD1 each
ZEFRENERRERERAR  BE 1RERABTREG REER
“T-mFE+ATH
Zhangping Merry Garden The PRC Registered capital - 100%  Manufacturing and
Biomass Energy 31 March 2014 of RMB30,000,000 sales of renewable
Development Ltd. (note (iv)) energy products
BEYTERFEENE LR HE AR EERHERL
BRAERAR (W) “ET-MmE=F=+-8  AKH300000007 RRER
Unicreed Holdings Limited (note () Hong Kong 10,000 shares of - 100%  Investment holding
20 January 2011 HKD1 each
Unicreed Holdings Limited Bk 10,0005 - 100% HRAER
(Wit () “E——F-A=1H B BTRG
Unicreed (China) Electronics The PRC Registered capital - 100%  Manufacture and
Company Limited 10 June 2011 of USD7,850,000 sales of electronics
(notes (i) and (v)) products
BRI (hE)EFARAR PE AR - 100% H£ERHEETER
(W0 RWy) —2——FXA+H 7,850,000 7T

AEFELRERAT
e
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17 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes:

(i) These entities are wholly foreign-owned enterprises established in the
PRC.

(ii) These entities are limited liability companies established in the PRC and

are wholly-owned subsidiaries of Zhangping Kimura.

(iii) The English translation of the company names is for reference only. The
official names of these companies are in Chinese.

(iv) This entity is a limited liability company established in the PRC and is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of MG Import and Export.

(v) These entities were acquired in 2015 (see note 28).

18 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

The Group

(@) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of
financial position represents:

17 RIB A RIS (&)

Wit -

) EEERARSERIHONEBALE -

(i SEEAR AR HEREERTRETA
e

i) HEADMEBLBEESE  HEREBUD
B

M) EEEA—ERADERIIERATEAERR
eES (] P

M RSEER-T TR (RKRES) -
18 REESUBMRRRPHFFEH

AEH
() REAMBARRKSWEHBESE :

2015 2014
—E—1%F —E—PF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

At 1 January ®n—H—H 29,198 20,517
Charged to profit or loss SRk el 9,573 18,078
PRC corporate income tax paid BB TS (13,027) (9,397)
At 31 December w+—-A=+—H 25,744 29,198
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18 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 18 REEHBRARPHNAEH
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (%)
(Continued)
The Group (Continued) REBE (@)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (b) CEIANWEZHBEEERAEE
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) FARERE VB R P B RRAE
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial EHIBEE,/(BE) S RESHN
position and the movements during the year are as N
follows:
Unrealised
gain on PRC
Unrealised derivative dividend
Deferred profits on financial  withholding Interest
income inventories instruments tax capitalisation Total
fiEam
FRE I&® FEER
BEKA FERRT FERKE fmR HIBESL &t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETR  ARETT  AREBTR  ARETR  ARETR

Deferred tax arising from: BEHERHE

At1 January 2014 RZZE-RE-F-H 4873 226 (278) (1,191) - 3,630
Credited/(charged) to profitor - st A/ (F18) %
loss (note 7(g) (#7g) 299 ) 335 519 (343 (266)
At 31 December 2014 RZZ-RF
+-A=+-A 5,172 185 57 (1,707) (349 3,364
At1 January 2015 RZE-1F-f—-A 5,172 185 57 (1,707) (343) 3,364
Credited/(charged) to profitor 5t A/(18) 145
loss (note 7(a) (B 7)) (291) (104) 250 - 17 (128)
At 31 December 2015 R-Z-1%
+-A=1t-H 4,831 81 307 (1,707) (326) 3,236
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B S B R » AN REZTR)

18 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 18 RZEHMBERRARPHOFAEH
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (&)
(Continued)
The Group (Continued) REE ()
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (b) CEINEZEHBEERES(HE)
(Continued)
Reconciliation to consolidated statement of financial REEa TR R P EERET
position:
2015 2014
—E-5Hf —Z= e
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETT

Net deferred tax asset recognised in AR & BN R T RER

the consolidated statement of ERIEEEFE
financial position 5,269 5,414
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in 4R 4 BT TSR R P ERR K
the consolidated statement of BEHIESETE
financial position (2,033) (2,050)
3,236 3,364
19 INVENTORIES 19 FE&
(@ Inventories in the consolidated statement of @ REEZEeHBRAXRFRF
financial position comprise: BEE
The Group
x5EE
2015 2014
—E—-Lf —E—F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETT

Raw materials R4 181,157 178,445
Work in progress RS 52,935 35,293
Finished goods =l 102,317 83,790

336,409 297,528
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (58 #575)

19 INVENTORIES (Continued)

=T )

C UABRBEZR)

19

(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories

FE@#®)

(b) B HERR A G i i A HR 5

recognised as an expense and included in WEFEEITWT
profit or loss is as follows:
The Group
*KH
2015 2014
—ZE—-1F —E—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AREFT
Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFERREE 517,542 522,818
20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20 EZRHEHMEKRFIE
The Group The Company
F5%E F4aF
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-1F —T-MF —2-1f T-MmE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AREF T AR®TT ARET T
Trade and bills receivables BEEWTELERZE 183,678 192,329 - -
Trade receivable from associates JEWESE AR S8 10,270 8,100 - -
Amount due from a related company & Ui BgEE X 7)F B
(note 30(c)) (7% 30(c) 1,007 - - -
Total trade receivables BIRNGIEES 194,955 200,429 - -
Prepayment for raw materials RMBTERR 80,162 62,938 - -
Derivative financial instruments fTES BT A (HE31(0)
(note 31(df)) 3,064 867 -
Gross amount due from customers  [EWEF AR L1245
for contract work (note (i) (BzE @) 708 2,781 -
Other receivables HibeURIE 11,636 11,645 583 399
290,525 278,660 583 399
EEREERAERLAD | 129
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20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 20 B 5 R HfhREWRIE #)

Note:

(i) The aggregate amount of costs incurred plus recognised profits less
recognised losses to date, included in the gross amount due from
customers for contract work at 31 December 2015 was RMB1,108,000
(2014: RMB21,108,000). This balance includes retention receivables at 31
December 2015 of RMB420,000 (2014: RMB1,582,000), of which
RMB420,000 (2014: RMB386,000) was expected to be recovered after
more than one year.

All of the trade and other receivables, apart from those balances
specified in (i) above, are expected to be recovered or
recognised as expense within one year.

As at 31 December 2015, trade receivables with carrying value
of RMB2,812,000 (2014: nil) were pledged to banks for certain
banking facilities granted to the Group (see note 24(c)).

(@) Ageing analysis
As at 31 December 2015, the ageing analysis of trade
and bills receivables (which are included in trade and
other receivables), based on invoice date and net of
allowances of doubtful debts, is as follows:

[0] RZE—RAF+_A=1+—HOEREFPERT
BREmAeEEEERANNEEREFNREE
ARBEHRER :.a+/\E¢aZ1,108,0007z(_
T4 AR#21,108,00070) ¢ UL B EIE
RZF-—RAF+ZA=1+—HOREEEIE
R #420,0007T (= F — P4 : /\Eﬁmsszooo

JT) - Hh AR 420,000 7 (=B —M%E - AR
#£386,000 7T ) AT G —F & U [E -

Br EXX()VIEANZ S AR BB E
5 R E M EUWFIEAR R —F AU @ R
R -

R-ZE—RE+-_A=+—8 FEEA
R#2,812,00070 (ZZF—P4F : E)NE 5
FEURIBE A T IRITIE AN EEEREN
HEFRITREMER (R 24(0) ©

(@ BREROHT
R-ZE—RF+-A=+—08 - g
Z HET IR REEIRNE 5 R UGK
BEREREER(EBFHAESREME
WERIE) BRI TR T ¢

The Group
x5EE
2015 2014
—E—nLfF —F—F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTRT AR¥TT

Within 1 month R1EAR 69,438 88,706
1 to 2 months 122{@A 31,024 43,930
2 to 3 months 22318 A 14,539 31,800
Over 3 months BE3EA 79,954 35,993

194,955 200,429

Trade and bills receivables are normally due within 90
days to 150 days from the date of billing. Further details
of the Group’s credit policy are set out in note 31(a).
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20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continuveaq) 20 B Z R HttEUWFIE &)
(o) Trade debtors that are not impaired (o) TERIENE ZEUERK

I & A8 5 X KRR ERE R E 5 UL
FARBRERERE DT

The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables that are
neither individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired are as follows:

The Group
.3

2015 2014

—E—nLfF —ET-NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBT T

Current BN HA 137,203 156,405

Less than 1 month past due BAER A1 E A 28,174 43,203

1 to 3 months past due wHA1 £ 3@ A 29,308 100

More than 3 months but less than BHAREASEAELR

12 months past due 121 A 90 573

More than 12 months past due wHEARE12{E AR 180 148
Amounts pastdue @iy 57,712 = - 44,024

194,955 200,429

R H R (E R AR B % i
HIW MR RO RCER R P

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

8 HAME I MR ORU(E B R GRS K — #E
EAEBARFEALBENBILE
F e BBt gsn anEEERY
mEAEY  ARAZZEKDAUR
gm - HEREREBENLEE
BREHUREER - AERELEZ
ERE B EERA -

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to
a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not

4

been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.
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21 PLEDGED DEPOSITS 21 2EAER

Pledged deposits with banks have been placed as security for ERFRITHTRE AERITRAAER S

banking facilities and derivative financial instruments issued by HERITRVE ROTAE SR T AMER (R

banks to the Group (see note 20, notes 23 and note 24(c)). 20 * MEE23 M5t 24(c)) °

22 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 22 iﬁ%&ﬁ%’i”ﬁ#@

(@) Cash and cash equivalents in the @ MRE&E4E Eﬁ BIRA K REE
consolidated statement of financial position EE EMmERANE® ME
and consolidated cash flow statement EHFEEMBE
comprise:

The Group The Company
50 3/
2015 2014 2015 2014
—Z-1f —E-mE —Z-1¥ —T-ME
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARBTT UN: b ARETTT

Deposits with banks and other ~ $217 2 E fth B 75

financial institutions WRFER 130,290 99,231 - -
Cash at bank and in hand RARFERS 66,611 74,913 557 85
196,901 174,144 557 85

At 31 December 2015, cash and cash equivalents in the
amount of RMB160,661,000 (2014: RMB101,264,000) are
denominated in RMB and are deposited in the PRC in the
ordinary course of business. RMB is not a freely convertible
currency and the remittance of funds out of the PRC is
subject to the relevant rules and regulations of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.
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22 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

C UABRBEZR)

22 RERBAESEEY )

(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to (b) FBRAT A& A BLAS = R 55 (P
cash (used in)/generated from operations: ),/ FBERSERNT
The Group
*£Em
2015 2014
—ZE—-h%F —ET—F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Miat AR®TT AREFT
Profit before taxation [ F BT Vs A 53,503 109,154
Adjustments for: AT S BEELFAE
Interest expense SR 6(a) 16,627 11,326
Depreciation e 6(c) 20,126 15,196
Amortisation of lease THETE Rk o
prepayments 6(c) 1,604 1,057
Amortisation of deferred R A 8
income 25 (1,163) (1,153)
Net foreign exchange loss HNEEBRFE 2,020 2,244
Interest income S A 5(a) (6,036) (3,446)
Elimination of share of HEHFE(L 2 2 A
unrealised profits arising REFEEXZ
from unsold inventories of REIR 5 A
the associate 14 - 269
Net gain on disposal of EEWE - BE R
property, plant and BT
equipment 5(b) - (45)
Share of profit JE(GEEE R ENEF] -
associates, net of tax MKRTIE (20) -
Changes in working capital: LBEDEH
Increase in inventories FEEM (34,521) (105,809)
Increase in trade B 5 Ik B Ah FEUR R IA
and other receivables N (5,789) (117,209)
Decrease in trade B 5 R HEMENFIE
and other payables Ve (386) (5,889)
Cash (used in)/generated R (TR, FTs
from operations Re 45,965 (94,305)
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23 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

23 BEZRHMEMNRIER

The Group The Company
F5H F0H
2015 2014 2015 2014
t- 2k - T 1% —T-IF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEBTR ARETT AR®TR ARETT
Trade payables (note 23(a)) Z SIEN A ([17#23(0) 8,749 3,167 = -
Derivative financial instruments PTHESHIA
(note 31(d)) (K17t 31(a)) 5,112 1,247 - -
Amount due to a director R —REEHE 16 769 3 713
Amount due to a related company  FE{} EREE A A FIE
(note 30(c)) (H15#30(c) - 283 - -
Other payables and accruals HEAFIER
(note 23(b)) FE=T B A (M3 23(b) 14,301 13,890 1,941 1,696
28,178 19,356 1,944 2,409

All of the above balances are expected to be settled within one

year or repayable on demand.

(@ A maturity analysis of the trade payables is

as follows:

As at 31 December 2015, the maturit
trade payables balance is as follows:

y analysis of the

PrA Ll TEET R — FRENHIRE

@ BZENZESNINEAS
MR
R-Z—FFE+—A=+—0 B
FER AN BRSO T

The Group
TRE
2015 2014
—E-5f —E—mEF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTRT ARKTT

Due within 1 month or on demand 118 A AR B E sk ig ESRE 8,164 1,970
Due after 1 month but within 3 months 1 & 8 1418 3@ 5 A E|HAE 585 1,197
8,749 3,167
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23 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

C UABRBEZR)

23 EFRHEMENSRE @)

(b) An analysis of the payables and accruals is (o) 725 B E b JE S 3R 18 K &
as follows: FFEASTWT
The Group The Company
350 NG|
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-1f S —E-1% —T-mE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETFT AR®TR ARETT
Receipts in advance R 484 2,015 = -
Salaries, wages, bonus and e I8 Ak
other accrued benefits Hfth TR A 2,752 2,346 - -
Payables for the purchase of BEWE BENX
property, plant and equipment & {& &) 508 956 1,608 - -
Other tax payables Hih T8 686 585 - -
Professional fee payables ENEEER 1,966 1,556 1,378 1,427
Transportation fee payables ErtEEER 1,968 3,573 - -
Others Hith 5,489 2,207 563 269
14,301 13,890 1,941 1,696
24 BANK LOANS 24 RITER
(@) At 31 December 2015, the bank loans @ RZ_TE—HF+ = A
were repayable as follows: =+—H: BEEMNIRT
B
The Group
&M
2015 2014
—E—nLfF —T-MF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETIT
Within 1 year or on demand —FRHIREK 322,459 345,699
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFR 47,932 10,619
After 2 years but within 5 years MEBEBERFR 26,528 41,000
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, e 51619
396,919 397,318
EBXEERERAT | 135
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24 BANK LOANS (Continued) 24 BITER#E)
(o) At 31 December 2015, the bank loans b R—ZE—RF+ = A
were secured as follows: =+—H BEHRTE
BN
The Group
*x5KE
2015 2014
k-2 - —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETE

Bank loans (note 24(c)) RITER (M5t 24(c)
— secured — B 255,420 234,019
— unsecured — 141,499 163,299
396,919 397,318
(©) The amounts of banking facilities available © R=F-AFt_A=+—
to the Group and the utilisation at 31 B - AEE A E IR TR
December 2015 are set out as follows: ENEFBABRAT
The Group
Xx5KMH
2015 2014
—E-1f —E -
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREET T
Banking facilities available AIERMIRITRLE
— secured — B 471,300 368,425
— unsecured — mK 181,567 186,604
652,867 555,029
Amounts utilised BEI A
— bank loans — RITER 396,919 397,318
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B RS R M 5 )

24 BANK LOANS (continued)

(©

The amounts of banking facilities available
to the Group and the utilisation at 31
December 2015 are set out as follows:
(Continued)

The secured banking facilities were secured by the
following assets with carrying values as follows:

C UABRBEZR)

24 ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ)
) RZE—RF+H=1—
B AEEERARITE
ENEBABRIOT @

BEMBITREATINEENREE

TEHEHR -
The Group
*ERE
2015 2014
—E—-hF —ET—NF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETE

Pledged deposits (note 27) BETR (A E21) 128,983 98,221
Buildings (note 11) g (faE11) 87,593 92,200
Plant and machinery (note 11) Wi R Akzs (et 11) 37,117 50,102
Construction in progress (note 71) EEIR(MF11) 13,603 -
Lease prepayments (note 12) HEBMZ(ME12) 71,982 51,346
Trade receivables (note 20) E WA (fFF20) 2,812 -

342,090 291,869

During 2014 and 2015, all of the Group’s banking facilities
were subject to the fulfilment of certain covenants, as are
commonly found in lending arrangements with financial
institutions. If the Group were to breach the covenants,
the drawn down facilities would become payable on
demand. The Group regularly monitors its compliance
with these covenants.

R-B-—NFR-_FT—HF A&E
E@Pﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁéﬁx)@ﬁéﬁiﬁﬂ%%%
RIVAMEERET —RERNE TR
RIFTARIR - AR BERZZL - AlE
XHMEERRRERER - A%E
MBI R EE T AR -
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CEF-F -

24 BANK LOANS (Continued)

(©

The amounts of banking facilities available
to the Group and the utilisation at 31
December 2015 are set out as follows:
(Continued)

The Group has an unsecured bank loan with a carrying
amount of RMB12,567,000 at 31 December 2015 (2014
RMB11,834,000). The loan agreement contains certain
ratio covenants for which the Group did not meet the net
profit ratio of not less than 20% and inventory turnover
ratio of not less than 2 during 2015 and 2014. The loan
was repaid on 27 January 2016.

The Group has two secured bank loans with carrying
amounts of RMB10,000,000 and RMB32,580,000 at 31
December 2015 (2014: nil) with maturity date on 12
November 2016 and 29 October 2018 respectively. The
loan agreements contain certain ratio covenants for which
the Group did not meet the current assets turnover ratio
of not less than 1 during 2015.

The Company complies with its obligation to pay and will
repay the principals when they fall due. The Bank
considered it not necessary at present to exercise its
rights given by the loan agreements upon the Group not
meeting the abovementioned ratio covenant prior to the
respective maturity dates of the loans.

Except for the above, the Company has fulfilled the
covenants relating to drawn down facilities during 2015
and 2014. Details of the Group’s management of liquidity
risk are set out in note 31(b).
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C UABRBESTR)

24 ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ)

(©)

K%.Tﬁéﬁﬂﬂ’ﬁﬁf‘m?&
iéf&ﬁ@ﬁﬁ'l ' CNENE )

AEER-B-EFT=A=T—H
BEHREERAR®12,567,0007T
HRIE R TER(Z 2 —me A

[R#11,834,0007T) - EX A
ETHERZY EREER T —F
FR-_FE-MOFEHREEDFENE
TMER 20% A R F B FE R MMER 2
WER - ERXR T —-RF—A
T EHBEKER -

rEER=ZZ—RF+=-A=+—H
(ZE—WEF: ®)REEFHIR=F
—RNE+—A+ZAR=ZE—N\E+
RZthBEHNMEEEMIRITE
FOEBRBEES R AARE
10,000,0007T & A R # 32,580,000
T BEXEEAE THERREL - &
AEER_Z—AFRBEIREE
EREERTMMER1IMER -

AREETEMNBEERENERAE
%ﬂ%h%@$% BEAEERE
& BRI BRI KRB ER AT L R 2
4 - HERITR BB RBATEER D
HETHETEOERN -

B Eish RZZE—RFR=_FT—
F ARFDEKREBARRHERNZ
2 BN KREERNEE @R
FHIBHAMEES31(0) ©
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24

25

B RS R M 5 )

BANK LOANS (Continued)

(d) Included in secured and unsecured bank loans of the
Group as at 31 December 2015 were bills discounted
with recourse totalling RMB7,929,000 and RMBO (31
December 2014: RMB43,983,000 and RMB3,442,000)
respectively.

DEFERRED INCOME

The movements of deferred income are as follows:

C UABRBEZR)

24 HRITERE)
(d) R—z-—aF+-A=+—80 K%
E 5 IR R R T B R IE AR
RREMBBEBRSNEATARE
7,929,000 L R AR O (ZZ—WM
F+ZA=+—H: ARK
43,983,000 & A K 3,442,000

7T e
25 EIEWA
EEW A E IR
The Group
xEE
2015 2014
—E—nLfF —FE—UF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBT T

Balance at 1 January R—A—B8ES 20,690 19,493
Additions during the year FRRE - 2,350
Government grant recognised in profit REFRERAEMIEAN
or loss as other revenue (note 5(a)) BT w8k (7% 5(a)) (1,163) (1,153)
Balance at 31 December R+ A=+—HBrN#&% 19,527 20,690
Represented by: B :
Current portion BNEREE 7 1,163 1,163
Non-current portion JERNEREL & 18,364 19,527
19,527 20,690

Deferred income represented government subsidies that
compensated the Group for the cost of its land use right and
the cost of infrastructure development which are recognised in
profit or loss on a systematic basis over the useful life of the
assets.

BB ASRRFHRE > AREBEASER
T E MR A R ERREERAA - R
BEMAERAFHANRRFMNESERNA
EEE/I:\ °

AEFELRERAT
e
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26 NON-CURRENT INTEREST-BEARING 26
BORROWINGS
(@ The analysis of the carrying amount of
non-current interest-bearing borrowings is

3'5 b Eb —l_/u\ {ﬂ' TA

(@)

EMBAEERERELZ
DA

as follows:
The Group The Company
%@ - 3|
2015 2014 2015 2014
ZZ-1%F —E-IF —E-1f —T-mF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREF T AR®TT ARET T
Bank loans (note 24) RITER (M aE24)
— secured — BiE 46,460 30,000 - -
— unsecured — EIE 28,000 21,619 - -
74,460 51,619 = -
Unsecured debentures 5% 2017 Z85%H-FT—+ 4
(note 26(b)) BEAES
(Kt 26(b)) 16,756 15,778 16,756 15,778
91,216 67,397 16,756 15,778
(b) Significant terms and repayment schedule (o) FEIRITIER ZEANIFER K

of non-bank borrowings
Debentures

The Group has entered into agreements with two
individual third parties issuing unsecured debentures with
principal amounting to HK$20,000,000. The debentures
are bearing interest at 5% per annum, unsecured and
repayable on 29 August 2017.
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27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of

each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out

in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of

the changes in the Company’s individual components of equity
between the beginning and the end of the year are set out
below:

@)

Movements in components of equity

C UABRBEZR)

27

BX  RERKRE

ERAKEGA DS

E‘JHH%H&HJ%E

HREHRHEIINGEEREZEEK - AR
fes EEA D b"‘i%ﬂ&iﬂiﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁ’lﬁﬂu

-

z

(@) HEzEED

Y

Hyh

&

A5

X

The Company FIN/NE|
Share Share Exchange  Accumulated Total
capital premium reserve losses equity
23 BingR ERGR RHER wana
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AE%FT AE%FT AER%FT AER%FT AER%FT
Balance at 1 January 2014 R-E-ME—-F—AMHER 8,135 115,722 (4,107) (3,275) 116,475
Changes in equity for 2014: ZE-MERHEREE
Loss for the year EREE - - - (6,291) (6,291)
Other comprehensive income Hip2 Ak - - (1,060) - (1,060)
Total comprehensive income for the year FREANGESE - - (1,060) (6,291) (7,351)
Issue of shares upon placing RERETRG 2,918 236,753 - - 239,671
Dividends approved and paid in respect of BEEERHEREARE
the previous year - (10,317) - - (10,317)
Balance at 31 December 2014 and pA_E-ME+-A=+-BR
1 January 2015 —E-5F-F-AMER 11,053 342,158 (5,167) 9,566) 338,478
Changes in equity for 2015; ZE-REMEREN:
Loss for the year FREER - - - (8,008) (8,008)
Other comprehensive income Ht2ENE - - 30,152 - 30,152
Total comprehensive income for the year FRE2ANERE - - 30,152 (8,008) 22,144
Issue of shares upon placing RERETRG 9,934 288,039 - - 297,973
Dividends approved and paid in respect BEFERIER
of the previous year ERkE - (5,986) - - (5,986)
Balance at 31 December 2015 ZE-RE+ZAZ+-AMER 20,987 624.211 24,985 (17,574) 652,609
ZEREEZERERAT

e
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27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 27 EX - #ERBRE @)
(Continued)
(o) Dividends b) RAZE
()  Dividends payable and proposed to equity () RTINFEEMEEZRRERR
shareholders of the Company attributable to the AEERA ARENREE
year: o
2015 2014
—E—-5LF —ET-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARKTT

No final dividend proposed after MEHRB W ERERRE
the end of the reporting period FAREIR S (ZE—U4F -
(2014: HK$0.005 (equivalent to A% A% 0.005 7 T
approximately RMB0.004) (HEROARKE
per ordinary share) 0.0047T)) - 5,409
(i)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (i)  PAAEARE A KRR E—1E
Company attributable to the previous financial year, HBERRNARARERETE
approved and paid during the year: AR, -
2015 2014
—E-1f —Z—mEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TT AREFT
Final dividend in respect of the RARFEE A A FOR AT
previous 1AM EER
financial year, approved and paid REANE B AR A%
during the year, of HK$0.005 0.005% T (FHER
(equivalent to approximately HARH0.0047T)
RMBO0.004) per ordinary share (ZZ—4F
(2014: HK$0.013 (equivalent to FRREBR0.013E T
approximately RMB0.010) (FHERHIARE
per ordinary share) 0.0107t)) 5,086 10,317
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27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 27 BEX  -#ERKRE®)
(Continued)
(c) Share capital () R
Authorised and issued share capital EERBBITRAE
2015 2014
E-1f E-mE
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
BiA&E &8 L +E
('000) HK$'000 ('000) HK$'000
(FB) TET (FB) FEL
Authorised: EE:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at R-A—-BRT-A=T-H

1 January and 31 December SHEAE0 BTN ERR 10,000,000 100,000 10,000,000 100,000
2015 2014
—Z-1% —E-mE
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
BiA®E &8 POEE 8
('000)  HK$'000 ('000) HK$'000
T TR T TiEx
Ordinary shares, issued and BEE  BITREE
fully paid:
At 1 January it 1,365,000 13,650 1,000,000 10,000
Issue of shares upon placing on i i/\ﬂ A
26 June 2014 RERETRA - - 200,000 2,000
Issue of shares upon placing on R-Z-ME+A+H
7 October 2014 RERETRN - - 165,000 1,650
Purchase of own shares on R-E-nF-A+ZA
12 January 2015 (note (i) ﬂ%“ﬁ EEGIGEIT) (2,000) (20) - -
Issue of shares upon placing on “E-RFRATEA
13 May 2015 (note (j) E’gﬁﬁ’é‘ﬁﬁx 3 (B3 () 66,000 660 - -
Bonus issue on 17 July 2015 R-E-REtAT++A
ARET 14,290 143 - -
Issue of shares upon subscriptonon  RZZ—-RENATH
5 August 2015 (note (i) RERRIRG W) 272,600 2,726 - -
Issue of shares upon open offer on R-Z-RF+-A-1t-H
21 December 2015 (note (i) DREEERTRE (Wi i) 857,945 8,579 - -
2,573,835 25,738 1,365,000 13,650
Equivalent to (RMB'000) AER(ARETT) 20,987 11,053
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27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(Continued)

(c) Share capital (Continued)

Authorised and issued share capital (Continued)

Notes:

(i) On 13 May 2015, an aggregate of 66,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each were issued at a price of HK$0.75 per share. The
net proceeds would be paid for the acquisition of Unicreed
Holdings Limited. The shares issued rank pari passu with other

shares in issue in all respects.

(ii) On 5 August 2015, an aggregate of 272,600,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each were conditionally issued to not less than six
placees, who and whose ultimate beneficial owners are
independent third parties, at a price of HK$0.55 per share. The net
proceeds would be retained for capital expenditure to increase
production capacity of the Group’s products, and as general
working capital of the Group. The shares issued rank pari passu
with other shares in issue in all respects.

(iii) On 21 December 2015, an aggregate of 857,945,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each were issued to public, at a price of
HK$0.2 per share. The net proceeds would be retained for capital
expenditure to increase production capacity of the Group’s
products, and as general working capital of the Group. The shares
issued rank pari passu with other shares in issue in all respects.

Purchase of own shares

(iv)  During the year, the company repurchased its own

ordinary shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong

Kong Limited as follows:

27 BEX  -#ERKRE#®)

© MEA&(#)
EERORITRA ()

Bat

(i)

R—ZZE—AERA+=8" & #
66,000,000 A% & A% T {8 0.01 /& L H) & 8
REIEER0.75 B TR BIEEAT « FT15
RIBFHEEREIMNRESBNRASEE
BRAT - BEEITROMABETEHEE
BATHMR D Z B REHAL

R-ZE-—HEFNARA & #
272,600,000 & & % T {80.01 78 7T 1 %
BREIEEAR0.55 B TTHIBIRE R 3
TFRIPRANLBERA (REREEZ &
RERBEANGRBILE=TT) - FISH
EFEBREBIEEMARBEEER
MEAHAXRAREN —REEES -
BT N PTA T E BB BT E A
DEBRFAL -

R-B-—RAE+-_A-+—H &#
857,945,000 % & A% M 18 0.01 % 7T &) &
i HﬁE?%Hﬁoﬁ%ﬁE@Fﬁ%ﬁfﬁ%ﬁ
o FTSSRIEF S IR AR A&
EEE ERE AR R ANEE R — R
BiEES  DREIBRORAAIEED
BITEAMRND ZE RFMAL -

MEB&RG

(v)

WA ARAREBBA
R BFBRATMERE S
B - FET

Highest Lowest

Number of price paid price paid Aggregate

shares per share per share price paid

Month/Year repurchased (HKD) (HKD) (HKD’000)
BRI BRI

FREEY BRfR RER EftiRE

R/& Bir& B (#x) (#x) (Figx)

12 January 2015 —E-RE-f+=A 2,000,000 0.76 0.75 1,519
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27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

27 BEXR - @#ERKRE®)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(@

(i)

(iii)

Share premium

The share premium represents the difference
between the par value of the shares of the
Company and proceeds received from the issue of
the shares of the Company.

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
the funds in the share premium account of the
Company is distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the
date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company would be in a position to
pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
currency differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of the entities with
functional currency other than Renminbi. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 2(w).

Statutory reserve

Transfers from retained profits to PRC statutory
reserve are made in accordance with the relevant
PRC rules and regulations and the articles of
association of the Company’s subsidiaries
established in the PRC and were approved by the
respective boards of directors.

The subsidiaries in the PRC are required to
appropriate 10% of its after-tax profit, as determined
in accordance with the PRC accounting rules and
regulations, to statutory general reserve until the
reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered
capital. The transfer to this reserve must be made
before distribution of a dividend to shareholders.

Statutory general reserve can be used to make
good prior years’ losses, if any, and may be
converted into paid-up capital provided that the
balance after such conversion is not less than 25%
of the registered capital.

(d) REEEKLBH

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

IR A= 1E

£ (B #5 AN 1 B RO B T B
BT AN BB B UER P A
PR BRI EER -

RIEFMEBRBERANE AR F
Bt EERANESATHDIK
FTARBMRER - HEEREEH
D IREE BHR - ARR]ARE
MEN —REH BRI HIN
&7 o

BE Sk

BE S B B AR AAREIAIMY
DR E¥RERHEBM KR
RIFEENMEINEZRE - &
FETIREME 2w E N
ATERRIEIE ©

EEE

B fR B 2 M) e 8 = v BDE E
TR IR ARRE T B R R AR B
VA Be 7K 72 R 7E o B S 0 S JB
NEMEBERMAET I
EEABESESHE

o B E PR 8 2 R Z8 58 HH 10% B9
BREEN(EDRETES
AARAIRRPIEE) E— KX
EfEE BEEMEBSSREEM
BARNE0% A 1E - BREERE
AR MR D IRBE AT -

—OEAERBEAT AR B ERE
FEBR(MEA)  AAEHE
BRBRA  HEABEERERNE
BARENEMEAR25% °

EEREEZERERLR
—E-hFFR
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27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

©)

Distributable reserves

The aggregate amounts of reserves available for
distribution to equity shareholders of the Company were
RMB631,622,000 (2014: RMB327,425,000).

After the end of the reporting period, the directors
proposed no final dividend (2014: HK$0.005 equivalent to
approximately RMBO0.004 per ordinary share, amounting
to RMB5,409,000).

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by
pricing products and services commensurate with the
level of risk and by securing access to financing at a
reasonable cost.

The Group defined “capital” as including all components
of equity. Trade balances and short-term bank loans that
arise in the course of ordinary business are not regarded
by the Group as capital. On this basis, the amount of
capital employed by the Group at 31 December 2015
were RMB1,135,510,000 (2014: RMB797,342,000).

The Group manages its capital structure to maintain a
balance between the higher shareholder returns that
might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustment to the capital structure in
light of changes in economic conditions affecting the
Group.

Except for the banking facilities which require the fulfilment
of certain covenants as disclosed in note 24(c), neither
the Company nor any of the subsidiaries are subject to
externally imposed capital requirements in either prior or
current year.
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©)

Al 95 Ik 7

B YNGIL: 2o & S il = k|
B ARME31,622,000T(ZE—N
£ AR#327,425,0007T) °

RRELRE  EFVERZBIRER
HEE(ZTE—NF: FREER
0.005%8 L (HE K4 A R#0.004

7T)) A HE AR 5,409,000 7T °
BEAREHE
AEBEREANETEEIZRF RN

[\ A2 2 UC e i 22 5 B AR TS E (B BB
BRAEKARGHE  REAELE
FEKCENE N - MEEREERK
R RO & A EES A E A

9
fingl

RNE@E [EX | EHABIEMGE
SEB o AREEE—MEBBEPE
EE S R HRITE R TR
BEXRBRHEE AEERZ

—RF+_A=Z+—BEBEAEHNELAE
%5 AR #1,135,510,000C( =&
—PU4E : AR¥E797,342,0007T) °

AEBEREEARE  UERES
BER MR ER - ZFEMAT LR
BEERMEEREE2ENKRAMASE
E’J@?@”&fﬂﬁ U EAEBENE
BN E B E AR THE

BRAEKI 240 TRBENE TR
HWRITEEIN REFEHAF
B ARBHAFMERRHBEE
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28

ERUEsE e R

(B =BT

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 4 May 2015, the Group signed an agreement to acquire the
entire shareholding of Unicreed Holdings Limited (“Unicreed”)
together with its wholly-owned subsidiary (collectively known as
the “Acquired Subsidiaries”), from an independent third party at
a consideration of HK$63,333,000 (approximately
RMB49,303,000) which shall be satisfied by payment of
HK$13,833,000 (approximately RMB11,080,000) in cash and
allotment and issue of 66,000,000 shares by the Company (the
“Consideration Shares”) at an issue price of HK$0.75 per share.
The acquisition was completed on 13 May 2015 upon which
the fair value of the Consideration Shares were HK$0.723 per
share. The principal activity of the Acquired Subsidiaries is
research, production and sale of intelligent home electronic
equipment. Taking control of the Acquired Subsidiaries enabled
the Group to effectively facilitate intellectualisation of the
Group’s timber house products, constituting a more value
adding business to the Group.

In the seven months to 31 December 2015, Unicreed contributed
revenue of RMB13,047,000 and loss of RMB1,250,000 to the
Group’s results. If the acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2015,
management estimates that consolidated revenue would have
been RMB644,337,000, and consolidated profit for the year would
have been RMB44,882,000 respectively. In determining these
amounts, management has assumed that the fair value
adjustments, determined provisionally, that arose on the date of
acquisition would have been the same if the acquisition had
occurred on 1 January 2015.

(@) Consideration transferred

The following table summarises the acquisition date fair
value of each major class of consideration transferred.

C UABRBEZR)

28 WHEHKIE A F

MN_ZE—RAFRANA  AEBEDEIW
FUAMBYE= A WESNRAIEEGR
RNE([HNREEAD) RE2EWB A E (5
ABIEWEMNEBAR ] MR E  EE
#463,333,0007% 7T (49 & A R % 49,303,000
L) EF - AARRBAITFES
13,833,000 % 7T (47 A R # 11,080,000 7T )
Wiz BT ESRO7SE Lo il M E#1T
66,000,000 % & 3 (T E R 1) 77 1T
Y WBEBR -_Z—RAFAA+=H
BEEK - BEREABERERMOATFE
BER0.723FIL - BB BARIMNEE
¥BEBATE LERBEEEERES
TR 2HEWBHEBARSAEER
MREAEBAEERMNTELEER B
REBMEREBERBEMNER -

W-_ZE—RFE+-A=+—HAtEAK
BINFEAI R AEBEMNEETRIAARKE
13,047,000 7T & 518 AR # 1,250,000 7T °
fHEkBEEN _—_T—RF—A—R%4E
EREGRAEEBRABAEARE
644,337,000 7T R A FEBER G & 1S B A
R¥44,882,000T - REEZEHREK -
EREEBRENBBESTEAMMEEANR
FEAR(GKEE) SRKESTER-Z
—HFE—A—BBELEEHER -

(@) BEENE
RS E ERERID MR ERK
BENATE -

Note 2015

HaF —E—h%F

RMB’000

AR®TT

Cash BHe 11,080
Equity instruments f& 7 T A (66,000,000 f% & i@ A% )

(66,000,000 ordinary shares) 27()(i) 38,223

Total consideration transferred BN B 49,303
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28 ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued)

CEF-F -

(@) Consideration transferred (Continued)

Equity instruments issued

The fair value of the ordinary shares issued was based on
the listed share price of the Company at 13 May 2015 of

HKDO.723 per share.

(b) Acquisition-related costs

The Group incurred acquisition-related costs of
RMB201,000 on legal fees and due diligence costs.
These costs have been included in ‘administrative

expenses’.

(c) Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities

C UABRBESTR)

28

WEEME AR (@)
@ BEEAEw
ERITREAIA
BRTER

B ETRHR -F—
b0 B 51807285 TLBTE -

(b) WEEHRRER AR
AEEELERERERASNAS

U BB AE B A AN AR 201,000 7T ©

BB A ETIER AR AR
hFERA+=R

Z

SERABFA THAX ]

© WEABMAEEKEER

assumed &
The following table summarises the recognised amounts TRBAMAUE B SRR BAR
of assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of ERDAERENSRE -
acquisition.
Pre-acquisition Recognised
carrying Fair value values on
amounts adjustments acquisition
T
WEE R ARTE B NEERE ERRERE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT ARETT
Property, plant and equipment ER NG 35,033 (1,368) 33,665
Lease prepayment MEBMZ 8,186 (286) 7,900
Inventories #E 4,360 - 4,360
Trade and other receivables B 5 R H At EYGRIE 3,879 - 3,879
Cash and cash equivalents BehBeEEY 16,275 - 16,275
Bank loans RITER (16,143) - (16,143)
Trade and other payables 25 REMENTE (4,939) - (4,933)
Total identifiable net assets acquired BB B FEERE 46,657 (1,654) 45,003
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28 ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued) 28 WHBHMIEE N E (&)

(c) Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities ©) HﬁZ BRI B Al EEREESR
assumed (Continued) EXC )
() Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash acquired (i) WEHBAR HRMERS
RMB’000
AR
Cash consideration transferred DEEESNE (11,080)
Cash acquired FrER & 16,275
Net of cash acquired MG FTER & 5,195

(i)

Measurement of fair values

() AFEHE

The valuation techniques used for measuring the fair FEWEEREEN LA FE
value of material assets acquired were as follows: FERAMEEREET

Assets acquired

ElEEE

Valuation technique

HER*

Property, plant and
equipment and
Lease prepayment

ME - BB RREA K
HETRRNK

Inventories

Market comparison technique and cost technique: The valuation
model considers quoted market prices for similar items when they are
available, and depreciated replacement cost when appropriate.
Depreciated replacement cost reflects adjustments for physical
deterioration as well as functional and economic obsolescence

TS BUERK AL - (MERAEBAISHEEHENTSRERTES
BRA(IER) - TEEE KA R Y Z I8 BT AL RSB R & 1E

Market comparison technique: The fair value is determined based on
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and sale, and a reasonable profit
margin based on the effort required to complete and sell the
inventories

TS EE  RFEDERABERBREFNEFTEERTRIEEZ
HETRARARBIETE REEFEMBEE NAENSENEETE -
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28 ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued)

28 WHIEKMIB AR (&)

(d) Goodwill d) =2
Goodwill arising from the acquisition has been recognised WHEEANBE®RANT -
as follows.
Note 2015
fteE —B-1F
RMB’000
AR®TT
Consideration transferred BEERE 28(a) 49,303
Fair value of identifiable net assets AFRFEENATE 28(c) (45,003)
Goodwill = 15 4,300
29 COMMITMENTS 29 EiE

(@) Capital commitments outstanding at 31
December 2015 not provided for in these
consolidated financial statements were as

(@ RNULFHEEPHRERAR
EEBEAR_T—1F
T-A=+t—HRKREER

follows: BARAEWNT
The Group

AKE
2015 2014
—E—hF —Z—OF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREEF T
Contracted for (note (i) BRI (HfaE () 74,970 124,469
Authorised but not contracted for BIRERRRTY = -
74,970 124,469

Note: Hiat -

(i) Capital commitments are mainly related to construction of factories
for Zhangping Kimura and Unicreed and purchase of equipment.
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29 COMMITMENTS (Continued) 29 &I (@)

(o) At 31 December 2015, the total future b)) RZE—RFT-A=1—
minimum lease payments under non- H - BEARAERTEER
cancellable operating leases in respect of SR ARG L HAET
rental of offices and retail shops are AEENREFEEENK
repayable as follows: BEEIA R

The Group
*KH
2015 2014
—E—LfF —T—F
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®TR ARETT

Within 1 year —FR 728 1,284
After 1 year but within 5 years —FERAFA 24 208

752 1,492
The leases typically run for an initial period of one to five HAO—BVIL AR —FERAFIE
years, with an option to renew when all terms are FIE R PTR (6 AR E AT RE 1 S A 1
renegotiated. None of the leases include contingent ZERHNHTRERAES -
rentals.
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30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the related party information disclosed in notes 8,
9, 14, 20 and 283 of these consolidated financial statements, the
Group entered into the following significant related party
transactions during the years presented.

(@) Name and relationship with related parties

During the years presented, the directors are of the view
that related parties of the Group include the following

C UABRBESTR)

30

BEXBEBAERS
BRIt ERE B HANTS 91420
C3FTHEMEE H BRI REBRATR

FEALTIIERNBE RS

(@) FBAEETT & K B R &

EEER
REIREE  BEERE A&EHEH
G BIE T ES -

entity:

Name of party
FABS B8

Relationships

e

Zhangping Jiupengxi Ecological Tourism
Development Company Limited (“Jiupengxi”)

BEPHABRERREERGREERR ([NIBR])

Jiangxi Lvyuan Trading Co., Ltd.

TARIREZHBER AT

Longyan Deliyuan Biomass Energy Co., Ltd.

BEEEMENIREMEEIRER AR

The English translation of the name is for reference only.
The official name of these related parties is in Chinese.

(b) Significant related party transactions

Particulars of significant related party transactions during

A private company controlled by Wu Zheyan.
Wu Zheyan is a director of the Company.
REEFHNFLERA] - REERADAESE o
An associate of the Group.

REE 2 BEENT] o
An associate of the Group.
REE B AT

BV RAEESE - BT
RETBHA TS -

b) EAEBHXS
FR N EARIBE T 22 S /3B 1

the years presented are as follows: N
2015 2014
—E—nf —T-mF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT AREETTT
Sales of wooden products to Lvyuan 4R E ARE 5 16,068 10,256
Sales of wooden products to and RS EHEERR S &
contract revenue of outdoor wooden RENIEEFE IR G
products projects derived from Jiupengxi 18 B & £IUg A 3,554 7,474
The directors confirm that the above sales and purchase EERER LHBEERSIUNEESE

transactions are entered into with trading terms similar to

those with third parties.
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30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(©

Amounts due from/(to) a related company

30 EXBEARS ©)

(©

P (FEAS) B HSE X R 3R
|

RMB’000
ARBTT
Amount due from/(to) Jiupengxi W, (FEST) hM8iERIE
Balance at KRR
— 1 January 2014 — —Z—OFE—A—H 6,155
— 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 — —Z—NFE+=-A=+—H
MZZF—-—RF—H—H (283)
— 31 December 2015 —ZE-hE+-A=1+—H 1,007
Maximum balance outstanding N ER AR
— during 2015 —R-E—HF 2,875
— during 2014 — R4 14,068

The amount due from/(to) a related company was arisen
from normal sales transactions. It was unsecured,
interest-free and expected to be settled according to
credit term which is similar to that with third parties.

Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s
directors as disclosed in note 8 and certain of the highest
paid employees as disclosed in note 9, is as follows:

e (FEfS) BABs N R RIBTDIRE —
RIFER S - ZFHNAR/BER -
S RFERBREREES =T REIE
FRAGFRELT

FTEEEEABSMN
AEBMTEEREAB(BEMTS
FTi Fa /) B A AN B 2 /0 5008 K BT
HOMBEBENETEaTHESR) #F
Ba0 T

2015 2014

—E—1%F —Z—u&

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%TT ARETIT

Short-term employee benefits EHEERT 3,821 2,915
Retirement scheme contributions RIREHEIHERR 46 49
3,867 2,964

Total remuneration was included in “staff costs” (see note
6(b)).

BEBMIETATEIRA] (R

6(b)) °

EBREERERAT

e
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30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(e) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions

The related party transactions in respect of the
transactions with Jiupengxi above (note 30(b)) constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate, currency and
commodity price arises in the normal course of the Group’s
business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(@) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents.
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposure to these credit risks is monitored on an ongoing
basis.

In respect of cash and cash equivalents, the Group only
places deposits with major financial institutions, which
management believe are of high credit rating.

In respect of trade and other receivables, the Group
usually requires upfront payment for sales of goods to
new customers. For export sales, the Group generally
requests settlement by letter of credit issued by financial
institutions or by wire transfer for certain customers with
good trading history. Individual credit evaluations are
performed on all new customers requiring credit over a
certain amount and are also performed on existing
customers on a periodic basis. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and may take into account
information specific to the customer as well as pertaining
to the economic environment in which the customer
operates. The Group offers 90 days of credit to export
sales customers with good trading history and offers 150
days of credit to the existing domestic sales customers.
Generally, debtors with significant overdue balances are
requested to settle all outstanding balances before any
further credit is granted. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers.
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

@)

Credit risk (Continued)

In respect of entrusted loans receivables, the Group
assesses the credit quality of each entrusted loan
borrower before granting any new entrusted loans. The
Group has also assessed the financial ability of the
entrusted loan borrower to determine the recoverability of
the entrusted loan receivables at the end of the reporting
period.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer rather
than the industry or country in which the customers
operate and therefore significant concentrations of credit
risk primarily arise when the Group has significant
exposure to individual customers. At 31 December 2015,
4% (2014: 3%), of the total trade and other receivables
was due from the Group’s largest customer and 7%
(2014: 6%), was due from the five largest customers.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by
the carrying amount of each financial asset in the
consolidated statement of financial position after
deducting any impairment allowance. The Group does
not provide any guarantees which would expose it to
credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables are
set out in note 20.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

BB ERR W T

C UABRBESTR)

31 SREREERAFEEE)

VALUES (continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) () mBESRER @
The following table details the remaining contractual TRFANAEERARRFEITETR
maturities at 31 December 2015 of the Group’s and the BEN_ZE-—RAF+_-_A=+—HH
Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities, which are FrAHEAE - ZemBEHER
based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including SHARMBRERE(BEEHAEL
interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if Rk (W)F &) PG BRETH
floating, based on rates current at the end of the reporting EEERF B AR AEE KA
period) and the earliest date the Group and the Company REHEREELEHENRTERH
are required to settle these liabilities. Mmet&E o
The Group REH
2015
Z%-i%
Within More than More than Total
1 year 1 year but 2 years but contractual Carrying
oron less than less than  undiscounted amount at
demand 2years 5 years cash flow 31 December
—ERE Bid-% BlzE TR R+=B=t+-R
BEX BORZE BOREE  RERENE HIEEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT IN:3 S IN:3 S ARBTT IN:3 S
Bank loans and interest BIERR8fEE 332,663 68,995 27,607 429,265 413,675
bearing borrowings
Trade and other payables EHRAMENTE 28,178 = = 23,178 28,178
360,841 68,995 21,607 457,443 441,853
2014
—3-mE
Within More than More than Total
1 year 1 year but 2 years but contractual Carrying
oron less than less than undiscounted amount at
demand 2 years 5 years cash flow 31 December
—ERg tiﬁ &3 BEF ANARE MTZA=T-A
BEX BIR=F ESREE  ReNEER MR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ANRETT ANREFT
Bank loans and interest FTERRTEEE 355,791 14,439 59,523 429,753 413,096
bearing borrowings
Trade and other payables BHREMENTE 19,356 - - 19,356 19,356
375,147 14,439 59,523 449,109 432,452
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

31 EREREERAFE S

VALUES (Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b)) mBESRER @
The Company FIN/NE|
2015
~B-1%
Within More than More than Total Balance
1 year 1 year but 2 years but contractual sheet
oron less than less than  undiscounted carrying
demand 2 years 5 years cash flow amount
—ERg Bil-% i k3 HESEY ] REARE
BEX BORZE BORLE RenEdE HEEE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AERTR AB®TR ABRTR ABR®TT AB®TR
Other payables EfERFE 1,944 - - 1,944 1,944
Interest bearing borrowings SEfE 838 17,594 - 18,432 16,756
2,782 17,594 - 20,376 18,700
2014
“E2-pE
Within More than More than Total Balance
1 year 1 year but 2 years but contractual Sheet
oron less than less than undiscounted carrying
demand 2 years 5 years cash flow amount
—ERg :ﬁ?&*i RBZF STHRER BERER
BEX BOR=F BIREE BERERT MEEE
RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Other payables A ERFE 2,409 - - 2,409 2,409
Interest bearing borrowings iEEE 789 789 16,567 18,145 15,778
3,198 789 16,567 20,554 18,187
(©) Interest rate risk € FIZER B

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from
borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates and at
fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively. The
Group’s interest rate profile as monitored by management
is set out in (i) below.

REBNMERER T EREER %
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31 ®iEKREERAFE @)

VALUES (continued)
(©) Interest rate risk (Continued) (c) A= =B 4
() Interest rate profile i)  RRARR

The following table details the interest rate profile of
the Group’s total borrowings at 31 December 2015:

FREN-F-HF+- A
=+ BAEBEROFEHT
EHRR

2015 2014
ZE-Lf —T-mF
Effective Effective
interest rate Amount interest rate Amount
ERfE & BEBEME %
% RMB’000 % RMB'000
AR®TR AR®EFT
Fixed rate borrowings:  ER{EE:
RMB, HKD and USD AR¥ - ETRET 1.06%~ 257,975 1.54%- 177,912
bank loans FITER 6.69% 7.80%
Unsecured debentures ERAES 5% 16,756 5% 15,778
Variable rate borrowings: FRE® :
RMB, HKD, EUR and USD ARE BT Bk 2.29%- 138,945 1.23%- 219,406
bank loans ETHRITER 8.51% 8.05%
Total net borrowings BIERTE 413,675 413,096
Net fixed rate borrowings as & B & FUF4E 15 @
a percentage of total net EFFENED
borrowings 66% 47%
(ii) Sensitivity analysis (i) BBEDSF

At 31 December 2015, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant, would
have decreased/increased the Group’s profit after
tax and retained profits by approximately
RMB1,181,000 (2014: RMB1,865,000). Other
components of equity would not be affected by the
changes in interest rates.
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31
VALUES (continued)

cEEMREER AR E R

Interest rate risk (Continued)

(i) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)
The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit after tax
(and retained profits) that would arise assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred at the end
of the reporting period and had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to fair value interest
rate risk at the end of the reporting period. In
respect of the exposure to cash flow interest rate
risk arising from floating rate non-derivative
instruments held by the Group at the end of the
reporting period, the impact on the Group’s profit
after tax (and retained profits) is estimated as an

(©)

MR )
(i) SBREDIWN(E)
PG RE ST A EER
BRBiEER (RRBEN) 1§ E
ERREEE - MREINRK
BN EEHREE A
£ WERAREFTEAER
g TRRERAREREE
ERATEMNERBNZES
IR BMALEERBERR
ﬁﬁm&_#ﬂilﬂﬁim
i/mgﬂ_i_ﬂ = £T$
%l%ﬁémﬂK&%mﬁﬂ)
WEFEEFENRMERESHM
AR R B S S A

annualised impact on interest expense or income of e RZZT—WmF+=A
such a change in interest rates. The analysis at 31 =+—H8 ZoekERE
December 2014 has been performed on the same AEHETT ©
basis.
(d) Currency risk 0 EE=k
The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through AEEEmEHNEBRR  T2AUE

sales and purchases which give rise to receivables,
payables and cash balances that are denominated in USD
and Euros, currencies other than the functional currency
of the entity to which they relate.

The Group is also exposed to currency risk associated
with the bank borrowings as the Group’s borrowings are
denominated in RMB, USD, HKD and Euros.

During the years presented, the Group entered into
foreign currency forward contracts with major state-
owned banks in the PRC mainly to acquire RMB to
mitigate against currency risk on receivables denominated
in USD, HKD and Euros. All of the forward exchange
contracts have maturities of less than one year.
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2015, the Group had foreign currency

forward contracts with their fair values recognised as
derivative financial instruments (assets) of RMB3,064,000
(2014: RMB867,000) and derivative financial instruments
(liabilities) of RMB5,112,000 (2014: RMB1,247,000) and
are included within “Trade and other receivables” (note

20) and “Trade and other payables” (note 23) respectively.

The changes in fair value of the foreign currency forward

contracts were recognised in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss (note 5(b)).

@

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s exposure at
31 December 2015 to currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the
entity to which they relate. For presentation
purposes, the amounts of the exposure are shown
in Renminbi, translated using the spot rate at the
end of reporting period. Differences resulting from
the translation of the financial statements of the
entities with functional currency other than RMB into
the Group’s presentation currency are excluded.

The Company does not have any significant financial
assets or liabilities denominated in currencies other
than its functional currency and it is not exposed to
significant currency risk.
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C UABRBEZR)

cEEMREER AR E R

VALUES (continued)
(d) Currency risk (Continued) 0 EE=bx
() Exposure to currency risk (Continued) i) E¥RRE)
The Group rEH
2015 2014
Zg-1f “F-pF
usb Euros HKS RMB UsDh Euros HKS RMB
E 3 B BT AE® N o B ARE
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ABBTT ARWTR AERBTR ARBTR ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR
Trade and other BHREM
receivables fERE 48,076 - - - 36,495 45 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 54 BB 4ZEN 32,775 2 1 123 69,798 290 1 292
Bank loans HITET (18,774)  (28,771) (24,799 - (196,762) - (183 -
Trade and other EHRER
payables EfT5R (1,291) - - - (330 - - -
Gross exposure arising ~ EERBER
from recognised BEELEN
assets and liabilities B e 60,786  (28,769) (24,798) 123 (93,799 B (11,833 292
(i) Sensitivity analysis (i) HBREIN

The following table indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit after tax (and retained
profits) that would arise if foreign exchange rates to
which the Group has significant exposure at the end
of the reporting period had changed at that date,
assuming all other risk variables remained constant.
Other components of equity would not be affected
by changes in the foreign exchange rates.

TRINRAAE MR RE T
BOBRT  AREBEORBIE
a i (RREE M) E R E &8
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

C UABRBESTR)

31 SREREERAFEEE)

VALUES (continued)
(d) Currency risk (Continued) d) E¥RR @)
(i) Sensitivity analysis (Continued) (i) BWRBREI(E)
The Group rEH
2015 2014
ZE-5f —T-mF

Increase/ Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit (decrease) in profit
in foreign  after tax and in foreign after tax and
exchange retained exchange retained
rates profits rates profits
fREas BRAR R
SEESE REZRT SN E % RAREEF
LR/ (FR)  LH/(TR)  EA/(TH)  EA/(TH)
RMB’000 RMB'000
AE®RTR ARBTT
Usb e 5% 2,568 5% (3,986)
(5)% (2,568) 5)% 3,086
Euros BT 5% (1,223) 5% 14
(5)% 1,223 5)% (14)
HK$ against RMB BILHARE 5% (1,054) 5% (503)
(5)% 1,054 5)% 503
RMB against HK$ ARERET 5% 5 5% 12
(5)% (5) (6)% (12
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

(i) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

Results of the analysis as presented above
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous
effects on each of the Group entities’ profit after tax
and equity measured in the respective functional
currencies, translated into RMB at the exchange
rate ruling at the end of reporting period for
presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in
foreign exchange rates had been applied to
remeasure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk at the end of reporting period. The analysis
excludes differences that would result from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group’s presentation currency.
The analysis at 31 December 2014 has been
performed on the same basis.

Commaodity price risk

The major raw materials used in the production of the
Group’s products include, fir and pinewood. The Group is
exposed to fluctuations in the prices of these raw
materials which are influenced by the global market as
well as regional supply and demand conditions.
Fluctuations in the prices of raw materials could adversely
affect the Group’s financial performance. The Group
historically has not entered into any commaodity derivative
instruments to hedge the potential commodity price
changes. The Group monitors its commodity price risk by
widening its supply base and performs bulk purchase
when the price of raw materials is low.
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

()  Fair values

@

Financial instruments carried at fair value
Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s financial instruments measured at the end
of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in IFRS 18, Fair value measurement. The
level into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technique as follows:

—  Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date

—  Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which falil
to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available

—  Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

As at 31 December 2015 the Group’s derivative
financial instruments assets and liabilities amounting
to RMB3,064,000 and RMB5,112,000 respectively
(2014: assets and liabilities of RMB867,000 and
RMB1,247,000 respectively) (notes 20 and 23) were
carried at fair value, and these instruments fall into
Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy described above.
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31
VALUES (continued)

()  Fair values (Continued)

(i) Financial instruments carried at fair value
(Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and
2014, there were no transfers between Level 1 and
Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3. The
Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between
levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level
2 fair value measurements

The fair value of forward exchange contracts in
Level 2 is determined by discounting the contractual
forward price and deducting the current spot rate.
The discount rate used is derived from the relevant
government yield curve as at the end of reporting
period plus an adequate constant credit spread.

There were no other financial assets or liabilities
carried at fair value as at 31 December 2015 and 31
December 2014.

(ii)  Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
carried at other than fair value

The carrying values of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are
not materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2015 and 31 December 2014.
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29 March 2016.

Wu Zheyan
REE

Chief Executive Officer

TTAEEL
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R AR RETIE o

Xie Qingmei

WA=

Director

EBEE

32 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 32 AREBEMBEAMRRE
FINANCIAL POSITION
2015 2014
—Z—-1F —T—UF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kt et AR®TR ARETT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries RITB A BRI RERS 17 670,169 356,181
Current assets B E
Deposits and other prepayments e M EMFENR 20 583 399
Cash and cash equivalents HERREEHED 22(a) 557 85
1,140 484
Current liabilities mENAE
Otherpayables  ~~ HAfmEizms 00 28 194 2,409
Net current liabilites ~~~~~~~~~ =#@hafE#&E =000 804 | (1,925)
Total assets less current liabilities BWE#ERTEAE 669,365 354,256
Non-current liabilities FEEEERE
Interest-bearing borrowings EEE 26 16,756 15,778
NET ASSETS BERE 652,609 338,478
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BERFEE 27(a)
Capital B 20,987 11,053
Reserves s 631,622 327,425
TOTAL EQUITY HaRn 652,609 338,478
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on RZE—R"F=ZAZthBEESFeHE
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33

34

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING
PARTY

At 31 December 2015, the directors consider the immediate
and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Green Seas
Capital Limited, which is incorporated in BVI. This entity does
not produce financial statement available for public use.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial
statements, the IASB has issued a number of amendments and
new standards which are not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2015 and which have not been adopted in the
consolidated financial statements. These include the following
which may be relevant to the Group.

33

34

HEERKEERA

BEERAE RET—RFt=-A=1+—8"
NEBEEHE R FKER T BGreen Seas
Capital Limited * ZZ AR EBE Z ST
A o W BB MR R AR B RE -

BE-F-—HF+=-RA=+—
HiEFESEMERERE
g - AT ERRRENTRER
HELRSRAVBHRREGRZA  BFg
FPEREESEBH L IBIEET R £ER) -
ERNBEZTS—AF+-A=+—HIF
EHEARER - B RNREGEA M IERE AR
W BEREETHAEEAEEGENS
15 :

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RT5IE RSz ®

AR EN

IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts. 1 January 2016
BUBR B T 2 RIS 14 5 R EAEALAR B —ET-RF—HA—H
Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations (Amendments to IFRS11) 1 January 2016
W SRR mm B (BRI B E2ERE 11 S AEET ) —ET-R¥F—-HA—H

Clarification of Accepiable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation

(Amenadments to I1AS 76 and IAS 38).
BB ITE KA R AT 5 (B &t BRI E 16 5 %
EOBX 5t 2RI 38 SIS ETA)

Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements (Amendments to IAS 27)

B HREA L (BB S5 2ERE 27 S ANEETA)
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an investor and

its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments to IFRS10 and IAS 28)

KREERHBENRASELENEEHEITA
(BB AT 75 30 2 2RI 10 35 R BIB & 51 2 R 2 28 ST A91E AT AK)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle-various Standards.
—E-—FE-_T-NFAPRRBRVBRELENNFELRE - SRELE

Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception
(Amendments to IFRS10, IFRS12 and IAS 28)

REER - EAKAEPIIMER (BB EERZE 109
BB B 7 e 25 2RI 5 12 9 R BB & 51 BRI 5 28 S BIE FT AK)

Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to IAS1)

W B (BB S5 2ERIE 1 R AIEET )

IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
BIFR BT RS S RN EE 1655 - HEFET VA AIRIHA

IFRS 9, Financial instruments
BIFREI RS ERIE 9% - @@ T A

1 January 2016

—E—-RF—H—H
1 January 2016
—ET—-RF—H—H

1 January 2016

—E—-RF—H—H
1 January 2016
—ET—-RF—H—H

1 January 2016

—E—-RF—H—H
1 January 2016
—E-R"F¥—H—H
1 January 2018
—E-RE—-A—H
1 January 2018
—E-RF—H—H
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34 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments, new standards and new
interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is
unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s results of
operations and financial position.
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